L A

VAR

NATURAL BEAUTY

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
BAREREMBHRARATE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(NHEHSIMKLZERAF)

Stock Code [% 7 {55 : 00157

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 £ #§




Mission Statement
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Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff, customers, students and
franchisees to appreciate our education, products and services, which are the
mission and belief of the brand and to make modern ladies beautiful, confident
and wealthy.
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Executive Directors
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Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

(alias lvan PAN)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. LU Yu-Min
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Hong Kong
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LISTING INFORMATION tmEHR
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Financial Highlights

LR

Selected Financial Data BEEERE =Tk =T \E —F_NF —ToTh SRS &
HK$'000 FET BHREE  HMEREFE  HERFE  HEREFE  WREE
(except per share data) (FRREIERIN FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021
Revenue WA 399,579 369,525 438413 410,673 487,810
Cost of sales HEMRA 94,467 146,665 172,843 170,248 181,812
Gross profit EH 305,112 222,860 265,570 240,425 305,998
Operating profit &R A 146,738 39,157 38,331 10,641 50,480
Profit for the year REFE i F 105,388 26,259 21,908 7,758 35,264
Dividends fhal 112,117 29,031 0 6,006 6,006
Earning Per Share (EPS) — basic BREN -EX $0.0530 $0.0130 $0.0110 $0.0039 $0.0176
Dividend Per Share (DPS) AR $0.0560 $0.0150 50 $0.0030 $0.0030
Total assets BEE 777,885 678,966 757,400 831,972 930,444
Net asset value BESE 650,746 551,855 567,793 611,230 657,918
Return on Equity (ROE) e NEIE 16.2% 4.8% 3.9% 1.3% 5.4%
Return on Assets (ROA) EEDR 13.5% 3.9% 2.9% 0.9% 3.8%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

Revenue of the Group in 2021 increased by 18.8% to HK$487.8 million as
compared to HK$410.7 million in 2020. The increase was mainly due to an
increase of HK$77.0 million in product sales, of which contributed to 96.7% of
the Group's total revenue.

Revenue in the PRC market increased by 35.2% from HK$206.5 million in 2020
to HK$279.0 million in 2021. Revenue in the Taiwan market increased by 4.4% to
HK$203.2 million as compared to HK$194.6 million in 2020.

Revenue from other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau,
decreased by 41.5% from HK$9.6 million in 2020 to HKS$5.6 million in 2021.
Contribution from these regions remained at an insignificant level of just 1.1%
of the Group's revenue.

The Group's overall gross profit margin increased from 58.5% in 2020 to 62.7%
in 2021 mainly due to the change of the revenue mixture of the Group's
product/beauty apparatus/service packages, and the increase in the proportion

Bt 7% B B8

B

REEZEEBHR T T F /410,700,000
BT R188%E —F = —4F H487,800,000
BIL e B MFTEARE @IE S BN

77,000,000/ 7T : 9 B ANEE AL EEN
96.7% °

FRAETS ZE¥58EMA - 2 = EH
206,500,000 LI KR35 20 F —F = —F H

279,000,000/ 7L : é/gﬁiﬁzMiaﬁ 1]
ZE T F 194,600,000 LI R44%E
203,200,000/ 7T °

Hipth@ (BIEEE - BRIEE KRB Z &
BT F£415% =T =FF 29,600,000 7T~
f% —F =~ —4 7560000058 7T © 5% M R ¥
REBEXBE L AMERSHY - EHAEEE
EFE11% o

AREEZEEERENERA-_ST_TFH
585%IERE T - —FM627%  EFERNKA
SEEEER/ ERES/MEKAEESEE

of higher-margin products in 2021. 2 EnAeFERIBXRRs 2ERNT
EFAFEC-
Revenue by activities REBE D 2 EER 2021 2020 Changes
—B-—F S )
HK$’000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FHET %  TAET %  THET %
Products Em 471,838 96.7% 394,807 96.1% 77,031 19.5%
Services R 7% 15,972 3.3% 15,866 3.9% 106 0.7%
Total HRET 487,810 100.0% 410673 100.0% 77,137 18.8%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Products

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of
products, including skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic products, health
supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and
beauty apparatus. Product sales are the Group's key revenue source and
primarily generated from franchised spas, online and other sales platforms, self-
owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product sales
in 2021 amounted to HK$471.8 million, or 96.7% of the Group's total revenue,
representing an increase of HK$77.0 million or by 19.5% when compared to
product sales of HK$394.8 million in 2020. The increase in product sales was
mainly driven by the increase in revenue in such segment in the PRC market by
33.19% to HK$263.7 million in 2021 as compared to HK$198.1 million in 2020.

Services
Service income is derived from our self-owned spas’ services, medical
cosmetology services, training and other services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. The Group's strategy is to establish self-owned spas as model
outlets in strategic locations to stimulate franchisees to join in. As at 31
December 2021, the Group has three self-owned spas and one self-owned
medical cosmetology centers in the PRC and one self-owned spa in Malaysia.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W& D

Bt % 151 B ()

EfR
AEBEFZUAERE I RENENRHEESE
M ERARBHRER BERGRMMUAES
ANEBERRERNESR ERHEALEER
FBWAKRE  BEBREMEKEFRD
EHRRAEMEETS  BELEKEFLR
BEARERE - —E-—FrERNEEE
471,800,000/ 7T (B b AN B AU A 96.7%) 8
ZETF 7 miEE 58394,800,0007 701 0N
77,000,000/ 7534 19.5% ° E miHE L INE E A
RZBEZ—FZoBRPEREMS &%
B EF R E 2 198,100,000 LI K33.1% 2
263,700,00078 JTTETEL ©

R %5
U EEIR B B B EENERORE - BEX
DR - 5 R E AR

NEBBBHBEREKED OB E#E
B ERRKERG - NEE Z KBS THR ERE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Services (Continued)

The Group does not share any service income generated from spas run by
franchisees under its current franchise arrangements. In 2021, service income
increased by 0.7% to HK$16.0 million as compared to HK$15.9 million in 2020.

Bt % 151 B ()

PR 7% (&)

BRITMBLERE - AEB TG INER
LEKBRLATEZEMRERE - RZE =
—F - REKEE =T ZFF 215,900,0007%
TR 0.7%Z 16,000,00078 TT ©

Service income i B g 2021 2020 Changes
=B —F —_T—-= BE)
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FET % TET %  FAT %
Training income cElllE 24 0.2% 89 0.6% (65) (73.0%)
Spa/Medical cosmetology KBRS, BEER
service income R 75 U s 14,565 91.2% 15,165 95.5% (600) (4.0%)
Others HAh 1,383 8.6% 612 3.9% 771 126.0%
Total HEt 15972  100.0% 15,866 100.0% 106 0.7%
The PRC Market H B K BE T 35

The Group’s revenue in the PRC market increased by 35.2% in 2021 to HK$279.0
million as compared with HK$206.5 million in 2020. The increase was mainly
due to an increase in the sales of products. Gross margin on product sales
decreased from 63.7% in 2020 to 61.6% in 2021. The key reasons are the
changes in the mixture of products with different marginal gross profit and the
revenue mixture of the Group’s product/beauty apparatus/service package in
the PRCin 2021.

Taiwan Market

The Group's revenue in the Taiwan market increased by 4.4% from HK$194.6
million in 2020 to HK$203.2 million in 2021. The increase in total sales of the
Taiwan market was mainly driven by the increase in revenue from online and
other sales platforms. Gross profit margin on product sales decreased from
68.4% in 2020 to 68.1% in 2021. The key reason of the decrease in gross margin
is that the marginal gross profit of the existing sales platforms is lower than the
marginal gross profit of the original channels.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021
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£ 7 206,500,000/8 TLIE R352%9FE — T - —F 2
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M - EREEENEN=_FT=_F 2
63.7% NEEZE_—F2616%° TEREA
FRAER-Z - —F T REEEMNERSE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taiwan Market (Continued)

Benefited from the operation strategy of Eastern Media International
Corporation ("EMIC") Group, the Group’s products were sold through the
distribution channels of EMIC. In 2021, sales revenue from TV shopping,
E-commerce and telemarketing channels in the Taiwan market contributed
HK$139.4 million to the Group, accounting for 68.6% of the product sales in
Taiwan.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Bt % 151 B ()

=0 L1k 16))
BEREREERNDERAB(RASE]D 2
LIBRE AARFEMEBREFETHDHE
BHE NS —F > QETENERE
Y BFRE - BRTEHBEERBEERAY
AN £ B B B3 139,400,000 T - 1h A E MR E
on & B 8 2 68.6% ©

Revenue by Rt E o 2
geographical region =0 2021 2020 Changes
—E-—F ZEEF FE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FET FET FET %

PRC o K BE
Products Em 263,679 198,083 65,596 33.1%
Services AR 7% 15,367 8,386 6,981 83.2%
PRC Total o K BE 4R ST 279,046 206,469 72,577 35.2%
Taiwan = |
Products Em 203,165 187,324 15,841 8.5%
Services Al 7% 7 7322 (7,315) (99.9%)
Taiwan Total EY-t:5 203,172 194,646 8,526 4.4%
Others Hity
Products Em 4,994 9,400 (4,406) (46.9%)
Services AR 7% 598 158 440 278.5%
Others Total Hith#a st 5,592 9,558 (3,966) (41.5%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER W& D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Other income and other gains

Other income and other gains decreased by 34.4% from HK$13.5 million in
2020 to HK$8.8 million in 2021 mainly due to a decrease of government grants
in 2021 by 77.2% compared with that in 2020. Other income and other gains in
2021 mainly comprised rental income from properties and equipment, interest
income and government grants of HK$3.2 million, HK$2.1 million and HK$1.8
million respectively.

Selling and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue
increased to 37.2% in 2021 compared with 36.5% in 2020. The distribution and
selling expenses increased by HK$31.8 million from HK$149.8 million in 2020 to
HK$181.6 million in 2021. Staff costs in relation to distribution work increased by
HKS$14.0 million to HK$80.3 million in 2021 from HKS$66.3 million in 2020. Other
key expenses included advertising expenses of HK$45.1 million, depreciation
and amortisation charges of HK$14.3 million, transportation charges of
HK$9.6 million, consulting and service fees of HK$7.4 million, travelling and
entertainment charges of HK$8.2 million and rental expenses of HK$5.4 million
in 2021.

Total administrative expenses decreased by HK$0.6 million, to HK$83.6 million in
2021 as compared to HK$84.2 million in 2020. Administrative expenses mainly
comprised staff costs and retirement benefits (including directors’ emoluments)
of HK$36.3 million, legal and professional fees of HK$16.6 million, depreciation
and amortisation charges of HK$9.9 million and research, development
expenses of HK$6.8 million and office and utility expense HK$4.9 million in 2021.

Other expenses and other losses

Other expenses and other losses decreased by HK$4.0 million, from HK$7.1
million in 2020 to HK$3.1 million in 2021. Other expenses and other losses
mainly included related expenses of rental of other properties of HK$1.8 million,
and exchange loss of HK$0.6 million in 2021.

Profit before tax

Taking into account of the fact that pre-tax profit margin increased to 9.9% in
2021 from 2.2% in 2020 in the Group, profit before tax increased by 439.5%
from HK$9.0 million in 2020 to HK$48.5 million in 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation expenses increased to HK$13.2 million in 2021 as compared to HK$1.2
million in 2020. The effective tax rates of the Group in 2020 and 2021 were
13.6% and 27.2% respectively.

Profit for the year
Profit for the year increased by 354.6% from HK$7.8 million in 2020 to HK$35.3
million in 2021.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2021 was approximately HK$44.6
million (HK$30.1 million in 2020). As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$184.5 million (HK$154.5 million as
at 31 December 2020) with approximately HK$97.3 million of external bank
borrowings (HK$67.5 million as at 31 December 2020).

In terms of gearing, the Group's gearing ratios (defined as total bank borrowings
divided by shareholders’ equity) in 2020 and 2021 were 11.0% and 14.8%
respectively. Current ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 were 1.96
times and 1.89 times respectively. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities, other than those disclosed in its consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto. With the cash and bank balances in
hand, the Group's liquidity position remains strong to meet its working capital
requirements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's secured bank borrowings with maturities
falling due within one year, in the second to fifth years without repayment on
demand clause and in the second to fifth years with repayment on demand
clause were HK$34.5 million (2020: HK$16.5 million), HK$9.5 million (2020:
HK$13.3 million) and HK$53.3 million (2020: HKS$37.7 million) respectively, and
therefore the Group’s net cash (exclude time deposits with maturities of over
three months but less than one year) amounted to HK$87.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$87.0 million). These bank borrowings were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") at floating
rates during the year. The Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate risk
via interest rate swap.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's secured short-term and long-term bank
borrowings were secured by certain freehold land, buildings and right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land, with carrying amounts of HK$102.4 million
(HK$104.2 million as at 31 December 2020).

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in RMB and NTD as its
operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31 December 2021,
approximately 68.0% (67.2% as at 31 December 2020) of the Group's bank
balances and cash was denominated in RMB, while approximately 27.6% (26.6%
as at 31 December 2020) was denominated in NTD. The remaining 4.4% (6.2%
as at 31 December 2020) was denominated in United States Dollars, Hong Kong
Dollars and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group continues to adopt a conservative
approach in its foreign exchange exposure management. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivative financial instruments
to hedge against such risks when necessary.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Distribution channels

For revenue by sales channel, the Group achieved HK$341.4 million sales from
franchised/self-owned spas, medical cosmetology centers and counters in
2021 which increased by HK$51.6 million as compared to the figure in 2020
(2020: HK$289.8 million), representing 70.0% of the Group's total revenue (2020:
70.6%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution channels (Continued)

For sales from E-commerce, TV shopping and telemarketing channels, the
Group achieved HKS$146.4 million sales which increased by HK$25.5 million
compared to 2020 (2020: HK$120.9 million), representing 30.0% of the Group's

total revenue (2020: 29.4%).
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Medical

Franchisee-  Self-owned Self-owned Cosmetology
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As at 31 December 2021 i 2

PRC LN 968 3 971 10 1 982
Taiwan a8 346 0 346 0 0 346
Others Hity 24 1 25 0 0 25
Total @t 1,338 4 1,342 10 1 1,353

Self-owned

Medical
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Distribution channels (Continued)

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters in department stores.
As at 31 December 2021, there were 1,342 spas, 1 medical cosmetology
center and 10 concessionary counters. Of these, 1,338 were franchised spas,
while 4 spas, 1T medical cosmetology centers and 10 concessionary counters
were directly operated and owned by the Group. No concessionary counters
were entrusted to third-party operators. Franchised spas are owned by the
franchisees who are responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They
are obliged to use only Natural Beauty or “NB” products in their spas. A wide
array of services including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin
care analysis, are provided in all spas, while skin care analysis is widely available
at the concessionary counters in department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 255 (2020: 133) new stores were opened and 119 (2020:
99) stores were closed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development which
allows it to maintain its competitive edge, continuously improve the
quality of its existing products and develop new products. The Group has
been collaborating with overseas skin-care companies on technological
development. The bio-technology materials used by NB products are imported
from Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group’s R&D team comprises a number
of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in cosmetics, medicine,
pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB products are constantly enhanced and
modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the team.
The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise and
experiences to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products.
NB principally uses natural ingredients, adopts a unique formula and adapts to
the physiological structure and characteristics of the skin. The use of advanced
biotechnology R&D products can more effectively improve beauty efficacy and
to better position NB as an international brand.

Natural Beauty has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging
NB-1 product family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy
resistance and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United
States to protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Products

In 2021, the Group's flagship NB-1 series products accounted for 32.4% of total
product sales, which reached HK$153.0 million. By continuously conducting
research and product development on our beauty products and closely
following the market demand, the Group has successfully listed the healthy
basic package of Slimming Body and NB-1 sapphire polypeptide extract in the
first half of 2021, generating sales of HK$22.0 million as of 31 December 2021
which further filled the gaps in. In September 2021, the Group has upgraded its
mainstay series of natural beauty = Yam collagen firming series and improved
its product image, thereby generated a revenue of HK$23.9 million.

Meanwhile, the e-commerce platform has incubated new brand for young
consumers with international home care domain guru, expected to be listed in
2022.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 583 employees, of whom
406 were based in the PRC, 156 in Taiwan and 21 in other countries and
regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors’ emoluments) in 2021 was
approximately HK$146.1 million (HK$130.0 million in 2020), including retirement
benefit related costs of HK$10.9 million (HK$2.9 million in 2020). Competitive
remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable
staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis.

Capital Expenditures

The Group's capital expenditure of HK$38.1 million in 2021 was mainly related
to the new plant construction in the PRC amounting to HK$26.2 million,
opening of new stores, renovation and equipment amounting to HK$11.0
million.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER W& D

¥ KB

EfR

RZTZ—F  ASBEERERBNB1RIE
mIE R EEEN324%  HiE5HEESD
153,000,000 7T » ANEEEREEXENFEN
ERERERRE  BENMEHRE £
T FEEFRNEM T REREREEEAR
MEZEFINB1ETAZMMBBEER - 8l
T 22,000,000 TG B TEMRE
XROAABRTEAEZENFREERY - BA
EBREHZT - 83 7 23,900,0007 THY 2
BRATERER -

BF  EEEARERREERBCE2H
FRAE - BN T _FE LW -

ABDEIR

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H KEFELEHKL
ERS83%EE » EF406% K5 B AR -
BEFI1S6H EMBEIREEAE21E - R
TEZ—FHENE(TREBEENS)NA
146,100,000 71 (=& — Z £F /130,000,0005%
J0) - E AR B E R KA FI A8 B AL Z510,900,000%8
(= ZFE = F 4 52,900,00057T) - ABIE - &
EREBRREEBNES - NEERFILE
REHEBRFN2MEHES -

- NE B

REBR T —F 2 EXRRFEZ /38,100,000
BT  EFEZREFRAEFIRER
26,200,000/ 7T ~ ¥ 5 IE 2 & K% 4511,000,000
BT o

“ECFFR BERAREYNEERDAA

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Right-of-use Assets and Lease Liability

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards No. 16 — Lease (HKFRS 16) came
into effect on 1 January 2019. At the commencement date, the Group should
recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The related right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2021, the Group's right-of-use assets were HK$81.7 million (HK$57.0
million as at 31 December 2020) and its lease liabilities were HK$31.8 million
(HKS$7.5 million as at 31 December 2020). In 2021, depreciation charges of right-
of-use assets amounted to HK$9.0 million and interest charges of lease liabilities
amounted to HK$0.9 million.

OUTLOOK

For the long-term strategy, we consecutively integrate the Eastern Multimedia
Group's (EMG) resources to optimize the quality of service, product
development, and multi-channel deployment, as well as to expand our stores
of franchisee, e-commerce, telemarketing, TV shopping channel, and OEM
business to achieve rapid revenue growth via multi-channels operation.

In the short term, we will focus on digital investment due to the impacts on
epidemic on brick-and-mortar stores. Another key strategy is to vigorously
develop the home care domain product line and with the diversion of multi-
channel products, the sales volume can be expected to augment within one
year.
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OUTLOOK (Continued)
Key Market Development Strategies

- Taiwan:

— Mainland China:

Leveraging the abundant media resources of the EMG
to rejuvenate brand image, and successfully promote
the products to all virtual channels within the group, the
revenue growth momentum continues to rise. A major
addition to the popular high-end skincare products,
we will focus on developing masstige products and
amplifying online sales in 2021 and 2022.

In 2021, the new policy of franchisee store expansion has
achieved fruitful results, estimated more stores which
doubles the numbers of annual new stores over the past
3 years, reaching a record high and expecting to increase
in 2022.

In addition, the new channel deployment has been in
process. Our OEM and e-commerce business started to
gain revenue, and the flagship store launched on Tmall
China, has become an important gateway to online sales
and offline experience. Meanwhile the e-commerce
platform has incubated new brand for young consumers
with international home care domain guru, expected to
be listed in 2022.

Our Group has made unremitting efforts to enhance its competitiveness,
consolidate its core business, and explore new and innovative business
opportunities, steadfastly making breakthroughs and pursuing maximum

growth in the midst of the pandemic.
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Report on Corporate Governance
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The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company firmly believes that strong corporate governance is the
foundation to delivering the corporate objective of maximizing return to its
stakeholders over the long term. The core of the governance structure is an
effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”) which is committed to
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance, sound internal control
and effective risk management to enhance transparency, accountability,
integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from our shareholders
and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite) which gives guidance on how corporate governance principles are
applied to the Company.

Compliance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2021, the Company
applied the principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The following
summarizes the Company’s corporate governance practices and explains
deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to

continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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SEEATS
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY RATRNEEERER @
(Continued)
A. Directors A EE
A1. Directors’ attendance and training records Al EBEHERIEIIREE
The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of two EEeRA/\EKEHEK  EFE
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three EMEHITES —FIIFPTES
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Board meets four times R=R2BUIIPTES -EEEE
during a year as a minimum and, during 2021, it met six times. FELBONREH  RZT—
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, the FROITANREZ -BHEZZT=——
Directors’ attendance records at the meetings of the Board and F+ZA=+—RHIEFERN ' Z@E
each of the Board Committees and the general meetings as well as EEZBg s NEBAEREE @ B4
the Directors' training records during the year ended 31 December EERNESeeR  SEEXEZE
2021 are as follows: SEBENRREAG 2 HERLHE - A
REZHFIZHENT
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee Board General Training
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Course
ﬁﬂﬂ?i? ERZEE REZEE gzg RREF gl
= EE EE 6 x& EvS
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. LFI Chien ZfEEt n a n 6/6 1/l Notesaandb
T Fizrakb
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan EEALE n n/a 1/1 6/6 01 Notesaand b
T fizrakb
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRLT n/a n/a n/a 6/6 0/1 Note a
T T TR fizta
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T n/a 4/4 nfa 6/6 0/1 Notesaandb
TEf Taf Fizralb
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang R n/a n/a n/a 6/6 01 Notesaandb
TEA TER TEA Miztakb
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long ik L E W0, 44 ”n 6/6 0/1 %)ge; a
Tita
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EEERE 1 44 ”n 6/6 11" Notesaandb
Fizralb
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien BEELE 212 44 n 6/6 01 %}E&;a
ita
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EEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

Al

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person could appoint another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.

Notes:

(1) No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2021.

(a) Attended training course that was organised by the Company and/
or received training materials provided by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training
course(s) that was/were not organised by the Company and/or
studied relevant reading materials.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and Committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”)
and the respective Charters of the Committees.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

Al.

Directors’ attendance and training records (Continued)

The agenda of Board meetings or Committee meetings and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or Committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Counsel and the
Company Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with and advising the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
meeting.

The Company’s Articles provide for voting and quorum
requirements conforming with the requirements of the CG Code.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against them
arising from corporate activities.
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EEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A2.

A3.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. LEI Chien serves as the Chairperson while Ms. LIN Yen-Ling is
the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of the Chairperson and Chief
Executive Officer are separate. The Chairperson focuses on Group
strategic and Board issues while the Chief Executive Officer has the
overall responsibility for operations and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.

Code provision A.2.7 (which has been renumbered as code
provision C.2.7 with effect from 1 January 2022) stipulates that
the chairman should at least annually hold meetings with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors. The Chairperson met the independent non-
executive Directors once without the presence of other Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, representing at least one-third of the Board with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts or letters of appointment,
including Executive and Non-executive Directors, usually serve
one-year term, and are subject to re-election pursuant to the
Articles and the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
("AGM"). Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien and Ms. LU Yu-Min will
retire by rotation according to the Articles and all of them, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
independent non-executive director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the related
circular and notice of the AGM the reason why we consider the
independent non-executive director is still independent and
our recommendation to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-
election of such independent non-executive director.

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.518(1) of the Listing Rules

Position(s) held with the other members of the Group

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua was appointed as a Director of some of the
Company's subsidiaries on 1 July 2020, 13 July 2020, 3 August 2020
and 18 August 2020 respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

Disclosure of information of Directors and Chief Executive Officer
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules (Continued)

Other major appointments

Mr. Chen Ruey-Long, an Independent non-executive Director of
the Company, was appointed as a director of Tatung Company
(stock code: 2371), a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange, on 10 November 2021.

Further, Mr. Chen ceased to act as the head of the Secretariat and
was appointed as a vice president of Cross-Strait CEO Summit on 9
September 2021.

Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an Independent non-executive Director of the
Company, ceased to act as the independent director of Nyquest
Technology Co,, Ltd. (stock code: 6494), a company listed on the
Taiwan GreTai Securities Market, on 7 July 2021.

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, an Independent non-executive Director of
the Company, ceased to act as the director of TECO Electric and
Machinery Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1504), a company listed on Taiwan
Stock Exchange, on 22 July 2021.

Approval of Director’s service contract

On 17 December 2021, the Board approved all the service contracts
and letter of appointment entered into between the Company
and each of the directors for a term of one year commencing on 1
January 2022.

0] Pursuant to the service contracts, the annual Director’s fee
of Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang, the Non-executive Director, has
been revised to HK$600,000 with effect from 1 January 2022.

(i) Pursuant to the letter of appointments, the annual Director’s
fee of Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant and Mr. YANG
Shih-Chien, the Independent Non-executive Directors, has
been revised to HK$370,000 with effect from 1 January 2022.

(i) On 20 January 2022, the Board has approved the special
bonus of NT$600,000 and NT$500,000 to be awarded to Ms.
LU Yu-Min and Ms. LIN Yen-Ling respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Nomination Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman),
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN
Yi-Fan respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy aiming at
setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company's
Board and having an appropriate proportion of Directors who
have direct experience in our key markets, with different ethnic
background, of both genders, reflecting our business strategy. All
appointment will be based on merit.

The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy
aiming at setting out the criteria and process in the nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and ensuring
the Board has a balance of skills, experiences and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company as well as the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
A5. Nomination Committee (Continued)

A summary of the director nomination policy is set out below:

Criteria adopted for selection and recommendation for directorship
In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following criteria should be considered:

Character and integrity.

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy.

Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination process

(@)

Appointment of new director

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
rank them by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board should make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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EEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A.

Directors (Continued)
A5.  Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination process (Continued)
(b)  Re-election of Director at general meeting
(M) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

Where the board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed in
the circular to shareholders and/or explanatory statement
accompanying the notice of the relevant general meeting
in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable laws
and regulations.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board annually and making recommendations to the Board on
selection of candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board
Diversity Policy. It also assesses the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock
Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

A5.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021. During the year 2021, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Director
Nomination Policy and conducted an annual review of the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board pursuant
to the CG Guidelines and code provision A.5.2 (which has been
renumbered as code provision B.3.1 with effect from 1 January
2022) of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee also assessed
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and no material
matter was identified during the year.

Save as the above, the Nomination Committee has performed
corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1
(which has been renumbered as code provision A.2.1 with effect
from 1 January 2022) of the Code on Corporate Governance for the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

Aé.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
formal and tailored orientation training to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on the Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

During the year 2021, all Independent Non-executive Directors
are members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. Some Non-executive Directors are
members of the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2021 are set out under “Directors’
Attendance and Training Records” on page 25 of this Annual
Report.

Securities transactions made by Directors and relevant employees
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
with all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that the required
standard of the Model Code has been complied with throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the “Company’s
Guidelines”), which are equally stringent as the Model Code, in
respect of securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Company who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company pursuant to code provision
A.6.4 (which has been renumbered as code provision C.1.3 with
effect from 1 January 2022). No incident of non-compliance with
the Model Code or the Company’s Guidelines by the Company’s
relevant employees has been noted after making reasonable

enquiry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
A.

Directors (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board
and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company, and is collectively responsible for directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board directly, and
indirectly through its committees, leads and provides direction
to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group's operational and financial
performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated to management team.

Continuing professional development for Directors

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company organised one Directors’ training
on the regulations in relation to the internal control and risk
management of Hong Kong listed companies.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the
Directors and members of senior management, which set out
(a) the principal continuing obligations of the Company and the
Directors as a result of the listing of the securities of the Company
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems
and procedures that the Company, its Directors and senior
management should follow in order to ensure compliance with
such obligations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.

B. Remuneration of Directors and senior management and
board evaluation

B1.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors, namely Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman), Mr. CHEN
Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, Dr. LEI Chien and Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
respectively.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Executive Directors, assessing performance of Executive Directors
and approving the terms of Executive Directors’ service contracts,
and determining or making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s remuneration packages of individual Executive and
Non-executive Directors and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Remuneration of Directors and senior management and
board evaluation (Continued)
B1. Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensures
that no director or any of his/her associates was involved in
determining his or her own remuneration. It also ensures that
remuneration levels should be sufficient to attract and retain

directors to run the Company successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

B2. The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2021. During the year 2021, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and recommended the approval of the
proposed bonus awards for all employees and senior management;
reviewed and recommended the adjustments of the Directors’ fee
of Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. LU Chi-Chant
and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien; and reviewed and recommended the
renewal of Director’s service contracts and letters of appointment
of all Directors. With reference to the Remuneration Committee
Charter, the Remuneration Committee members had carefully
reviewed and considered the contribution of each of the Directors
to the Group, the Directors’ experience in the beauty and spa

business and the market rate paid by comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement

internal resources where appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
C.

Accountability and audit

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management's strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans
and actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts for each financial
period, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting
policies;

made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 110
to 112.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
C.

Accountability and audit (Continued)

C1.

Cc2.

Financial reporting (Continued)

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

Risk management and internal control

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined authority
for implementation by key business processes and office functions,
including project management, manufacturing and procurement,
financial reporting, human resources and information technology.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
C.

Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Company's risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed with the principles to enhance the operation
effectiveness, reduce loss in assets, ensure the reliability of financial
reports and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations.

The systems cover the factors including, among others,
environment control, risk assessment, activity control, information
and communication, and internal surveillance.

The Company organises personnel and seeks assistance from
external professional advisory institutions to establish the risk
management and internal control systems which are subject to
the review by the Company’s management team and approval by
the Audit Committee and the Board.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly
to identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group
and various aspects including key operational and financial
processes, regulatory compliance and information security. Self-
evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each department.

The management regularly reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and compliance
with best practices. In coordination with department heads, the
management assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress,
and reports to the Audit Committee on all findings and the
effectiveness of the systems. The Chief Audit Consultant also
reports to the Audit Committee on the implementation of internal
control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C. Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Internal Audit Department was established in early 2016
to enhance risk management and internal control systems in a
timely manner. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Internal Audit Department examines key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provides the
effectiveness of its implementation and recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

The Company has adopted a whistle-blowing policy to facilitate
its employees to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting control or other matters of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board conducted
a review of the risk management and internal control systems
covering the year 2021 and considered that such systems of
the Group had been implemented effectively and adequately.
The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company'’s Directors, officers, senior
management and Relevant Employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
C.

Accountability and audit (Continued)

Cc2.

a.

Risk management and internal control (Continued)

The Board confirms that it has received confirmation from the
management that the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems are effective.

Audit Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Audit Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and one
Non-executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman),
Mr. LU Chi-Chant, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien and Ms. LIN Shu-Hua,
respectively. The majority of the Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors, with Mr. LU Chi-Chant
possessing the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting and related financial management expertise.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members
is a partner of the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee is authorized by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information
it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to
cooperate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice; and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

C. Accountability and audit (Continued)

.

C4.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021. During the year 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 and interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2021 and significant issues on the financial reporting and
compliance procedures and arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties. During the year 2021,
the Audit Committee also met with the external auditors twice
to discuss audit issues, before recommending to the Board for
approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which forms part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the
Group's auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to
HK$2,344,000 and non-audit services of review of interim results
amounted to HK$200,000 which were reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee.
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TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
D. Delegation by the Board
D1. Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- long-term objectives and strategies;

- extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- preliminary announcements of interim and annual results;

- material banking facilities;

- material acquisitions and disposals;
- material connected transactions; and
- annual internal controls assessment.

D2. Board Committees
The Board has established four Board Committees (namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee) that undertake
work on its behalf with specific terms of reference setting out
their roles and functions available at the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

D. Delegation by the Board (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.

Executive Committee

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Executive Committee
comprises two Executive Directors and three Non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson), Mr. PAN Yi-Fan,
Ms. LU Yu-Min, Ms. LIN Shu-Hua and Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang
respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) and track
performance.

No Executive Committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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EEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
E.

Communication with shareholders

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees
or their respective delegates are requested to attend the
forthcoming AGM.

The Company has held one AGM on 25 May 2021 since the
issuance of the last annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 (which has been renumbered as code
provision F.2.2 with effect from 1 January 2022) stipulates that the
chairman of the board of a listed issuer should attend the AGM.
The chairman of the board should also invite the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
to attend. In their absence, the chairman of the board should
invite another member of the committee or failing this, his duly
appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should be available
to answer questions at the AGM.

On the AGM held on 25 May 2021, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, the
chairman of the audit committee and Mr. YANG Shih-Chien, the
chairman of the nomination committee, were unable to attend
the Company’s AGM. The Board arranged for Dr. LEI Chien, the
Chairperson of the Board and Mr. LU Chi-Chant, an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the audit committee
and nomination committee, who are well versed in all business
activities and operations of the Group, to attend the 2021 AGM to
respond to shareholders’ questions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
E.

Communication with shareholders (Continued)

ET.

Effective communication (Continued)

The Company has optimized the planning and procedures of
general meetings by, for example, giving adequate time to all
Directors to accommodate their work arrangements and providing
all necessary support for their presence and participation at general
meetings, such that the Chairperson of the Board and all Directors
will be able to attend future general meetings of the Company.

The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2021
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Articles of
the Company, which is available at the Company's website
(www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) and the Stock

Exchange’s website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of
Directors by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication
Policy are available for download from the Company’s website
(www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company’s website: www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/
irwebsite to provide comprehensive information related to

shareholders.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District,
Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 5256-0455

Email: ir@nblife.com
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
E.

Communication with shareholders (Continued)

ET.

E2.

Effective communication (Continued)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company'’s Articles is also available on the Company’s website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of the
AGM held on 25 May 2021. These procedures were also explained
at the commencement of AGM held on 25 May 2021.

A representative of the Company's Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the AGM
held on 25 May 2021.

Poll results were published on the same day following
the AGM held on 25 May 2021 and posted on the website
of the Stock Exchange and that of the Company at
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

E. Communication with shareholders (Continued)

E2.

E3.

Voting by poll (Continued)

Investor relations

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for good investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the
investor relations section of the Company's website:
www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy setting out the
principle and guidelines to be applied by the Company in
respect of declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as
dividends to the shareholders.

F. Company Secretary
During the year 2021, Ms. Ho Siu Pik of Tricor Services Limited, is an
external service provider and was engaged by the Company as its

Company Secretary. Her main contact person at the Company is Ms.
Jenny ZHU (Chief Legal Counsel).

Ms. Ho has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year 2021.
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EEkGREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. LEI CHIEN (ALIAS JOANNA LEI)

Aged 63, is the Chairperson of the Company. She was appointed as the
Company's Executive Director on 26 October 2018. She is also the chairperson
of Executive Committee and a member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. She is currently a director of some of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Dr. Lei is currently an executive director of Pacific Construction
Co,, Limited* (K F2ZAXD B R A 7)), a company listed on Taiwan Stock
Exchange (TWSE: 2506). Dr. Lei is also serving on the board of a number of non-
profit organisations such as the Chinese Childrenhome and Shelter Association*
(PEFHEIEZERZH D) and the National Women's League* (FH 2
R B% B A &). She has over 30 years of experience in the media and
broadcasting sector and corporate management. Dr. Lei began her career as a
media and development scholar at the University of Pennsylvania from 1984 to
1987. From 1987 to 1996, she worked in the media conglomerate Capital Cities/
ABC, Inc. in New York. She was eventually promoted to Vice President and was
one of the highest ranking Asians in mainstream American media. From 1997
to 2002, Dr. Lei was an investment partner of Baring Communication Equity
Asia in Singapore. Her investment activities included equity investment, debt
restructuring, and merger and acquisitions in telecom, media, and information
technology industries across the Asia Pacific region excluding Japan. In 2000,
Dr. Lei returned to Taiwan and from 2003 to 2004, she was an executive director
of Eastern Broadcasting Company Co., Ltd (“EBC"). She has been elected as
senator at the Legislative Yuan of the Republic of China in 2005 and until 2008.
Dr. Lei was appointed as the chairman of a government-owned enterprise,
Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor Co,, Limited* (& P98 R & 2 5415 B BR 2 7)) in 2008.
From 2009 to 2017, Dr. Lei has worked again in EBC as a board director. Dr. Lei
served three consecutive terms as an independent director in the IBF Financial
Holdings Co.,, Ltd., previously known as Waterland Financial Holding Co., Ltd.* (B4
ZE SRR AR]), a company listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE: 2889).
Dr. Lei obtained a bachelor of arts degree in foreign languages and literature
from the National Taiwan University in June 1980. She has received a master
of arts degree in June 1983 and a doctor of philosophy in June 1996 from the
University of Pennsylvania (Philadelphia).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. PAN YI-FAN (ALIAS IVAN PAN)

Aged 50, was appointed as the Company's Executive Director on 26 October
2018. He is also a member of Executive Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Pan was the chief strategy
officer at Eastern Media Group and worked as the general manager of Eastern
Integrated Marketing, Inc. from 2017 to 2019. He has more than 10 years of
experience in private equity investment and corporate management. Prior to
joining Eastern Media Group and Eastern Integrated Marketing, Inc. in February
2017, Mr. Pan worked as a consultant at McKinsey & Co. from 1999 to 2005.
He was then a vice president at Crimson Investment from 2005 to 2007 and a
director at Deutsche Bank from 2007 to 2010. He has worked as a director at
the CID Group in Shanghai from 2010 to 2017. Currently, Mr. Pan is a partner
of NFC (Taiwan) Management Ltd. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor of business
administration degree from National Taiwan University in June 1993 and he
received a master of business administration degree from the University of
Michigan in April 1999.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LU YU-MIN (ALIAS VICKY LU)

Aged 57, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
Ms. Lu is the consultant for cosmetic business of Far Eastern Silo & Shipping
(Panama) S.A. since October 2018. Ms. Lu has over 25 years of experience in
the luxury retail and cosmetics industry with a solid understanding of Chinese
consumers and the Chinese markets. Ms. Lu previously worked for The Estee
Launder Companies for over 14 years, managing brands including Estee Lauder,
Clinique, MAC Cosmetics, Bobbi Brown, Origins, La Mer, Darphin and Aramis as
managing director of the beauty product group'’s Taiwan Affiliate from 1999
to 2011. Ms. Lu then became the vice president and general manager of Bobbi
Brown International, overseeing five global regions based out of its New York
headquarter. Ms. Lu also has experience in management of buying, operations,
logistics, sales and marketing for global brands such as Celine, Salvatore
Ferragamo and COACH when she worked for DFS from 1989 to 1990, and Bally
Hong Kong from 1991 to 1992. From 2014 to 2016, Ms. Lu has also provided
end-to-end e-commerce business services to Shanghai Baozun E-Commerce
Limited* (L /S EBEE T AR A 8)). Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree
in journalism from National Chengchi University in June 1986.
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EEREREEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. LIN SHU-HUA

Aged 59, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 16
November 2018. She is also a member of both Executive Committee and
Audit Committee of the Company. She is currently also a director of some of
the Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Lin is currently an independent director of
Cashbox Partyworld Co., Ltd. (TWSE: 8359), a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange. Ms. Lin was the vice president of the finance department of
Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd.* (R&E S ER MDA R A 7))
between January 2005 and September 2008. In April 2016, Ms. Lin re-joined
the same company, holding the same position since then. After obtaining her
qualification as a Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China in August
1996, Ms. Lin has since then worked at the finance department of various
companies, including Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd* (RFARERBERMNAE
R /A &)), Eastern Multimedia Co., Ltd.* (RFRE BRI TN AR A 5)) and
Sensen Home Shopping Co., Ltd.* GR#x B B/ H B R A 7)), accumulating
over 20 years of experience in total. Ms. Lin graduated from the Department
of Accounting at National Chung Hsing University in 1987 and obtained an
executive master degree of business administration from the National Taiwan
University in 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN SHOU-HUANG

Aged 69, was appointed as the Company’s Non-executive Director on 25
January 2019. He is also a member of Executive Committee of the Company.
He obtained a master degree in law from the Chinese Culture University and
subsequently obtained a doctoral degree in law from the National Taiwan
Ocean University. He is currently a part-time professor in the Institute of
Marine Law of the National Taiwan Ocean University. Mr. Chen used to serve as
parliamentary vice minister of Taiwan Ministry of Justice, the prosecutor of the
Supreme Court Prosecutor’s Office, the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court of
Taiwan and the Head Prosecutor of various districts in Taiwan. During the period
when he served as the Chief Prosecutor of the High Court, he was appointed as
the president of Taiwan After-Care Association and the Association for Victims
Support.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG (ALIAS STEVE CHEN)

Aged 73, was appointed as the Company’s Independent Non-executive
Director on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics
from National Chung-Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the
Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held
various positions and represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan
in various countries and was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in
Belgium from 1974 to 1979. Mr. Chen was the Board Chairman of the Institute
for Information Industry in Taiwan from 2008 to 2009. Mr. Chen is currently the
Board Chairman of SINOCON Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan and
the vice president of Cross-Strait CEO Summit. He is also a director of HannStar
Board Corporation (TWSE: 5469), Asia Cement Corporation (TWSE: 1102), BES
Engineering Corporation (TWSE: 2515) and Tatung Company (TWSE: 2371); a
managing director and independent director of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre
Corporation (TWSE: 1326); an independent director of INVENTEC CORPORATION
(TWSE: 2356), which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. Starting from 31
January 2020 and 27 March 2020 respectively, he is the Board Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Petrochemical Development Corporation,
Ltd. (TWSE: 1314), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and ceased to be an
independent director on 31 January 2020. From June 2011 until 10 June 2014,
he was an independent director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co., Ltd. (GTSM: 3452),
listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market. He was a director of GINTECH
ENERGY CORPORATION (TWSE: 3514), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until
30 October 2017. He was an independent director of Walsin Lihwa Corporation
(TWSE: 1605), listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange, until 29 May 2020. He was
the Board Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Powerchip Technology
Corporation (GTSM: 5346), listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market, until 12
August 2020. He was also a director of Bank of Panhsin in Taiwan, Teknowledge
Development Corporation and Powerchip Semiconductor Manufacturing Corp.
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EENSHEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LU CHI-CHANT

Aged 70, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 18 December 2015. He is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He is currently an independent non-executive director of Eagle
Nice (International) Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02368), and an independent director of
LEALEA ENTERPRISE CO,, LTD (TWSE: 1444), HannStar Board Corp. (TWSE: 5469)
and Global Brands Manufacture Ltd. (TWSE: 6191), all listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange. From May 2015 to July 2021, Mr. Lu was an independent director of
Nyquest Technology Co,, Ltd., a company listed on the Taiwan GreTai Securities
Market (GTSM: 6494). From June 2015 to June 2018, Mr. Lu was an independent
director of Li Peng Enterprise Co., Ltd. (TWSE: 1447), a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From June 2014 to May 2017, Mr. Lu was an
independent director of K Laser Technology Inc. (TWSE: 2461), a company listed
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. From 2012 to 2013, Mr. Lu was an independent
director of First Sino Bank, a licensed bank established in the People’s Republic
of China. Mr. Lu obtained a bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering from
National Taiwan University in 1974 and passed the professional qualification
examinations in Taiwan for certified public accountant in 1983 and for securities
investment analyst in 1988. During the period from 1976 to 1984, Mr. Lu
worked as a mechanical engineer in Formosa Plastics Corporation, a company
established in Taiwan which is principally engaged in the manufacturing of
plastic raw materials and products. Mr. Lu joined Deloitte & Touche Taiwan as
an auditor in 1984 and he became a partner there in 1986. Mr. Lu left Deloitte &
Touche Taiwan in 2011.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG SHIH-CHIEN

Aged 77, was appointed as the Company's Independent Non-executive Director
on 16 November 2018. He is also the Chairman of Nomination Committee
and a member of both Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of Global Strategic
Investment Management Inc,, a board director of Tecom Co,, Ltd. (TWSE: 2321),
Yageo Corporation (TWSE: 2327) and Mitac Inc. (formerly listed TWSE: 8122), an
independent director of TOPKEY Corporation (TWSE: 4536), WUS Printed Circuit
Co., Ltd (TWSE: 2316) and Tong Hsing Electronic Industries, Ltd. (TWSE: 6217). He
was a board director of TECO Electric and Machinery Co., Ltd (TWSE: 1504) from
June 2018 to July 2021. Mr. Yang was a national policy advisor to the President
of the Republic of China between January 2009 and May 2016. Prior to that, Mr.
Yang already worked in the government of the Republic of China for more than
28 years, such as the director of the Planning and Evaluation Division of the
National Science Council, Senior Vice Minister of the Ministry of Economic Affairs
and Minister of State. Mr. Yang also worked as a research engineer at the Chung
Shan Institute of Science & Technology between November 1973 and January
1978. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering from
the National Taiwan University in June 1967. Mr. Yang subsequently obtained
a master and a doctor degree in electrical engineering from Northwestern
University in June 1971 and August 1973 respectively.

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. LIN YEN-LING

Aged 58, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 26
October 2018. She is currently also a director of some of the Company's
subsidiaries. She graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from National
Chengchi University in Taiwan. Ms. Lin has been working in Eastern Group since
May 2018 as Chief Marketing & Sales Officer of Eastern Media International
Corp., Chief Marketing Officer of Eastern Home Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd., and
Chief Sales Officer of ETtoday Co., Ltd. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Lin was the
general manager of Lintas China Group from 2016 to 2017. From 1997 to 2016,
Ms. Lin had worked at Eastern Broadcasting Co,, Ltd. as Chief Operation and
Sales Officer and Havas Worldwide as Executive Vice President of Greater China
and Chief Executive Officer of Taiwan.
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profiles

EEREREEERE

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Ms. Ho, is an Executive Director of Corporate Services of Tricor Services
Limited (“Tricor”), an Asia’s leading business expansion specialist specializing
in integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Ho has over 20
years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and has been providing
professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as
multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Ho is currently the company
secretary of five listed companies on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, including
the Company, China Rundong Auto Group Limited (stock code: 1365),
Goodbaby International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1086), SPT Energy Group
Inc. (stock code: 1251), Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code: 102) and
Genor Biopharma Holdings Limited (stock code: 6998). Ms. Ho is a Chartered
Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and a Fellow of both The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute in
the United Kingdom. She is a holder of the Practitioner’'s Endorsement from The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. (Note: The Company has engaged
Tricor as external service provider and appointed Ms. Ho as the Company’s
company secretary since 26 February 2021

*  For identification purpose only.
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The Directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in (a) manufacturing and sales of a range of products including skin
care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health supplements and make-
up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand and beauty apparatus and (b)
provision of skin treatments, beauty and spa services, medical cosmetology
services, skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Please refer to the section headed “Management discussion and analysis” for
the discussion of business review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Management of Major Risks

Since the Group operates in a highly dynamic and competitive landscape,
continuous and effective risk management is vital for survival in hard periods
affected by the current COVID-19 pandemic. Some major risks currently being
managed are:

Product Competitiveness

Facing increasingly fierce competition in the industry, it is particularly important
to maintain brand and product competitiveness. The Group will continue to
invest, actively develop new product lines and promote the diversification of
the customer base in order to pursue greater development.

Inventory management
Inventory management and control plays a significant role in the Company’s
liquidity since bloated inventories will tie up unnecessary funds.

Online Threats

Online business is the current hot spot in the market. Since 2019, the Group
introduced Korean brands to open its self-owned online business in the
mainland. In the future, in the face of fierce competition in the online business,
the Group will continue to interact with customers through a diversified
channel strategy and provide services to customers of different consumption
and age levels.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Donations for charity

The Group made donations for charity to a total amount of HK$890,000 in year
2021.

Compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

As far as the Board of Directors and management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no material breach of, or non-
compliance, with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with employees

Competitive remuneration packages are maintained to attract, retain and
motivate capable staff members and are reviewed on a regular basis. The Group
maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to their training
and development. Professional training courses are offered to beauticians
employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

Relationship with suppliers, customers and other stakeholders
The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its suppliers and customers to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no material and
significant disputes between the Group and its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment and
communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner, the Group endeavors to comply with the applicable environmental
laws and regulations and to adopt effective measures to ensure the efficient
usage of resources, energy conservation and waste reduction. Such initiatives
include the recycling of used papers, the adoption of energy saving measures.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not been subject to
any fines or other penalties due to any non-compliance with health, safety or
environmental regulations.

For details of the Company’s environment policy and performance,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of the Company for the year 2021, which will be published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company

(www.ir-cloud.com/hongkong/00157/irwebsite) under the section of

"Announcements” in due course.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 113.

No interim dividend (2020: Nil) was paid to the shareholders during the year.
At the Board meeting held on 22 March 2022, the Directors propose a final
dividend of HKS$0.003 per share (2020: HK$0.003 per share). Details of the
dividends are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, about 14.3% and 31.5% of the Group’s revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services were attributable to the Group's largest
customer and the 5 largest customers combined.

During the year, about 10.9% of the Group's total purchases (health food) was
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier, and about 28.6% of the Group's
total purchases was attributable to the Group's 5 largest suppliers combined. To
the best knowledge of the Directors after making all reasonable enquiries, no
Director, close associate of each Director, or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) has any interest in the suppliers and/or
customers mentioned above.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2021 were fair valued
by an independent firm of professional property valuers. The fair value gain on
investment properties amounted to HK$533,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the
Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 and for the previous four financial years are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the publishing date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Dr. LEI Chien (alias Joanna LEI)
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan (alias lvan PAN)

Non-executive Directors:
Ms. LU Yu-Min (alias Vicky LU)
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (alias Steve CHEN)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

In accordance with Article 100 of the Company's Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Dr. LEI Chien, Mr. YANG Shih-Chien
and Ms. Lu Yu-Min shall retire by rotation pursuant this article.

All the above-mentioned Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange. The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

Directors are required to declare their direct or indirect interests, if any, in any

proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at Board meetings and
withdraw if appropriate.
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES
The Chairperson of the Board and the members of each of the committees of
the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Chairperson
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board)

Members of Audit Committee:
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

Members of Remuneration Committee:
Mr. LU Chi-Chant (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Shih-Chien

Dr. LEI Chien

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

Members of Executive Committee:
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson)

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan

Ms. LU Yu-Min

Ms. LIN Shu-Hua

Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang

Members of Nomination Committee:
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien (Chairman)

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. LU Chi-Chant

Dr. LEI Chien

Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
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CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) FEREEZEEW

The compositions of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the ~ NREIBEAREZ T BE - KRR FIEZ
Executive Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company as well ZE€  HFMEZEE S - TR E L RIREZEE
as the Chairperson of the Company as of date of this report are set out below: FZHEMABUARERARER

Board Committees

EEZZEE
Audit Remuneration Executive Nomination

Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors ETZenE ERZEE FMzeSe BITEEE REZES
Executive Directors BITES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson of the Board) EEELEFEEE) - M C M
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan EIR N E = M M M
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRIT = = M =
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WREL T M = M =
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BT E = = M =
Independent Non-executive Directors B FEHTEE
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRInME £ & C M S M
Mr. LU Chi-Chant ERELL M C S M
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien IHEHE A M M = C
Notes: B5E -
@ Chairman/Chairperson of the relevant Board committees C FREZZEENEF
M Member of the relevant Board committees M EHEFEZEENKE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company,
the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders were
approximately HK$10,610,000 which represents the share premium and
retained profits of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors has entered into a
Director's service contract with the Company for an initial term of one year from
1 January 2022, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other
party at least one month’s notice in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of one year from 1 January
2022, which may be terminated by either party giving to the other party at least
one month notice’s in writing.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has any unexpired service contract or letter
of appointment which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Management contracts
No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)
Remuneration of Directors, chief executives and

senior management

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and chief executives on a named
basis and the senior management by band, are set out in notes 15 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Permitted indemnity

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated
with defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as known to any Directors, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company or any of their close associates had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 347 of the SFO and the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

On 13 May 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme whereby the
Board of Directors can grant options for the subscription of the Company’s
shares to any full-time employee of the Group, the chief executive, executive or
non-executive director of the Group at the time when a share option is granted
to such person as determined by the Board at as a performance incentive and/
or reward for their continued and improved service with the Group and by
enhancing eligible participants’ contribution to the Group, in order to advance
the interests of the Company and its shareholders and such other persons.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share option was granted,
cancelled or lapsed under the share option scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, within the knowledge of the Directors, the following
persons or corporations had or deemed or taken to have an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FERR®E
REDTRGREBRDZIFE

RATEREELICETZEER

Approximate

percentage of
Number of the issued
ordinary shares  share capital of
Name of substantial shareholder Notes Nature of interest beneficially held the Company
BERERFA MBEARERT
TERRHE BB Mzt RERME ZERHEE RIEABLBEIL
Eastern Media International Corporation 1 Interest of controlled companies 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
("EMIC")
RARBER AN R QA RIEHIA AR
(TREREIRR )
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. 1 Beneficial owner 600,630,280(L) 30.00%
EREHMMEEZE)ROHBER AR EnEBA
CHAO Shih-Heng 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
it RIEHIA AR
Good Titanic Limited 2 Interest of controlled companies 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
RIEHIA RS
Insbro Holdings Limited 2 Beneficial owner 455,630,196(L) 22.76%
REZEBRAR A A EnEBA
TSAI Yen-Yu 3 Interest of controlled companies 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
g2EE RIS AR
LEE Ming-Ta 4 Interest of spouse 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
FRE foiBtEss
Next Focus Holdings Limited 5  Beneficial owner/Interest of 445,315,083(L) 22.24%
controlled companies
¥t 2PNt VNG £
Starsign International Limited 5 Interest of controlled companies 292,958,524(L) 14.63%
RSN AR
Standard Cosmos Limited 5  Beneficial Owner/Interest of 292,958,524(L) 14.63%

(L) :Long position

controlled companies
¥t PN $ VNG £
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

m

Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EMIC. As
such, the shares of the Company in which Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A.
is interested were attributable to EMIC.

Insbro Holdings Limited is wholly owned by Good Titanic Limited, which is in
turn owned as to 100% by Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng. Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng is the sole
director of each of Insbro Holdings Limited and Good Titanic Limited. As such,
the shares of the Company in which Insbro Holdings Limited is interested were
attributable to Good Titanic Limited and Mr. CHAO Shih-Heng.

Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited. Next Focus
Holdings Limited is therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and
interest of 445,315,083 shares of the Company owned by Next Focus Holdings
Limited was attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu.

Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 445,315,083 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to the SFO.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly holds 152,356,559 shares of the Company
and directly owns 100% of Starsign International Limited. Starsign International
Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos Limited, which, in turn, is
the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa Group
Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such, the 290,618,524 shares of
the Company collectively held by Efficient Market Investments Limited, Adventa
Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited and 2,340,000 shares of the
Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited (totalling 292,958,524 shares
of the Company) were attributable to Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign
International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors are not aware of
any other person (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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EEEWES

FERR®E
RADTRG RAEBERG 2178 (&)

RATEREEIOEBITZEER(E)

B

(1

Bk EXFIREEIN

ERAERFRMEEEFT)RNERIFRERR
Bz 2EMBAR - ik ERARME
(BB BRMHERARMES ZARERD
BT BN RARBIRE

IREEHERT A PR A 5] 1 Good Titanic Limited 2 &
%A * MGood Titanic Limited F i t = 4 A
B100%HEz - Bt T EERREERABR
A8 K Good Titanic Limited & B ZH—F F
At - REERBRAREAR 2R EK
7 1 %5 7] 88 PR Good Titanic Limited & it = 5
o

BEHMEM T EEH B Next Focus Holdings
Limited#J40%## 2= ° Next Focus Holdings Limited
Eit A& EE - 2 ZEGEE - BNext
Focus Holdings Limited FT#E /5 2 445,315,083% 7
NAIRM 2 S P] HREREE L -

FTHELAEREREB T Z0MEB  BEESH
REAE G0 - FRELEEFRIENERER
T FE1E 2 445,315,083 AR R AR D F A
Next Focus Holdings Limited B EHE AR
7]152,356,55908 Ik {7 - B HE % A Starsign
International Limited 100%# % ° Starsign
International Limited & Standard Cosmos Limited
ZME—R% 3 - fStandard Cosmos Limited &
Efficient Market Investments Limited * Adventa
Group Limited &2 Fortune Bright Group Limited
ZME—RRE o Atk - AEfficient Market
Investments Limited * Adventa Group Limited
K Fortune Bright Group Limited @ # A 2
290,618,524 M8 A< 2 A1 AR 17 JA B Fa Standard
Cosmos Limited B3 #5482 2,340,0000 &~
AR 15 (& 2£292,958,524 R A2 A1 AR 19) 4
%5 7] 53 5 Standard Cosmos Limited & Starsign
International Limited °

R-TE-_—F+-_A=

T—B  BERFYTITABEFMEMAL(ESH
ARAERTBABBRINRAR BN HAE
i P HEAEBELNRIEES K HAE 5
FIBEARRATHFENE LM FOX

PN

=
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ 3
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE HE

BERXREREEREREGHNZ
>

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons: REEZHBEATHETIIERRS !

1. On 16 April 2019, Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited

R-ZZF-NFEWMA+TRE  BAXED

(BAEEVRBERMBRAR]) (‘Taiwan NB”), an indirect wholly- BHEBRMOHERAR(&EZ2EAE]D (KA
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a goods procurement RlzAEZEM B AR HRRERE R
agreement (the “New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement”) with ﬁﬁﬂ’\ﬂ (TRARBEEE]) BT 3 78 om 5K B 9
Fastern Health Biomedical Co, Ltd. (RERIEFE £ BB R A A)) (‘Fastern (R REEREBRRE] - FTRRRE
Health”). Major terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement J%T‘“ BipEc EEBRFBMmaT -

are summarised below:

Nature of transactions

REMHE

Purpose

B

Pricing

EfE

During the term of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, Taiwan NB may from time
to time make wholesale purchase of products from Eastern Health such as health supplements
for on-sale to end customers.

R RREERBBZHRA - 828 AEATRARKEFRLERBE R (PIOR
B AARHREPEE -

The Directors consider that the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement provides a
framework to allow the Group to purchase products which the Group currently has no in-house
capability to manufacture but does sell to end customers as one of its ordinary and usual course
of business, e.g. health supplements at a discount, thereby reducing the procurement costs of
the Group and would help improve the financial performance of the Group.

BEERR - FRREERRBHERE—IER  USAEERTHNERBEAEERR
WEABENEEBRAKKEFHEZER  EREP —EARER—REKBRE
(R mR) - RMEEAEENRKBR AL BEINAERNEE 2 HHRE -

Depending on the nature of the products, at 60%—-70% discount to the relevant market retailing
price.

RIBERMEDE - HETMISEZEEE 260%ZE70%HTH °
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) T 25 (48)

1.

(Continued)

Annual caps

1. (&)

Pursuant to the terms of the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement, the annual cap in
respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased under the New Eastern Health
Procurement Agreement shall be as follows:

FELR BEFTRAREAER RGN REFRRAEERERZETREZ ADESEN
FEERMAT :
NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,644,675) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;
R-E-NFARA-RBE_Z-NAF+-A=1+—HERE%300000007T (1§
EHH7,64467587T)
NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
R-Z-_ZF-A-BE_T-TF+- A=+—HER¥5%80,0000007T (8
& F#920,385,801787T)
NT$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$38,223,377) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021; and
R-E-_—F—A— Eli:; ——F+ZA=+—HERHH A %1500000007T
(FBE 7 4938,223,37747T)
NT$80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,385,801) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
KRB —F—-R—-—HE-ZZT-_FRA=+—HERHHE%800000007T(IHE
72 #20,385,80187T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)
(FI3E - BIEHRBARSE  FELRDERARRARAZT - NFRA+ LA ZBRATHENE
R (BAN1.007 T HT A #3.92437) ER)
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
HABR BE-E-NFAA—HEZ-__FRA=1+—H-
As at 31 December 2021, Far Rich International Corporation (i& & & N—_E-Z—F+ZH=+—H EEH
BRR% 15 B BR A 7)) (“Far Rich”) could, directly or indirectly, control the ERODAERAB(NRE]) BEESEEE
composition of a majority of the board of directors of EMIC. As such, Far FIRRBEREEG RZE K ENHERK -
Rich was considered the holding company of EMIC for the purposes of it - BB ETHHRA - BREHBLRR
the Listing Rules. As Eastern Health was an indirect non-wholly owned B ZIERAT - BRRARRBERES
subsidiary of Far Rich owned indirectly as to 90% of its shareholding by ik 3E£§Mﬂ§ Al AREEER
Far Rich, Eastern Health was a connected person of the Company for the BHo0wE - IRIFE ETHA] - BRRE
purposes of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under RARRNG ZBEEANT - MRARERER
the New Eastern Health Procurement Agreement constituted continuing BiHZE T RET IR ZAERARF]
connected transactions of the Company. ZRHBEERS -
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EEEWESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

2.

On 16 April 2019, Natural Beauty China Holding Company Limited (B %A
ERP BN AR A R]) ('NB China”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a service agreement (“New Strawberry
Service Agreement”) in relation to the provision of Strawberry Services
(as defined below) with Strawberry Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
("Strawberry”), pursuant to which NB China will, within the validity period
of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the Strawberry
Services to Strawberry for a service fee (“Service Fees”).

Strawberry Services refer to services relating to the marketing and sales
of a variety of goods sold by Strawberry through the Strawberry Website
(being a website with domain name http.//www.strawberrynet.com
owned and operated by Strawberry), including without limitation
skincare, make-up and haircare products, perfume, men’s cologne and
health foods (“Strawberry Goods”) through the NB Website (being a
website with domain name http:/strawberrynet.nblife.com owned and
operated by NB China), including (a) goods display and merchandising,
goods search, purchase order creation, transaction management,
payment and customer services enhancement; and (b) increasing goods
exposure, integrated brand marketing, training for operations and sales,
to be provided by NB China to Strawberry.

Major terms of the New Strawberry Service Agreement are summarised
below:

Subject matter

REXZREERERGHNZ

E
2.

= ()

RZE-—AFMNA+B  BRAER
HERBERARTBAZFRRD (KA
RlzEEZENB AR EStrawberry
Cosmetics (Greater China) Limited
([Strawberry|) L 12 i Strawberry R 7 (FF &
BNT) RT3 AR 7 sk ([ % Strawberry AR 75 173
1) o Bt B AR EHR B AT FStrawberry
R ek < B AR Al Strawberry g 4t
Strawberry R7% - AURER IR 7% & ([ AR 7%
&) o

Strawberry [RIGIE B AER BB EBR B
ARERM(BNBEAEFTREEREE
18,4 B http://strawberrynet.nblife.com 2
Wuk) M Strawberry R A ML
K& StrawberryEStrawberry 43 uf
(BPAStrawberrylEE R LB Z A
http://www.strawberrynet.com 2 483y
EzgEmn(BEETRRNEER - ¥
MEEEER - K- BrhiEkEE
R ([Strawberry® fn ) 2 R% - B4
QEMEBREEE  MoER - KEF
BAEK  RHIEE  FTREEPRBERE
oo ROENEREBLE  BELEE
i - BERHERE -

#rStrawberryBR % W58 < £ Z kBt an
T~

NB China will, within the validity period of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, provide the

Strawberry Services to Strawberry for the Service Fees.

FTEEHR
WERARTS & ©
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EEEWES

REXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ RE# (1)

2.

(Continued)

Nature of transactions

RXHMHE

2. (B

During the provision of the Strawberry Services by NB China:
7 B PR3 PR BRIR i Strawberry AR 75 B9 HARS -

(a)

the parties will actively cooperate with a view to determine (and NB China shall have the
discretion to make the final decision on) the specific items and price of the Strawberry
Goods to be displayed, and the manner of such display, on the NB Website;

RIS RREBRREFAGIE  EEEE(RAEATTREBEENBEUR THIFERE
ERBRERTE)EBREMIER R Z StrawberyBE A EY @ - BEREERA
=

NB China will provide the Strawberry Services with a view to promote and/or facilitate
the placing of purchase orders (“Purchase Orders”) and payment of purchase price by
customers for the Strawberry Goods through the NB Website;

B AREP B Rt Strawbeny RS - EEMB R RREFFEEAEB/ITE
StrawberryB BV BRAERT B ((FRBBRT B ) R IRBER

NB China will, promptly upon receipt of Purchase Orders, pass the Purchase Orders to
Strawberry. Upon receipt of the Purchase Orders from NB China, Strawberry will promptly
pack and deliver the ordered Strawberry Goods in accordance with the Purchase Orders
to the customers in a manner mutually agreed by the parties;

BAET BRI EIREBRT BN S IRBRT EE X Strawberry « IR B RE
PR ERIEET 1% - Strawberry G BIRFIR B IR BB AT B8 B 2 5T BE MY Strawberry B fa P
BRI HEBEZ T ARNES

NB China will, through payment services available to customers on the NB Website,
collect the purchase price for the Strawberry Goods purchased through the NB Website
from the customers for and on behalf of Strawberry; and

BAEREKERE B AFERILE BN KRB K Strawberry[Al 5 7 WER
B RSB UL BT ER B Strawberry B MV EREB(E © I

NB China will, after deducting the Service Fees and other relevant charges, return the
collected purchase price to Strawberry in accordance with the terms and conditions
under the New Strawberry Service Agreement.

BAEF BB NIRRT E R HMAEEERE - RIBEF Strawberry BRI 138 2 15
R NG | Strawberry 3R 38 FTUCER A BR BB (B -
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EEEWESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

BAEXZIREENREASHNZ
()

2.

(Continued)

Service Fees

2. (8B

NB China is entitled to the Service Fees. For each Purchase Order accepted by Strawberry, NB
China will charge Service Fees at 25% of the gross item price of the Strawberry Goods ordered
therein as indicated on the Strawberry Website as at the date of such Purchase Order.

PR % & BAZAEEREWBERSE  gisrawberyBE MM GREEREFTEMS - BAEPE K
LR EREEET 5 B BAStrawberry A8 U BT 7R T ER B Strawberry 7 an 89 97 i 2818 9 25% 45 BR AR
BE -
Annual caps Pursuant to the terms of the New Strawberry Service Agreement, the annual cap of the Services
Fees payable by Strawberry to NB China thereunder shall be as follows:
FELR HRAEF Strawberry RIS 173 5% Z I8 TR+ StrawberryiB It B B AEFR B 2 RIFERF
ELERIT :
HK$5,250,000 from 1 June 2019 to 31 December 2019;
R-ZB-NFRRA—RE_Z-NF+-A=+—HER5250000/&TT
HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020
R_ZB_ZEF-—R—RAE_ZT_TF+_-A=+—HFER000000/ETT :
HK$9,000,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021; and
RIB_—F—A—HAE_T-_—F+-A=+—HER9000000#&TT : &
HK$3,750,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 May 2022.
R-E_—_H—RF—HAE-_T-__FRHA=+—HER375000087TT °
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
HABR B-E-—NFAA—RAZE=ZE-__FHA=1+—H-

As disclosed in item 5 below, the Directors voluntarily treat Eastern Home
as a connected person of the Company. As at 31 December 2021, since (a)
Strawberry is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Eastern Home
Shopping & Leisure Co,, Ltd. ("Eastern Home") owned indirectly as to 76%
of its shareholding by Eastern Home and (b) the New Strawberry Service
Agreement was entered into on the same date as the other connected
transactions disclosed in items 1 and 3 of this section, the Directors
consider that it is also appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry as a
connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules accordingly. As such, the transactions contemplated
under the Strawberry Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021

WIATXESEAER  EFHRASG
SBEBEARARZHEEALT - 7§A
—E_—Ff+ZA=+—8H" m#
Strawberry B R RS HBERHERA
(Tﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ)zF'EEJ%%‘F%EWE’D\ET
BRRGZEREEEL76%RE Kb
%ﬁStrawberryHEﬁ%Tﬁf’zmEéﬁizﬁkﬁ%1)323
BREEONEMEAERSRRABET -
ot - EER A Strawberry B FEIR A
ZK@E'ZF%@}\:’:)T%}DEE . AJFH
FEBSF ETRAE TUAE - Fit - 3
Strawberry R % 15 IET%@E{TZ il
BRAR R )2 S B RS



Directors’ Report

EEEREE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEXZREERERENZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) %5 (48)
3. On 16 April 2019, NB China as licensor entered into a licence agreement 3. RZZ—AFM A+ H > BAEF
with Eastern Home as licensee (the “Eastern Home Trademark Licence (tEBHF ) BERESHEWEAWHTA
Agreement”). Major terms of the Eastern Home Trademark Licence ) ET A ek ([ R ARG 5 B R iR AT Al

Agreement are summarised below:

Nature of transactions

RHME

Purpose

B

Royalty

ERE

) - EHREHBEESFAGEOET
BB T -

NB China agreed to grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use the certain trademarks
owned by the Company (the “Trademarks”) in respect of products mutually agreed between
the parties.

In respect of such mutually agreed products, Eastern Home will be able to (i) reproduce and/
or print the Trademarks on the packaging and marketing materials of such products and (ii)
broadcast, transmit, distribute and/or publish such marketing materials during the process of
marketing and sales of such products.

BAETBEREMNRREZIEX THEBTA - UREHBEHENEREAARF
EEmETER(ERD -

BNZEETHEBENER  RASIBRERNEXZERNER R EHMH L
WEE /AXNEE REZSERNEHMHERRTER 5% 28R &
BMRF LM -

The Directors consider that the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement will increase the
exposure of the Group's brand name while simultaneously generate a new revenue stream for
the Group without substantial additional costs.

ExRR RAGBIBHEFIBEFRAASEREENBELE AR RAEET
FETERATIR - TG EEREFEINLA o

Eastern Home shall pay NB China a royalty for the licence to use the Trademarks (the “Royalty”)
at 3% of the net proceeds from the sale of mutually agreed products through various channels
operated by Eastern Home (including but not limited to television, internet and catalogues etc.)
to the end customers.
RRGSBEAEFIERIRMAREZTEINERE(ERE])  2ERBEBR
REHBBLENZREE(BRHETRNER RERRERFHZI) MEREFPHESE
77 V85 195 5E B EE fn P 1S SR IRV F R 3% o
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGHNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

3.

(Continued)

Annual caps

FELR

Term

R

3. (B

Pursuant to the Eastern Home Trademark Licence Agreement, the annual cap in respect of the
aggregate Royalty payable by Eastern Home to NB China thereunder shall be as follows:
RERREGHBERRAHE  RAGIBRUERNEAEZTEIN 2 AERENF
EERWMAT

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 June 2019 to 31
December 2019;

RZB-NFRAA-—BE_ZE-AF+ZA=1+—HERH 5150000007 (1§
B #%93,822,33877T)

NT$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,096,450) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;

R-ZE_TF-A—HE_ZT_TF+_-A=1+—HERH 5200000007 (1§
B #95,096,4507% 7T)

NT$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$7,644,675) from 1 January 2021 to 31

December 2021; and

RZZE-_—%—A —E:‘L\E—%:—iJr:ﬂ =+—BER* A %30,0000007T (48
ERKI7,644,675%7T)

NT$15,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,822,338) from 1 January 2022 to 31
May 2022.
RZE——F—A—HEZZE-_—FRA=+—HEAIFE¥15000000T(HE
FA#93,822,33887T) °

If the annual cap is reached for a particular year, there will not be any further Royalty payable

by Eastern Home to NB China for that year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Eastern Home will

continue to be able to use the Trademarks.

IRE—FEEINFELER - J%%?H%%ﬁﬁﬁ/\%%@?ﬂ%?@ﬁ BAXFEXINEZE
E -BERLURTE RAGHBNAIEEERAER

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 17 May 2019, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.9243)

(3% : BEsBAR  FFLRNERAATNASA-S—AFRA+LEZBRFRENE
K (B11.008 7T 3L ¥ & #53.924370) 3 BO

From 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022.
“E-NAFANA-RAEZE-__FAA=t+—H-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

3.

(Continued)

As disclosed in item 5 below, the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Trademark
Licence Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the ET New Media Supplemental Agreement with
ET New Media Holding Limited Company (3R #x #8245 A% B 17 & PR
A A])("ET New Media”) to amend the Existing ET New Media Cooperation
Agreement.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Media
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with ET New Media to further amend the
Existing ET New Media Cooperation Agreement. For the avoidance of

Directors’ Report
EEEWES

BAEXZIREENREAGNZ
*Eﬁﬁ(f

(&)

BINTXESHBAHE  EFREEER
’E%H%QI?E%EEZIS@—TZF@LAJL%
BZEMEEEST ETARREHUAE -
Ilit RARABZERET I HEET
EIRGERARRIZFERERS -

R-ZFE_FTFLA-+-H BEER
XERBIMEBITEBROHBRA T(F%
FRATILEE ) AT L RARHT X BB # S o

[ERIIRE RARNIRRE A E W -

N—_ZE-_FTF+A=-+=H " aEBA
EERRIE AT L RARNERER T H
HF(OVUNE—FSBIIRERFRTERS

doubt, the Existing ET New Media Cooperation Agreement as amended
by the ET New Media Supplemental Agreement and the ET New Media
Supplemental Agreement (Il) ("Amended ET New Media Agreement”) is

one single contract.

The major terms of the Amended ET New Media Agreement are

summarised as follows:

Advertising Service

REER%

Pricing of Advertising
Service

EERBEE

TEHE - BRER  KRAMERHR

ek R AR R BB W TR 1578 (2 ) B AT RO
BRRRMRE S (& ((RIEFT R

HREHED R —DEREL -
RISTTRFRI R B = 2 T B IFEFB
o

Taiwan NB agrees to engage ET New Media to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements
and to organise media events, with a view to enhancing the image of the “Natural Beauty”
brand and to raise public awareness on the brand (“Advertising Service”). Taiwan NB may from
time to time instruct ET New Media to carry out advertising projects. The parties shall separately
agree on the timing, manner and fees of each specific advertising project at the appropriate
time.

RERAERERZRERRNEREE BHRERESRABKREY  EHEREA
[BAEImBERRENERENRARALE(BERBE] - 888 AEAITEETR
RARFHEBRARESER - sIANRER DB ERERFERESEE 2KE - TR
BA -

For each advertising project, ET New Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list price
of such project (being prices ET New Media offer to its clients which are Independent Third
Parties).

REEESHEAMS  RRNMEBERUEZERNRERRRATERAEBYE =71
BRRHEZ BR)REED50%HTH -
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

4.

(Continued)

4. (B

Annual Cap The fees payable by Taiwan NB to ET New Media under the Amended ET New Media
Agreement shall be subject to the following annual caps:
FELR BRIBLETTRANEB RGN - S EEAXBELERARRNEBI N2 ERANF
ELERHOT :
NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
R-ZE_TF-A—HE_Z_ZTF+-A=1+—HERHS%21,0000007T (1§
B #I5472455%7T)
NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021;
R-B-_—F—-—A—BE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HEARNA%350000007T (1§
499,120,759 7T)
NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022; and
B —F-A-REZT_F+-A=+—RHEARNE%560000007T (1§
B K14593214%7T) ¢+ &
NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.
EA;=:_¢ A—BZEZZ_=F/\A=+—HERHE%700000007T (HE
FA#18,241,518%7T) °
(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
(FF3E : RIEHRBARSE  FELRDERAARBRAT-_TF+A=+HZARMEENE
SR (BM1.0078 T 5 #7 A #53.837470) E B
Term From 1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.
HABR BE-E- NG AA—HEZ-_=F\A=1+—H-
As of 31 December 2021, FESS is a controlling shareholder of the RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H &XE
Company, and EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS. As ET New Media EMER/ARRAIERARER - MR AR
is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of EMIC owned directly as to BREEREME Z100%EERE - AR
approximately 93.90% of its shareholding by EMIC, ET New Media is a RARNERARRER 2 EEIFEZEM
connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules. BAA - RABBREREES HE#93.90%
As such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended ET New RORHE - BRI E AR B - SRR K S
Media Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the RRRZBEEAT - Bt - LIEFTRHR
Company. IR EIE THETZIRIBRARD

BZFBHERS -
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EEEREE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) 1 2% (%)

5. On22July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Supplemental 5. R-ZE-_ZF+HF-+-H AEAR
Agreement with Eastern Home, a company incorporated in Taiwan FHEEREHE(—HEERETMA Y
with limited liability, to amend the Existing Eastern Home Consignment BRRBD I RRE S BT RS
Agreement. FIRARRSHERIERE -

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home RZEZZTF+A=+=R1" ' aZERA
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with Eastern Home to further amend the ZTHERBIBIILRRESIERTH
Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement. For the avoidance of F(CINERBERREGEIBRERREE
doubt, the Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement as amended HE—FHER] - RRER  BRRES
by the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Home BHAWEAEREIBHERBE(C)
Supplemental Agreement (Il) (the “Amended Eastern Home Agreement”) BEINRERREIERERE (B

is one single contract.

AIRRGHEHE)AS—NEBRL -

Major terms of the Amended Eastern Home Agreement, are summarised KISETRARS ZER RN T E gt
below: (N

Products Procurement

Pricing of Products
Procurement

EmXBES

Taiwan NB will engage Eastern Home to sell certain products manufactured, distributed or sold
by Taiwan NB (the “Target Products”) which are selected by Eastern Home as target products (the
“Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise Eastern Home to sell the Target Products to
end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. Eastern Home shall
be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers through its own
distribution channels or third party distribution channels.

BEBRESKZERREHBHESEEASHMEE  DHIHEEZETERTBRE
Eml) MEFRGHBEEZFERFELESER(ERRKE] - ZEAXKER

REZBAKKEPHERRERIIZENEREREENF - RRESBAES
BEASAEREAF =T HHERENKRKEPHHIIHERRER

The price of the Target Products sold by Taiwan NB to Eastern Home shall be at 50% to 70%
discount to their retail price, or 80% to 90% discount to their retail price if they are test products,
sales-only products or near expiry products.
REBAEMRREIBHEZEREMBRARETEBES0NET0% HTH - S iH
RASER BHEHEERNBOINNZER @ AEBRAREZTEE0%EI%L I
e
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

5.

(Continued)

Sale Commission

HERE

Costs

RS

Trademark licence

[z )

5. (8

Taiwan NB shall pay an annual sale commission to Eastern Home as follows: (a) if the product
sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a year amounts to
NT$300,000,000 to NT$500,000,000, 5% of the product sales amount; (b) if the product
sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a year amounts to
NT$500,000,000 to NT$800,000,000, 7% of the product sales amount exceeding NT$500,000,000;
and () if the product sales from Taiwan NB to Eastern Home for Products Procurement in a
year amounts to more than NT$800,000,000, 10% of the product sales amount exceeding
NT$800,000,000.

REBAXAMNRREIBXNFEHERINOT : @REFERLEEAERERR
BUHRRS OB ERHERED ﬁé.\%300,000,000751%&&%500,000,00075 Elps
EmHEEN% ONEFEREEAETRERKBHRRGIBLERHERE
% & #500,000,0007T Z %7 & #6800,000,0007T, + Rl A8 @ %7 & % 500,000,0007T Z 54 5 &
7% ROMEFEREEAERERRBURRE B ERHETBRNAE
#800,000,0007T * Rl &8 HT & ¥ 800,000,0007T 2 mn $H & BAEY 10% ©

Taiwan NB shall be responsible for the costs in relation to the sale of Product Procurements
to end customers, including the costs associated with the marketing, transportation and
programme production (the “Costs”).
REBREAAEMNKGEPHEERKBAEMNKE - RIFEEH  BERKRREE
ERBERATHRAD -

Eastern Home shall pay Taiwan NB a royalty for licence to use the Trademarks (the “Royalty”).

RABHBANEFAIERABEAGEEREINERE(ERE] -
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EEEWES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

5.

(Continued)

5. (8

Pricing of Trademark licence The Royalty is calculated at 3%—10% of the selling price (before tax; and after deduction of any

BRI EE

Annual Cap

FELR

discount) from the sale of mutually agreed products.

ERBRHEERARABEEMEECRHRA - RERERIT) Z3%E10%T & -

The annual caps under the Existing Eastern Home Consignment Agreement were determined
based on net proceeds of sale of Target Products to end customers from Eastern Home (i.e.
sale proceeds from end customers after deduction of commission and costs of sales) (“Net
Proceeds”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Home
Supplemental Agreement (Il), the annual caps in respect of Products Procurement (covering the
Sale Commission) will be determined based on the sales amount that Eastern Home would pay
to Taiwan NB when Eastern Home made the purchase.

Such annual caps in relation to Products Procurement, and annual caps relating to the
aggregate Costs payable by Taiwan NB and the aggregate Royalty payable by Eastern Home
under the Amended Eastern Home Agreement are set out as follows:

RERRGIBRBEHBRE T 2FE LRDIBERRESIBRALHRETPHEBIEED
Z SRR NG HE RS AR R B KimE P 2 HE RS IR) ((PrSsIE

FEDERE -

RERRGEIBAAHEIRAEIBA TR (D) 26 EmRBEBFE LR
(REHERD)BRERRCSIBRERREIBIFLRBEREN S EEREINZH
EHET -

REKEIRREZEHE  FRERRKBONEE LRURESEFRIEBNERAE
EERBHBERMNEEREEBNFE EREINWOT

NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$42,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,944,911) for the Costs and
NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Royalty from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZEZEF-—A—BEZZT-TF+A=1+—0  FBFEFENFE
PR FE 7 %7 & %5 280,000,0007T (1HE 70 4972,966,071787T) * RAFEE FIRER
¥ 6 #42,000,0007C (FHE R 491094491178 7T) - FREBMFE LIREAT A
70,000,0007T (1B & 72 4718,241,518787T)

“ECFFR BERAREYNEERDAAF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

REXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ RE# (1)

5.

(Continued)

Term

R

(Note:

5. (8

NT$560,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$145,932,142) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$67,200,000 (equivalent approximately HK$17,511,857) for the Costs and
NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the Royalty from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021;

RZB - —F—A—RBEZE-_—H+-A=+—HERBEFENFEL
PR JiE /5 %7 & % 560,000,0007T (B & 72 49145,932,14287T) * BRANFEE LRER
¥ A #67,200,0007C (FBE R 4917,511,85787) - FREMFE LREAF A
140,000,0007T (F6& 7 4936,483,035/87T)

NT$840,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$218,898,212) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$105,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,362,277) for the Costs and
NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Royalty from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
RIBE-_—_F—A—HBE_ZT__F+_A=+—HRBIEFENFEL
PR JI& /5 3T & 15840,000,0007T (AB & 74 49218,898,2127870) + BN AMFE LIREA
16 %105,000,0007C (FAER#27,362,27778 L)  FRENFE LREATAK
280,000,0007T (FHE 7L 4972,966 07178 TT) © &

NT$1,050,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$273,622,765) for the Net Proceeds,
NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the Costs and
NT$280,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$72,966,071) for the Royalty from 1
January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
R_EZ=F—A—BE-ZT_=F)\A=+—"HABRBIFENFE LR
J& 7% & #61,050,000,0007T (M & PR 49273,622,7658 7T) » AR FE LIRER
¥ & %140,000,0007T (FEE P 4936,483,035%8 7T) * FREBNFE LREANAK
280,000,0007T (FRE 70 4972,966,071787T) °

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(M5t : RIESIARE  FELRDERARTDBRAR T -_ZF+A=TRZBRHAARENE

From

3 (BM1.007 7T K37 & #63.83747T) E B0

1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.

BZE-NAFAA—BE-Z-_=FNA=+—H-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

5.

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Eastern Home was accounted
for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts of EMIC as a
subsidiary thereof since EMIC could during the relevant time, directly or
indirectly, control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home. Since 1 January 2019, EMIC can no longer directly or
indirectly control the composition of a majority of the board of directors
of Eastern Home, and since then Eastern Home has not been and will not
be accounted for and consolidated in the audited consolidated accounts
of EMIC as a subsidiary thereof.

However, given that (a) EMIC is holding, directly or indirectly, altogether
approximately 25.87% of the shareholding in Eastern Home, (b) one
member of the board of directors of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Liao
Shang-Wen, is also the chairperson of EMIC, (c) FESS is a controlling
shareholder of the Company, and EMIC is the 100% shareholder of FESS,
(d) the vice president of Eastern Home, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is
the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of
the issued Shares, (€) one member of the board of directors of Eastern
Home, namely Dr. Lei Chien, is also the chairperson and an executive
Director of the Company, (f) the finance vice president of Eastern Home,
namely Ms. Lin Shu-Hua, is also a non-executive Director of the Company;
and (g) the Eastern Home Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern
Home Supplemental Agreement (Il) were entered into within a short
period of time as the other transactions disclosed in item 4 and items
6 to 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended Eastern
Home Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

Directors’ Report
EEEWES

REXZREENRERGHNZ

Rz om)
5.

(&)

E T - N\E+_A=+—HItF
B RACSHSBEARKRBEEZHBA
ANEFRER  ERBZEERE NG
ABR - TYARR R ARBIBE A AR B A A]
BEEAEEEHERESIBESTEAS
HRENWEK - BT hE—HA—8
B HABEBRTBEESEREHER
BHSBESTSRZHKNEMNMENX - mE
It RARSSEBEEBTBEARR
B RS 2 B B 2 R A R AR B PR 2 (8 BAZ AR
AIREANAHAR -

R AREQEREBREEXEESAE
HARBHEA L 2587%MHE + (b)HEHK
BBz —RESSKE BIEMEL
E)MBRREBRZER  QBEREREM
BAARBZEBRER  REZREEA
BERREEFEMEI00%EZRE : (d)
HABSHBZEEERAIEH = LE)
BREZE—RIREZHEAN  EFAE
22.76% 2 BEITIRG  @RABIEZ
—%E5FxeX8AEBFEL)MAELAR
RIZERFRATES  NRHRBHEZ
B EIA R (BIMRERZ L) MB AR R
ZHERTEEF  ROREREIBHRH
EERRRGIBHERA DS (D) WRAE
FAERFOERIZEFAFRECEAMIZ R
EEHEANRTY EEREBRABIE
BREGAARRIZHBEALTEBREE 8
EAEBST R AIE14AE - FlE © 5
BEIRRGIBHRETEHETZIRS
BN T 2 FHERERS °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global Supplemental
Agreement with Eastern Global Business Co,, Ltd. (RFx 2 Bk E 215
B R 7]), formerly known as Eastern Tenmax Direct Co,, Ltd. (RF}
KEMLEHEBMH BRAF]), a company incorporated in Taiwan with
limited liability ("Eastern Global”) to amend the Existing Eastern Global
Procurement Agreement.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) with Eastern Global to further amend the
Existing Eastern Global Procurement Agreement. For the avoidance of
doubt, the Existing Eastern Global Procurement Agreement as amended
by the Eastern Global Supplemental Agreement and the Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) (the “Amended Eastern Global Agreement”)
is one single contract.

The major terms of the Amended Eastern Global Agreement are
summarised as follows:

Nature of transactions

BAEXZIREENREASHNZ
Eﬁﬁ(f

R-_ZE_TFLtA-+-H 8EBA

FHERE fT%%HQTﬁﬁIZE GIGIED
BRAECTHERMDERAR - —MERAE
MK 2 BRAT F% REBR]) -

FIVRREBIERIBHEABETIRBERAR

EIHERB W

R-ZZF-_TF+A-+=H aZAR
TERRERATLRREKB R Z
(DIRHBBERREHRBHAFELE
—HHER] - RRLERME  BRHRENME
BB LRFRERFERBE (CEFTH
ﬁﬁ%m%ﬂﬁ%% (([REFTRZRE

Kl B—HEBEH -

RIETRZE

& BR 17 B9 £ 2R BE ka0
=

Eastern Global may from time to time make wholesale purchase of Taiwan NB products such as

health supplements, skin-care products and cosmetic products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such
products to Eastern Global at 60%~70% discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern

Global.
XEHME

BE-
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

6.

(Continued)

Annual Cap

FEER

Term

R

6. (8B

The aggregate amount of purchase to be made by Eastern Global under the Amended Eastern
Global Agreement shall be subject to the following annual caps:

REKLEITRFRERBE G RREHRBBRUMEL 2 RBASBFE LRMN
T~

NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020;
RZB_TF-A-HBE_Z_ZF+-A=+—HBEARHH&%140,000,0007T
(B & 7 #136,483,03578 7T)

NT$350,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$91,207,588) from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021;
RZB-_—F—A—-HBE_Z-_—F+ZA=+—HERHHNE%350,000,0007T
(FBE 7 4791,207,5887% 7T)

NT$700,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$182,415,177) from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022; and

R-ZZE__%—H—H if»?\::iwL:ﬂ =+—RBER & %700,000,0007T
(FHER#18241517787T)

NT$840,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$218,898,212) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.

RIB_=F—-A—-BE_ZT_=F/\A=+—HER# &%840,000,0007T (1§
210 49218,898,212787T) °

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(Fff3E : RIERIARSE  FELRDERARFARA-Z_ZTF+A=+H ZARMAEENE
SR (BM1.0078 T 557 & #53.837470) E B

From 1 June 2019 to 31 August 2023.
B_E-NEXRA-BEZ_=F/\A=+—H-

“ECFFR BERAREYNEERDAAF
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

6.

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiry, each of
Eastern Global and its ultimate beneficial owners was an Independent
Third Party. However, given that (a) one member of the board of directors
of Eastern Global, namely Mr. Chao Shih Heng, is the sole ultimate
beneficial owner of Insbro which is holding 22.76% of the issued Shares,
and (b) the Eastern Global Supplemental Agreement and Eastern Global
Supplemental Agreement (Il) were entered into within a short period
of time as the other connected transactions disclosed in items 4, 5 and
7 to 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is appropriate to
voluntarily treat Eastern Global as a connected person of the Company
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As
such, the transactions contemplated under the Amended Eastern
Global Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Retail Procurement
Agreement with Eastern New Retail Department Co,, Ltd. (REZRFTEE
BERMKBAERAT), a company incorporated in Taiwan with limited
liability (“ET New Retail”).

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the ET New Retail
Procurement Supplemental Agreement with ET New Retail to amend
certain terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement.

Major terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement and the ET
New Retail Procurement Supplemental Agreement are summarised
below:

Product Procurements

REXZREERERGHNZ

R om)
6.

(%)

N-ZE-—E+-_A=+—0 BE=E
EH— A EEREEAN - FTEKRAT
B ARZHRRERKEZEEAZE
BEME=R o AT BERQREHREIR
2—REBHENE (M= LE)BR
"W —SRESHEAA  MRERFSE
22.76% 2 B EITIRD  Rb)EREKH
nHEEREFRERERBE () WRAN
B4 SRE/ZBEMEEZHME
EXHRERHPANIY  EZRAERE
HRERABEAEARARIZHEALEE
E - BAMEEST ETRAIE4AE -
b ST RAR IR ETE T E®T
RGBRARBZ FEBERS -

—E-TFLA-+-H BEBRE
HRARNTETERMNABRAT(—HER
BT BRAR  [FEEE]
URBITZERXEHE -

RZZE-ZEF+A-+=H ' aEBERA
FHRERTTEIVRGRTTERER
FEHRRASITRRNEERBHENS
FA&ERK -

RN TERBHBALRRNTERE
T E R IEFBRI T -

Taiwan NB will engage ET New Retail to sell certain products (the “Target Products”) supplied

by Taiwan NB (the “Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise ET New Retail to sell the
Target Products to end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. ET
New Retail shall be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers
through its own distribution channels or third party distribution channels.

R ABAREBERESFTERELE

BASMHENE TER(BEEMm]) (Em

REED - G EEREEERRNTERARREPHERRERIIZENERERE
B - REMTEARBREARG D HRBRE =T 0 HRBAKIHETF HH R H

EBFEm® °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
7.

(Continued)

Pricing of Products
Procurement

ERRBEEE

Costs of Products
Procurement

EmERBEA

Annual Reward -
Products Procurement

FERB-EmRRE

Trademark Licence

R

Pricing of Trademark
Licence

BRI EE

Directors’ Report
EEEWES

REXZREENRERGHNZ

Rz om)
7. (&)

At 50%—70% discount to the relevant market retail.
LI IS E B ITES0%E70% ©

Taiwan NB shall be responsible for the costs associated with the marketing, transportation and
programme production (“Costs”) incurred by ET New Retail relating to the procurement and
sale of Target Products.
AEEBAERAERANTERRBLHEERERMELNEE - ERNFTEIEE
EAE R AR (TR AL ©

3% of the total purchase by ET New Retail will be to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual
purchase amount reaches NT$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$26,059,311); 5% of
the aggregated annual purchase amount that exceeds NT$100,000,000 to NT$300,000,000 by
ET New Retail will be rebated to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual purchase amount
reaches NT$100,000,000 to NT$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$26,059,311
to HK$78,177,933); and 7% of the aggregated annual purchase amount that exceeds
NT$300,000,000 by ET New Retail will be rebated to ET New Retail when the aggregated annual
purchase amount reaches NT$300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$78,177,933) or
above.

BRaFERBSEEN A%100000,0007T (FHE R 4926059311 TR - RRFEE
BRI RER3NIIRE TRAMZE © BEA FERBSREN S%100,0000007T E#
& #5300,000,0007T (A8 & A 426,059,311 T0 578,177,933 L) B » AR T ERBBAF A
#100,000,0007T Z #7 & #300,000,0007T F EFREB AR WATRE TRHZMNTE © RERF
B FERB R ER 5 %300,000,0007C HHERA78,177,933BTT) A LK - RHFME
&R BHT 5 %300,000,0007T FERBATETNITRETRANEE -

Taiwan NB agrees to grant ET New Retail a non-exclusive licence to use the Trademarks
(“Trademark Licence”).

BEEBAXFABEARRMTER THEBF A AERBR(AERFAT) -

ET New Retail shall pay Taiwan NB a royalty fee ("Royalty”) at 3% —10% of the selling price (before
tax; and after deduction of any discount) from the sale of mutually agreed products to the end
customers.

RRFTERERHEE T HBEERRNSEEAXINERE(ERE] HERE
BE3%=E10%FREAT : BIBREMAFTHIR)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

7.

(Continued)

Annual Cap

FELER

7. (8

Under the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to the annual caps on
the aggregate amount of purchase (covering the annual reward) and the aggregate Royalty
payable by ET New Retail under the ET New Retail Procurement Agreement and the aggregate
Costs payable by Taiwan NB. Given the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the business
landscape, pursuant to the terms of the ET New Retail Procurement Supplemental Agreement,
the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by approximately 30%. Details of the
annual caps are set out as follow:

BRERZNTERBHE  FINETRAEAARRTZTERBERRNTEREH A
(REFERR) ENRBESENEREREEAZTRNRANFELR - ZEZ
COVID-19ORBHEBMRENTE - RERZNTERBRATHANGK  FTHNESR
BRZFE LR THLZ0% - FELROFBEHINET :

NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Royalty
and NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Costs from 16
November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZBZEF+—A+ANHEZZZZF+_A=+—H HEEENFE
LR FE B3 & %70,000,0007T (FEE PR 4118,241,518%87T)  FRBHFE LIRE
A ¥ A %21,000,0007T (FEE R 495,472,455 70) * KA EE LIREAFT AL
21,000,0007T (2 7L 49547245578 7T)

NT$140,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,483,035) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Royalty
and NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Costs from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021;

RZBE-Z—F - —HEZZ-—F+-_A=+—HEESENTELREAL
¥7 8 1140,000,0007T (FEE PR 4936,483,035%870) - FREMNFE LREAT K
35,000,0007T (P8 & 7Y 479,120,759/ 7T) * ANANHIF[E R & R %7 & ¥#35,000,0007T
(FBE 7 499,120,759% 7T)
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EEEHRES

REXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ RE# (1)

7.

(Continued)

(Note:

(e

7. (8

NT$210,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,724,553) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Royalty
and NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Costs from 1
January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and

NI ZF—A—BEZZT-_—F+_A=T—HHEESENFELRER
15 #210,000,0007T (B E A #154,724,553%8 7T) - (EREBMFE LREAF A
56,000,0007C (FH & 7 #914,593 2148 7T) » AR F E R FE R #T & #56,000,0007C
(FBER#14,59321487T) + &

NT$350,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$91,207,588) for the aggregate amount
of purchase, NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Royalty
and NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Costs from 1
January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
R-B_=F-—A-—RBE_Z_=F)\A=+—HHEEsHENFELRER

¥ A ¥ 3T A #5350,000,0007T (FEE 7 4991,207,588%8 L) - A EBMNEE FIRIE
B FT A 70,000,0007T (FHE R 4718,241,5187870) * K AMEE LRE A A K
70,000,0007C (FHE 720 4718,241,5187 7T) °

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, vvhere HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)
RIERAME  FELRDERARFBRA-Z-_Z2F+A=THAZBRMAKENE
R (B11.00/8 70 3L 3 & #53.837470) B0

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.

HABR B - EF+—A+R"HE_ZT_=FN\A=+—H-

As at 31 December 2021, ET New Retail is a wholly-owned subsidiary of RZEBE-—F+-A=+—8 " BHH
Eastern Home. As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider that TERRREIBNEZEWB AR - 10
it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person IXETEMERE  EFRAKRRES
of the Company. As such, the Directors consider that it is also appropriate BEBREAARAIZ F?L}\:EEZ%

to voluntarily treat ET New Retail as a connected person of the Company bt BEERA - BEEEERER %ﬁ

and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, ?ET”F$A RIMREEE A LW A EE ST

the transactions contemplated under the ET New Retail Procurement HAIE14AE - MBEE - At - %ﬁ%ﬁ
Agreement as amended by Eastern New Retail Procurement T’i?‘”ﬁ%ﬁ%aﬁ(%ﬁﬁm%ﬁ ERBAEAWH

Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company.

BIEDBETBRETZIRSBERARAZ
SFERER S o
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EEERESE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FAEXZREEREREGNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) *Eﬁﬁ(it

8. On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Focus Media Cooperation R_ZE_TFH+A_+_H £284
and Procurement Agreement with Focus Media Dayear Taiwan Co,, Ltd FHEHOZEERNERAG(—HERAE
(D REERMD AR A R]), a company incorporated in Taiwan with AEMKZcBERAR - [DREHDFTL
limited liability (“Focus I\/led|a ). DREEEERTERZ -
On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Focus Media RZEBE-ZZTF+A=+=R1" ' aZEA
Cooperation and Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Focus ZHENBEHET LD BERESEREE
Media to adjust the annual caps under the Focus Media Cooperation and HWaAWE  UWIRBS REESERERE

Procurement Agreement.

W SR ERIFHFHE -

The major terms of the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement DRBEAEERRERZE ALY RE
Agreement and the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement HEeEREBBABRE 2T ZBARW
Supplemental Agreement are as follows: ™

Advertising Service

EE R

Pricing of Advertising
Service

RERBEE

Products Procurement

EmxE

Pricing of Products
Procurement

EmRBEE

Taiwan NB agrees to engage Focus Media to produce, publish and broadcast advertisements
and to organise media events, with a view to enhancing the image of the “Natural Beauty”
brand and to raise public awareness on the brand (“Advertising Service”).
REERAXABZZROREREE  B#HMERERS  YTHASERTY  URSIB
REIMBHOEREEARZERENOREBE (BERBE]) - 8B AXHGTEIE

ROREERARESER - SIS TREEENRRMBFEESHE Z2ERE - 7K
&%ﬁﬁ EITEBIHR

For each advertising project, Focus Media shall offer at least 50% discount to the list price of
such project (being prices Focus Media offer to its clients which are Independent Third Parties).
HEEFHEAMS @ »RERERARZEEREEINDREENEFIRBIE=7
ZEPRMZ B ED50%2 HTiE -

Taiwan NB shall supply and sell Taiwan NB’s products (“Target Products”) to Focus Media
(“Products Procurement”). Taiwan NB shall authorise Focus Media to sell the Target Products to
end customers and to use related promotional materials for such purpose. Focus Media shall
be responsible for marketing and selling the Target Products to end customers through its own
distribution channels or third party distribution channels.
REBAERRASRERHERHEREEAEZERM(EEER)(EREKED - &
EEREEREDREREAKHREPHEBRER - WAL B OE BB EFET
*ﬁr o

50%=70% discount to the Target Products’ retail price.

BEEERTEEITESNZE70% °

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021
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EEEWES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

8.

(Continued)

Annual Cap

FEER

8. (B

Under the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to
annual caps in respect of fees payable by Taiwan NB to Focus Media under Advertising
Service and the annual caps in respect of the amount of product sales by Taiwan NB to Focus
Media under Products Procurement. Given the impacts of the outbreak of COVID-19 on the
business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Focus Media Cooperation and Procurement
Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follows:

BRIED REESERRERZ  FINESRSEHESEaRERBEESREERN DR
BEXNNERNFELREEBAEEAERBERKBOORERHEERND
BOFE LR - ZEIICOVD-19RBHEBBRENTE - REDREESIENIRER
FBENIET - FTANEFREHZFEE LR TALI30% - FE FROFENAT

NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HKS$5,472,455) for the Advertising Service
and NT$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,472,455) for the Products
Procurement from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
RZEZTF+—A+AAEZZT-TF+-A=+—H BERBNFEL
B J& 357 & #521,000,0007C (FHE R #5,472,455870) * ERRENTEE LRES
% & #21,000,0007T (A8 & 7R 495,472,455 7T)

NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Advertising Service
and NT$35,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$9,120,759) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;
RIEZ—F—A—HEZF-_—F+-A=T—HEERENFELRER
15 #35,000,0007T (FHE 70 499,120,759%8 7T) * EmRBHEFE FRERFT A
35,000,0007C (#8E 72 499,120,759/& 7T)

NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Advertising Service
and NT$56,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,593,214) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
NZE——F—A—BE-Z-_—F+ A=+ HEERENFELRER
16 #56,000,0007T (FBE 1R 4914,593214%87T) - EMHEBNFE LRERFAK
56,000,0007T (& 7 4914,593 2148 7T) + K&
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Exg

WES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

8.

(Continued)

BAEXZIREENREASHNZ
()

8.

(%)

NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Advertising Service
and NT$70,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$18,241,518) for the Products
Procurement from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.

R-T-_=F—-A—HEZ

(Note:

T _—FE)N\A=Z+—HESRENEE LREAH
A M A& #70,000,0007T (FBE 7R 4918,241,5187%8 7T)
70,000,0007T (FBE 72 4718,241,51878 7T) °

EnRENTFELRES

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed

in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(BT - BIERARE

Term

R B-F—
As of 31 December 2021, FESS was a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and EMIC was the 100% shareholder of FESS. As Focus Media
is identified as a related party of EMIC under the laws of Taiwan, the
Directors consider that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Focus Media
as a connected person of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules accordingly.

On 22 July 2020, NB China, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement
with Eastern Global Business Hong Kong Co,, Ltd. CRAR 2 BB £ FE
f& 19 B BR 2 B1), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability (“Eastern Global HK").

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Global HK
Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Global HK to amend
certain terms of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement.

The major terms of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement and
the Eastern Global HK Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as
follows:

Nature of transactions

From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
—EF+—A+ARHEZZE==

FELERDERAQGAHAZS-_ZF+ A=+ HZBRATHENE
K (BM1.00 7T 537 & #63.837470) i B0

FNA=+—RH-

RZBE-—F+-_A=+—H BXA
BMEBARR 2R REFRH
BRAEERREREREMEI00%%E 2%
R o AR BRERBE S EEEWHA
ARARBER 2B  EERAEBERG
DREER AR EEATWEL
BT EHREIBUAZEEE -

RZZE-_ZTFLA-+—H BAET
B(RRalzEEE2EMBARERRSE
REEREROHARAT) (—ERES
MR ZER AT [RHREZHRES]
FIVRBREREEEE D -

RZZE-ZEF+A-+=H  88EA
EHFE R i\ﬂ'%’/’%ﬂiﬁ REFRE B
BHTHE - NETRREREBRE
Tﬁuﬁﬁ’]ﬁ:ﬂ‘mﬂ/\ °

HAEHBEEREDZERRZIEE

RIB T < TR IGRT ¢

During the term of the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement, Eastern Global HK may from

time to time make wholesale purchase of products from NB China such as food and cosmetic

products for on-sale to end customers.
REME

(BlanE G RAbAz @) - LAM4

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)
9.

(Continued)

Pricing

EfE

Annual Cap

FE LR

Term

R

As of 31 December 2021, Eastern Global HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Eastern Global. As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

BAEXZIREENREAGNZ
=)

9 (B

At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retailing price.
BAERA T 5 T EEHTES0%ZE70% °

Under the Eastern Global HK Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to annual caps
in respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the
outbreak of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Global
HK Procurement Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps
downwards by approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:
BEBERREHREERBHZ FINETRAEERHBEENEREENFRE LR - 28
F|CoVID-19% 15 TMPéﬁiaiRE’J%% RERFEHELERBBENGK > sTOESH
EZEE FRTHEL30% - FE EROFBAT

HKS$5,250,000 from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
N EFE+—ATRBEZEEF T -A=+—HER52500008 T :

HK$10,500,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;
N B —F—-fA—HE-T-—F+-A=1+—HER10500000/&7T :

HK$17,500,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
R-E - —F—A—HE-_T-__F+-A=1+—HER17500000/87 : &

HK$26,250,000 from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
N R =F—RA—HREZT-=F \A=1+—HES26250000ETT °

From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
A-ET-TF+—AtABE-F-ZF/\A=t+-A-

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H " £H=2
KEBARRENEZEWBERR - 0

that it is appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Global as a connected
person of the Company. As such, the Directors consider that it is also
appropriate to voluntarily treat Eastern Global HK as a connected person
of the Company and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Global HK
Procurement Agreement as amended by Eastern Global HK Procurement
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.

ENESEMEE  EERABRHRRIK
BERERARNARIBEALIEEE -
t BEERAEBRHZEHEEERRE
¢ RIBALTNBEEE  BFA& L™

FAISE14AE - Bt - RRZIREBHE
Tﬁ%m(%%% RERBERERREE aT)IE
THHTR ZEBRA QR 2 ERE
%o

“ECFFR BERAREYNEERDAAF

93



94

Directors’ Report

Exg

WES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

10.

On 22 July 2020, Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics Company
Limited (=78 B AE BBt A mBR 2 F]), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“NB Shanghai”), entered into the Eastern
Zhenyu Procurement Agreement with Eastern Zhenyu e-Commerce
Company Limited (RRBFEFHABKER A A
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability (“Eastern Zhenyu”).

), @ company

On 23 October 2020, NB Shanghai entered into the Eastern Zhenyu
Procurement Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Zhenyu to amend

REXZREERERGHNZ
R ()

10.

N=F-BELA-t=A Lﬁa%
LB MBERAR (KA T2 ME
SRR - [BA% LS ) RERES
ETHBERA A (— R EE MR
2ERAT  [RRRT)IIRERS
SRR -

R-ZZF-_TF+A-+=H BAXEL
BERRETILRRETREM T

certain terms of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement. o LBEIRARETFHRERENE THR
e

The major terms of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement and the RAREFHRBHERRREFRERT

Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as follows: WEIEEERAT

Nature of transactions

During the term of the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement, Eastern Zhenyu may from
time to time make wholesale purchase of products from NB Shanghai such as food and
cosmetic products for on-sale to end customers.

REUE REREFRBHZHARA  RREFAMKANEAX EHERBER(PINR M
RAbdem) - MR IHEFEE o

Pricing At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retail price.

EE BEET ST EBITES0%E70%

Annual Cap Under the Eastern Zhenyu Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed to the annual caps
in respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the
outbreak of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Zhenyu
Procurement Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps
downward by approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:

FELR BRERRETFRERZ AT REERASBENRRAENFE LR - ZEZ|

COVID-19RIBH AR RENTE - RERFETRBMHITIHAENGR -
2R ERT#L30% - FEEROFBET :

RINEHRE

RMB15,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$16,854,547) from 16 November 2020 to
1 December 2020;

ngfii‘f’ AtTRBZEZZ-_ZF+_A=+—HERARE15400,000

TL(HEE R #116854,547%8 7T)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’

Directors’ Report

EEEHRES

REXZREERERGHNZ

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) ~ RE# (1)

10.

(Continued)

(Note:

10. (&)

RMB79,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$87,337,200) from 1 January 2021 to 31

December 2021;

E’\ 2 —-A-HBET_—F+ZA=1+—HERAR798000007T (1§
A ,087 337,200 7T) :

RMB127,400,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$139,433,074) from 1 January 2022 to
1 December 2022; and

EA_7__¢ A— Eli_?__EJr R=+—HERAR127,400,0007T

(FBE 7 47139,433,07478 7T)

RMB91,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$99,595,053) from 1 January 2023 to 31
August 2023.
R-ZE_=F—-—A—HEZZT_=FN\A=+—HERAR1,0000007T(HHE
7 #4999,595,0537 7T) °

For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = RMB0.9137)

(st : RIESIARR  FELRDERARATDERA T -_TFTA=THZBHABRENE

= (BM.007 7T XA R#0913770) 2 B0

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.

HiFR BE-E-_EF+—A+R"HEZE-_=FN\A=+—H-

As of 31 December 2021, Eastern Zhenyu is indirect wholly-owned by RZZE-_—F+A=+—0 BZHRE
Mr. Chao Shih Heng, who is the sole ultimate beneficial owner of Insbro FHEHTELEREZEZERE - BT
which is holding 22.76% of the issued Shares. As such, Eastern Zhenyu EERRE M —RKREERA M
is a connected person of the Company for the purposes of the Listing RIEFEB2276%2 BTG - Bt -
Rules and the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Zhenyu BEETHRE - RREBEFALRQRZH
Procurement Agreement as amended by Eastern Zhenyu Procurement EALT  BREREFHEEHZ(ERRE
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions FREMABBE B TRETRSE
of the Company. RARBZHERERS -
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EEERESE
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ FEXZRESREAGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) *Eﬁﬁ(it
11. On 22 July 2020, NB China entered into the Strawberry Procurement 11, R-ZE_ZTF+HA-+-H GAEF
Agreement with Strawberry Cosmetics (Services) Limited, a company [ £8 Strawberry Cosmetics (Services) Limited
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability (“Strawberry II'). (—HREAITIMKL 2 ERAF
[ Strawberry 1)) 5] 32 Strawberry 5B 177 % °
On 23 October 2020, NB China entered into the Strawberry Procurement RZEBEZZTF+A=+=H ' BAEF
Supplemental Agreement with Strawberry Il to amend certain terms of H?@Strawberry IIET 3Z Strawberry $R B 48 78
the Strawberry Procurement Agreement. Wk o MEFT StrawberryiREEHZ S T
& o
The major terms of the Strawberry Procurement Agreement and the StrawberryER & 1558 M StrawberryiR B 78
Strawberry Procurement Supplemental Agreement are as follows: R EZEROT ¢

Nature of transactions

REME

Pricing

EfE

Annual Cap

FELER

During the term of the Strawberry Procurement Agreement, Strawberry Il may from time to
time make wholesale purchase of products from NB China such as food and cosmetic products
for on-sale to end customers.

A StrawberryBR S 1755 SRR A + Strawberry 18] B A B A E P Bt ERBE M (IR
mM&iadm)  MRKmEFEE -

At 50% to 70% discount to the relevant market retailing price.
BAERAT 5 T EEHTRES0%E70% °

Under the Strawberry Procurement Agreement, the parties agreed on the annual caps in
respect of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the outbreak
of COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Strawberry Procurement
Supplemental Agreement, the parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follows:

BIE StrawberryER B % - & ’Jéﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ HEENERARNFE LR - ZE3
COVID-19 [ ¥4 ﬁE&iRE’J & - REStrawbeny RBEBRE R HENER - FTOESEE
2B FE LR THAL30% EZHRFE EROFBOT :

HKS5,250,000 from 16 November 2020 to 31 December 2020;
N _E_TF+— A+ RNAZEZZ_ZEF+ A =1—HER5250000/ETT :

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021
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INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

11.

(Continued)

Directors’ Report
EEEWES

BAEXZIREENREAGNZ
=)

11.

(&)

HK$10,500,000 from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021;

R-_T_—%—AF—B=

T - —F+=-A=+—HFEA10,5000008 T :

HK$17,500,000 from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022; and
R-E - —H—R—RE_ZT-__F+-A=+—HER17500000TT : &

HK$26,250,000 from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.

E/\_v—_fﬁ )E] HE-ZT—=

Term
HAR S e
As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors voluntarily treat Eastern
Home as a connected person of the Company. As of 31 December 2021,
since (a) Strawberry Il is a direct non-wholly owned subsidiary of Eastern
Home owned directly as to 76% of its shareholding by Eastern Home;
and (b) the Strawberry Procurement Agreement and the Strawberry
Procurement Supplemental Agreement entered into within a short
period of time as the other connected transactions disclosed in items
4 to 10, 12 and 13 of this section, the Directors consider that it is also
appropriate to voluntarily treat Strawberry Il as a connected person of the
Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the Strawberry
Procurement Agreement as amended by Strawberry Procurement
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company.

On 22 July 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Franchise
Agreement with Eastern Home.

On 23 October 2020, Taiwan NB entered into the Eastern Home Franchise
Supplemental Agreement with Eastern Home to amend certain terms of
the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement.

From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.
—EE+—A+RBEZ_=F/\A=+—RH-

—F )\A=+—HFE 26250000/ T °

EEZQDLY%SIEFﬁT&E;E %%Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

BRHERBEARRBEAL RZT=
—¢+ A=+—8 " @K@ Strawberry Il
RRREHIBEERIFTENBLAR - A
RREOBEEERH76%R%E : R(b)
Strawberry?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%%&Strawberryﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
WENR ARSI FE4E10 - 12 R 13BEATHHEE
2 H A REE AT %EAﬁH—rHﬁWuT_L E5E=)
R4 8 FES Strawberry 1148 A& 7K A 7] B &
ALTTRBEE - Eitt » StrawberryBR B 7
& (& Strawberry I BB R HRBE) BT
BETHRIBERAAFNBERER
5.

RZZEZTHELA-+=-H AZER
XERKRBHBIULRREZBINEH

.
-
e

W_ZE_ZTF+HA=+=H /&84
%Eﬁ%ﬁ’%%%ﬂi?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂﬂEﬁ?ﬁ
T - BRI RARE Z BB H =
ATER -
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EEERES
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEXZRESERERENZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued) R
12.  (Continued) 12, (&)
The major terms of the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement and the RHEGSENBHENERESSENE
Eastern Home Franchise Supplemental Agreement are as follows: R EZTITERTOT

Nature of transactions

RXEMHE

Pricing

EE

Annual Cap

FE LR

Taiwan NB agreed to grant Eastern Home a non-exclusive licence to use certain Trademarks
in respect of certain skin care products and provide Eastern Home with consultancy services
in connection with Eastern Home's operation and management of spa business under the
brand name “Natural Beauty”. Eastern Home may from time to time make wholesale purchase
of Taiwan NB products, and Taiwan NB shall sell such products to Eastern Home at certain
discount to relevant retail price for on-sale by Eastern Home.
REBAEXERERTRREGHE —TEIEBRTAIE  UstEe THERERARST - It
RRGHBLLELERBAEIMEE TKEEBRRRG S BRHDB AR - R
SHBATRHHERBLEAAXERRAEERERRBBTEE L —THHNMR
RGHBLEZSER  MBHERRGHBEETHEE -

Same pricing with other franchisees, which varies from time to time ranging from 50% to 70%
discount to the relevant market retailing price.

HEMKAREENEEBER  TREAMTR > BHEETEEEENENE
70% °

Under the Eastern Home Franchise Agreement, the parties agreed to annual caps in respect
of the aggregate amount of goods to be purchased. Given the impacts of the outbreak of
COVID-19 on the business landscape, pursuant to the terms of the Eastern Home Franchise
Supplemental Agreement, parties agreed to adjust such annual caps downwards by
approximately 30%. Details of the annual caps are as follow:

BRERREGIBENBRE  FINETREAHESBENARAENFE LR - ZEE
COVID-19ORBEHEBMRENTE - RERREIBINBHAHZNGR  FTHNESR
BEHZFERE FRTAL30% - FE EREOFENT -

NT$42,000,000 (approximately HK$10,944,911) from 16 November 2020 to 31 December
2020;

RZZB_ZBF+—-A+RNBEZ_ZF+_A=+—BERN 4542000000
TL(#910,94491 178 7T)
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EEEHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ BEIFIREENREREGNZ
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)  HE 2 (4)

12.

(Continued) 12, (8@

NT$140,000,000 (approximately HK$36,483,035) from 1 January 2021 to 31 December

2021;
KRB —F—A—BET=-—F+=A=+—HEA% & %140,000,0007C
(#736,483,035/87T)

NT$245,000,000 (approximately HK$63,845,312) from 1 January 2022 to 31 December
2022;and

i S H BEZT -+ A=+—HERH & %245000000(%
63,84531287T)

NT$350,000,000 (approximately HK$91,207,588) from 1 January 2023 to 31 August 2023.
RZB_=F—-—A—-BZE_T_=F/\A=+—BEARH &%350,000,000(4
91,207,588/ 7T) °

(Note:  For illustration purpose, the annual caps were arrived at based on the exchange rate as disclosed
in the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020, where HK$1.00 = NT$3.8374)

(3 - RIERAARZ  FELRDERARGBHAS_SFTA=ZTHZBRMBEENE
S (BM1.0078 T 5 37 A #53.837470) E B

Term From 16 November 2020 to 31 August 2023.

HABR BT - FTF+— A+ BE-_Z-_=F)\A=+—H-

As disclosed in item 5 above, the Directors consider that it is appropriate BN EXCESTEFTIREE - EERABRE
to voluntarily treat Eastern Home as a connected person of the Company RAREIBEBRARATEEANTIR I
and to comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules accordingly. As B EMRAEAAEBEE - Bt - R
such, the transactions contemplated under the Eastern Home Franchise AEZENBERECRREIENER
Agreement as amended by Eastern Home Franchise Supplemental FIHEEE])IE N EETR SHBEK AR R
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the LIBRERS o

Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

For further details regarding:

(@)  the agreements discussed in items 1 through 3 above, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 April 2019 and the circular of
the Company dated 17 May 2019;

(b)  the agreements discussed in items 4 through 12 above, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 22 July 2020 and 23 October
2020 and the circular of the Company dated 30 October 2020;

The above transactions are regarded as “continuing connected transactions”
and “connected transactions” of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Group confirms that the above disclosure has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its
business (other than The Transfer of Spa Business Agreement), on terms no
less favourable than terms available from independent third parties and were
negotiated and conducted by the Group on an arm'’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and are in the interests
of the Group and its shareholders as a whole.

The board of Directors confirmed that the Group's auditors have confirmed the
matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2021 or at any time during such year; and

(i) there were no related party transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 as set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements which need to be disclosed as connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction (as the case may be) in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the Board
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the Latest Practicable Date of this
Annual Report.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who acted as the auditor of the Company
since 9 December 2004, resigned on 31 July 2020 and RSM Hong Kong was
appointed as auditor of the Company with effect from 25 August 2020. The
consolidated financial statements for the three financial years ended 31
December 2021, 2020 and 2019 have been audited by RSM Hong Kong. RSM
Hong Kong will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Hong Kong will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

MAJOR EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any major events requiring disclosure that has
taken place subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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REVIEW OF AUDITED 2021 ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which
is of the opinion that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, legal requirements and the Listing Rules, and that adequate
disclosures have been made.

On behalf of the Board

LEI Chien
Chairperson
Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 113 to 232, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key
audit matters we identified are:

1. Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories
2. Impairment assessment on trade receivables
3. Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Units (CGUs)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AREETEE®

Key Audit Matter
BARESSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EESPHRARENSENEES R

Valuation of allowance for obsolete inventories

REFEREBMLE
Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements
B2 E VKM 25

The Group's inventories include raw materials and
finished goods. The Group has recognised an allowance
for obsolete inventories of approximately HK$17.1 million
in arriving at a total inventories value of approximately
HKS$121.0 million as at 31 December 2021.

EEBETFERREMBAREXR RZ2T=—
F+ZA=+—HX ESELEERTFTELE
#9121,000,0008 L - ERRBETERHELD
17,100,000 7T ©

As set out in note 5(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group reviews
inventories on a product-by-product basis at the end
of each reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete inventories or slow-moving inventories that
are no longer suitable for use in production or trading.
The management estimates the net realisable value for
such items with reference to the recent selling prices,
subsequent sales and the market conditions.

W PBHREMESQMFE » BEREETEERN
EHEMRAEERZEEREEFE LRI E
BERFLEERR S CREIFIHFEE B TR
B BEEZZOHERE  HERHERMSINRA
xR EHE 2R E -

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in determining the net
realisable value and allowance for obsolete inventories.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

EEEAEETREFE < ERFENBERIE
HEARHAE XA - Bt ZETERERERE
FTEIE -

Our audit procedures included:

BAMEREFERE

Obtaining an understanding of the management controls
over the identification of obsolete inventories and the
assessment of their net realisable value;

BREEERSREFE M EEATRRFEL
B

Evaluating the reasonableness of the methods and
estimation used in determining the net realisable value of
inventories;

FEREEFEUNSRFEMERAN T EREEZ
BB

Testing the inventory aging reports generated by the
application system and checking to the supporting
documents for their accuracy, on a sample basis; and

RIB R RGP AR T E Bl s - R H
MDA T AR E XXM+ &

Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost or net realisable value at the reporting date
by comparing the carrying amounts of inventories at
reporting date to the sales price of inventories subsequent
to the reporting date.

BB BHRE RPN FEREERRS ARRNET
SEERFERBEEMFEEEEARAKA R
FEBRIEEAR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FREFTTER®
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENSEE EEFTPHBARESFSENERSE

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 5 FE W AR 7R (B 5T
Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
FELMERE M REMITE26

The Group has recognised an allowance for credit losses
of approximately HK$0.6 million in arriving at net trade
receivables of approximately HK$115.2 million as at 31
December 2021.

N—_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H B£EEEE¥Z
SRR FUF R 49115,200,000/8 T - BHEREE
&5 18 B 455 #49600,00078 7T °

As set out in note 4(aa) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group always recognises lifetime
Expected Credit Losses (“ECL") for trade receivables and
estimates the ECL using historical credit loss experience
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors.

AR E IS IMK M T4a) 8 - EEE A3
BHRWRREAFENRNEEER(RAEE
BR]  AMBEEEERELR(REBARE
AREHBER) REFTEREERE

Management was required to exercise significant
judgements and estimations in grouping debtors
with similar loss pattern and in determining whether
a particular debtor is considered to be in default. The
impact of economic factors, both current and future,
historical experience and forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors were also considered in management’s
assessment of the likelihood of recovery from customers.
Accordingly, these areas are considered a key audit
matter.

EEEEHAAAUBBREANEEALTLA
VEEFEBRBARB R REORBAELERH
B & fh5t - EEEERH AR P KEKEN AR
BREET BRI RARKERER - BELRNIER
AFEMBERRNTEE - Bt - ZFHEERS
FRSE AT EIR ©

Our audit procedures included:

BAMEEFEE

Assessing the controls over the monitoring of trade
receivables;

A AR BB 5 W AR 2 FEHI 070X

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL allowance;

At BEBEAFEEREESRBRERMERN
TR~ BABIRRIRER

Understanding and challenging the judgements made by
management in calculating the ECL allowance;

BRI E SR B AR R
BB

Assessing the relevance and reliability of the data used to
determine historical loss rates and the appropriateness
of any adjustments for forward-looking factors or factors
specific to the debtors; and

AHEARNETBEBERNEUR 2R RA] ST
VAR ot BB 1 R R B E A R E B RAE L E AR E
ZEEM R

Assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the reporting
period.

BRENRERRORELERTEPILENEE
EERER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

AREETEE®

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEFTTHRARETBHENEES

Impairment assessment of Cash Generating Units
(CGUs)
ReEEBEURET

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
FB2RERE MR 22

As at 31 December 2021, goodwill with total carrying
amount of approximately HK$29.6 million was allocated
to the Sale of Cosmetic Products in the PRC CGU (“CGU
A") and Medical Aesthetics Services in the PRC CGU
("CGU B"). These CGUs are tested for impairment at least
annually or whenever there is an impairment indicator by
comparing the carrying amounts including goodwill with
the respective recoverable amounts of the CGUs.

RZE-Z—F+ZA=1+—8 FEEHAEELDLNA
29,600,000 TR B DB ENPRAEHEER
Em2BReELABEN(REELSBMAD)RRFE
AEHEBEXEAREZREELESEN(REESE
BAIB]) - ZEWEEABNELBFENRAELIER
BEFREETRENR  FEARIRERE(EIE
EmE)EIBSELEMN AN REESEE -

At 31 December 2021, the result of the Group’s CGU A
and CGU B impairment assessment concluded that there
was no impairment loss for these CGUs.

R-ZF-_—F+_A=+—H  EBEERSEL
BUARRSELBUBREMEGNERKRA  &F
REeELBUNFERERSE

The impairment assessments were based on value in
use models and management was required to exercise
significant judgements and estimations including sales
growth rates, gross profit margin and long-term growth
rates used to estimate future cash flows and discount
rates applied to these forecasted future cash flows of the
underlying CGUs. Accordingly, these areas are considered
a key audit matter.

ERHE DERNEREEEREL - AEEERE
HEARAE kA - BEAREARBASREN
HERER - ERRLEMERE - ANREARE
BREELEURARKESRENURE - H
b RESTERGSBRESEEA -

Our audit procedures included:
BPINEARFBRIE

Understanding and evaluating management’s key controls
over the impairment assessment process;

W AR 0 R B IR E BB E R B T B

Obtaining and evaluating management'’s approved cash
flow forecasts, testing the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying value in use calculations and agreeing them to
the approved cash flow forecasts;

ESYFEEREBHANRESRETRA - BIFARE
EREEFENHRBERUEARREEABILEN
Rengmdal:

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

ERHBMAHEHBRITENESE  BXERI/WEE
MRHERE R

Assessing the appropriateness of the discount rates used
with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists.

ERPIPBEEERG GBI T - A5 AR
R EE M -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHE RS S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Szeto Tai Shun.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

o A4S 32
:%/T\I:I H fm

RE 2 mH W m R

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=-+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & FER FHET
Revenue WA 8 487,810 410,673
Cost of sales B E A A (181,812) (170,248)
Gross profit EX 305,998 240,425
Other income and other gains E Wz FFE 9 8,833 13,475
Impairment losses, net of reversal BB E T (kR E) 10 3,980 (2,053)
Distribution and selling expenses S RIEERX (181,591) (149,839)
Administrative expenses THAX (83,638) (84,221)
Other expenses and other losses HAn S Fi8 sk (3,102) (7,146)
Profit from operations KRR 50,480 10,641
Finance costs R A RA 12 (1,822) (1,658)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAR 2 EE 39(@a) (199) -
Profit before tax BRB% A% A 48,459 8,983
Income tax expense FriSfif X 13 (13,195) (1,225)
Profit for the year AR EF E R F 14 35,264 7,758
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2 HE U -
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T &R EZ P E 185K
HE :
Remeasurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit EZBEFRIKEETEI 2 EFET=
pension plans (B518),Was (673) 151
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: A RER B IR E B K L
HE :
Exchange differences on translating foreign BMEBINEBEEZERZ5
operations 18,103 35,528
Other comprehensive income fortheyear, ZRNFEEHMEE W @ HRHIE
net of tax 17,430 35,679
Total comprehensive income for theyear ~ ANEEZ2HE WAL 52,694 43437
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBEmRHEMAZERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-—F+-A=-+HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Liks3 FTHERT FHET
Profit for the year attributable to: BT ATEERFERR :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIE/ZS DN 35,264 7,758
Total comprehensive income for the year UTATEERFE2ERE
attributable to: HmEE
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ R =N 52,694 43437
Earnings per share BRER 18
Basic YN HK cents 1.76  HKcents 0.39
1.76384l 03971l
Diluted BE N/A N/A
TEA 3 FA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EAR R T

n\/j_\
At 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHxT FHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB KRG 19 335,099 309,540
Investment properties "B 20 9,532 8817
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 21 81,701 57,037
Goodwill EES 22 29,613 28818
Intangible assets BmLEE 23 5,651 14,054
Deposits for purchase of property, BEME WMELRE2EZS
plant and equipment 255 2,982
Deferred tax assets FEEFR I A B 33 18,262 10,243
480,113 431,491
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25 120,961 103,280
Trade and other receivables B 5N E b U IR 26 131,969 130,896
Contract costs BRI 27 319 699
Pledged bank deposits HEIRIRITIF 5K 28 3,745 3,628
Bank and cash balances RITRBESER 28 193,337 161,978
450,331 400,481
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables m%&ﬁ@fﬁ BRK 29 109,777 123,338
Amount due to related parties FE1S R RS 5 5O 42(b) 544 329
Contract liabilities EH8E 31 13,552 11,830
Borrowings BR 30 87,801 54,273
Lease liabilities HEBRE 32 7,015 5213
Current tax liabilities BNEATIE B & 19,277 9,682
237,966 204,665
Net current assets REBEEZFE 212,365 195,816
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARE 692,478 627,307
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR IRE
At 31 December 2021
RZZFEZ—F+=-H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
BT FHxT FHET
Non-current liabilities FknBER
Borrowings Bk 30 9,482 13,254
Lease liabilities HEEE 32 24,776 2,281
Retirement benefit obligations BIREAEE 34(b) 302 542
34,560 16,077
NET ASSETS EEFE 657,918 611,230
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital N 35 200,210 200,210
Reserves [Eetic 457,708 411,020
TOTAL EQUITY S 657,918 611,230

Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Dr. LEI Chien

BT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A G 3L 4
g§]< = 1%§§Jiﬁiész.ggbi%§é
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+_A=1t—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAEEARL
Remeasurement
of defined
Share Capital Share Statutory  Translation benefit Retained
capital surplus premium reserve reserve  pension plans eamings  Total equity
ERER
BARSHE
Bx  EARH  RORE ARG ENRE Efiite  RERA  ERAE
HKS000 HK5'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK000 HKS000 HK5'000
Thn Thn T Thn Tin T Thn Thn
(note35)  (note 370))  (note 37(0)(l) ~ (note 37(0)il)  (note 37(b)(v))
() Wkl (ksvm)  (BEEs7in) (P37l
At 1 January 2020 W-F-FF-F-H 200210 155 41016 179375 5968 2240 075 567793
Total comprehensiveincome for theyear ~ AEE2ANELE S = = - 3558 151 7758 8437
Transfer to satutory reserve BRSLTRE = = = 203 = - (003) -
Changesin equity forthe year FEERERY - - - 3 35528 151 7555 B4
At31 Decernber 2000and T January 2021 R-F =%
tZA=1-Bk
“5--%-f-H 200210 42554 41016 179578 95,171 2391 50310 611,230
Total comprehensieincome fortheyear  REE2ENHEHE S = = - 18103 673) 35264 5269
Dividend paid (note 17) ERRE 7 = - (6006) = = = = (6006)
Transfer to satutory reserve BRELERE = = = 14 = - (142) -
Changesin equity forthe year FEREREY - - (6006) 14 18103 (673 310 46688
At 31 Decernber 2021 W24
TZA=1-H 200,210 42,554 35,010 179,720 113,274 1,718 85,432 657,918
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/T\/\EE: 37 /Jll: %IE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
(E-E - —F+A=+—HIEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FERx T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R ZEBE-EERE
Profit before tax FRELRT R T 48,459 8983
Adjustments for: HTINEIEFRE -
Interest income FEA (2,053) (1,742)
Finance costs BbE AR 12 1,822 1,658
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BEREETE
equipment 24,527 25,591
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEKEEBE
plant and equipment 158 3,140
Fair value gain on investment properties BEYHE 2 A FENE (533) (379)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 9,040 9,872
Loss/(gain) on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFEREEE 2B (FIFF) 37 (93)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBEAR ZESE 39(a) 199 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A 1,384 1,797
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for obsolete  FRETF & (BE#E ) /B
inventories (1,318) 1,487
Inventories written-off FEME 13,255 11,059
Impairment loss, net of reversal REEE (kR E) 10 (3,980) 2,053
Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & B B A 2 (& & 5 7| 90,997 63,426
Increase in inventories ﬁ =180 (27,032) (24,664)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 R H A [ I AR ROk > 6,744 337
Decrease/(increase) in contract costs BRIRAT A (38 Hn) 396 (230)
Decrease in amount due from related parties F’ﬂﬁl?ﬁﬂ?ﬂ? IR - 136
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other = % &ﬁ{mﬁéﬁﬂﬁm
payables ) /1N (16,555) 12,707
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to Jfﬁfﬂ'ﬂﬁﬁr?? RIBIE AN, (Rt >
related parties 206 61)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHBEEEN S ORd) 1,325 (16,362)
(Decrease)/increase in retirement benefit RIKEFEFECRD), /0
obligation (913) 41
Cash generated from operations CEEBMB 2R 55,168 35,330
Income tax paid EANIZIESE (9,569) (4,265)
Interest on lease liabilities HEABGENE (982) (925)
Net cash generated from operating activities KRB TS IS IF R 44,617 30,140
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HILEE

2021 2020
=B T -TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FERx F&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEBFE-BEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  WERZE (37,862) (71,042)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BEREHEZ
plant and equipment FriSskTE 3,313 20,072
Increase in deposits for purchase of property, EEYHE BEMIREZ
plant and equipment L IEm (251) (2,818)
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with ZERALE—F U TR Z FH
maturities of over three months but less than TR EEM) R
one year (1,252) 3,160
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 4,846 =
Interest received B B 2,049 1,738
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFA RS FE (29,157) (48,890)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REZEBFE-BEERE
Repayment of borrowings EEBN (26,989) (6,450)
Borrowings raised E5EBN 54,236 45,226
Principal elements of lease payments HMENZHEAS IS (6,934) (8,926)
Bank loan interest paid ERRITERFE (3,885) (1,789)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ERARQGHE ARE (6,006) =
Net cash generated from financing activities BMEEBS RS FE 10,422 28,061
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRSEEYRMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,882 9,311
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EEEH B 4,062 9,655
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—A—BZRERREEEY
1JANUARY 154,522 135,556
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Rt-B=+-B2BER
31 DECEMBER REZEY 184,466 154,522
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND RERRSEEYNIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIREETF 28 193,337 161,978
Less: Time deposits with maturities of over W ZEAR E—FUATEE
three months but less than one year TEHFR (8,871) (7,456)
184,466 154,522
“To—FFHR BAZXLEVYREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\/j_\

B HwR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E—FE_—F T _A=1+—HULFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered office is P.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
address of its principal place of business is Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company'’s shares are listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2021,
Far Eastern Silo & Shipping (Panama) S.A, Insbro Holdings Limited and
Next Focus Holdings Limited are substantial corporate shareholders of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

BB RELRNESR - BAGAERIE95 -
BAUBMEERFE7R - BEMBREERB45% K&
BB BIRELERF 1658 HEET

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendments to HKFRS
16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021.

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i) accounting
for changes in the basis for determining contractual cash flows
of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities as
modifications, and (i) discontinuing hedge accounting when an
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates (“IBOR
reform”).

The amendments do not have an impact on these financial
statements as the Group does not have contracts that are indexed
to benchmark interest rates which are subject to the IBOR reform.

3.

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RIEE
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
16 such that as lessee it was not required to assess whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic were lease modifications, if the eligibility conditions are
met (see note 4(f)). One of these conditions requires the reduction
in lease payments affect only payments originally due on or before
a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment extends this time limit
from 30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021 amendment in this financial
year. With the extended time limit, certain rent concessions that
were previously ineligible for the practical expedient because
of the original time limit, become eligible. Accordingly, these
rent concessions, which were previously accounted for as lease
modifications, are now accounted for as negative variable lease
payments, and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those payments
occurred (see note 21).

The amendments do not have an impact on the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AT RKEFTEBIEIR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) SR @)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b) EEMEERERZHFTRE
BRI BB M B HREEA

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent BREBMBMEENE 1655 ==
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021, the Group has not applied any —FXNA=t+HEHSRIGHEBE
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet SEEMEETIN - AEE I EER
effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2021. These EEMGEMRR_ZE_—F—H—
new and revised HKFRSs include the following which may be A B 2 B BRE B A B 2 AT AT
relevant to the Group. RIS BBV B ELRER - ZF

el RIIERI BBV HREERE
AT A e AR E AR 2 £ -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUT SRz #BRZE
STHEEXN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination — Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Framework
BEMBMEEAFEIFERE O - HAERNRANEET —E-=F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds Before Intended Use
HEGHERIE165RYE - B MR - (EHE AR 8PS SIRRERT —E-__%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BREGHEREIREREL - BITA K ZKANER] —E-—%—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
BEAUBHRERN - \FE_Z_ZFRHAFELE —E-=F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current 1 January 2023
HEGHERERBBESBARBIIERBERT —T-=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1 January 2023

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
= Disclosure of Accounting Policies

EAGTERNERE25 M B RRAETT REBN R E LR —E==%—Hf—H
BB ANEERIELFE M AE - HEFTTEOR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RMHFIIREEBITEBHBR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) £ XA )

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (b)

(Continued)

B 58 5 B 14 5 2 35 97 3T R 48

BT ERMBREER (@)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RUT BNz ERRZE
FTHAEAEX

Amendments to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors — Definition of Accounting Estimates

1 January 2023

BFREGFTERESREFTEOR - @tAtEFRBR - ST AFTNERNE] —T-_=F—HF—H

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction

EAGTERE 1RGN -BRE X FELENEERBEEBAN
RIETHIENEET

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting

policies below (e.g. investment properties that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
foreign currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at the acquisition-date
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities
incurred and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the sum of the consideration transferred is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to calculate
the goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs") or groups of
CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwiill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
the goodwill is compared to its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS") which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii)  Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

BE

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
ZE—F+ZA=+—HIEFE

4, FTESTBE®)

(b)

(c)

EBEHREE®
RV HERE - BRI R
BEBEE - RENHETE
REBEHPIEEEEHEETR
%%ﬁé%Aﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁzxﬁ%
BrN(BREELEMDHIRE
FE S ZER c BoREHE s SE
sk B AEREAEE A EE
EMMEREEZ&ERZR - At
EESFETRERN  XEBS
ﬁﬁﬁ%\ﬂ&ﬁﬁmT g IR R
B - {EHE AR cBEME
ZHEEELER QEEEQTW@Q
BIELLE - AR B AFAER
HAFERLEXNEA RS
ARERNSERAMAS - BEETDT
2 o

IEBRE

(i) IMeEREINEH
AEBEERENM BRI
FITHE @ YU ERBEERN
FEEREREBENEE (D
BEEEHE - RAMKR
KIVARR R E R 275
BB T(ET)RY -

(i) BEBHBEBRERRPNRZR

AR
SNEE 32 B IR 1) 2 HE R B BR
RRXZEPZHRITEREZE

AINEEEE - LAINE 27K
EBEERBBERESRES
AEER ZERHBE - Bt
BEBREENKEZRER
BB R o

I]]]

)

VASINEE 51 (B 3 LA FE 52 B A &t
ENFEBREERBETR®
RR 3 % A B A ) SMEE
R - XH BB/ RA]
MERZIFEREEERA
BHRY - BAFEFEL
AINE 25/ FE R IRE TS
REFTAVEERAZEXRK
=

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF

127



128

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g A

2 Ny =1

PR R AR PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—RHLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(ii)

(ifi)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements (Continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company'’s
presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (Continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than properties under construction as described below). Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write-off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—RHLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction
and plant and equipment pending installation, and is stated at cost
less impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant
assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment property are stated at fair value, unless they are still
in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured
at that time.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an investment property is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 4(s) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

()

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the

contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control

is conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the

use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the

economic benefits from that use.

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value. When the Group enters into a lease in respect
of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

()

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property
are carried at fair value in accordance with note 4(e).

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leases (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate
of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (‘lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate lease.
In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which arose as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and which
satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or loss in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
rent concessions occurred.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognised separately from goodwill where they satisfy
the definition of an intangible asset and their fair value can be
measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is their fair
value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same
basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Practice Licence of Medical Institution

BEMEBHEANE
The period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract with a customer or the costs to fulfil a contract with a
customer which are not capitalised as inventory, property, plant
and equipment or intangible assets.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs are expected to be recovered, unless the
expected amortisation period is one year or less from the date
of initial recognition of the asset, in which case the costs are
expensed when incurred. Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the costs relate directly
to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract; generate or enhance resources that will be used to
provide goods or services in the future; and are expected to be
recovered. Costs that relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract may include direct
labour, direct materials, allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred
only because the Group entered into the contract. Other costs
of fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised as inventory,
property, plant and equipment or intangible assets, are expensed
as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying amount of the contract
cost asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of consideration
that the Group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii) any costs that relate
directly to providing those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is charged to profit or
loss when the revenue to which the asset relates is recognised.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue.
A contract liability would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the Group
recognised the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

U]

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the
following measurement categories:

- Amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments (Continued)

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one of the

following measurement categories: (Continued)

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
- recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the investment
comprise solely payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses ("ECLs"), interest
income (calculated using the effective interest method) and
foreign exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to profit or

loss.

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes
in the fair value of the investment (including interest) are

recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL unless
the equity investment is not held for trading purposes and
on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
election to designate the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or

FVTOC!, are recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out in notes (p) to (r)
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus directly to the franchisees or other distributors is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the goods have been shipped to the distributors and franchisees’
specific locations (delivery). Following delivery, the franchisee has
full discretion over the manner of distribution and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the
goods. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the franchisee as this represents the point in time
at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional, as only
the passage of time is required before payment is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Under the Group's contract terms, franchisees have a right of return
or exchange of goods within an agreed period and amount. At the
point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding adjustment to
revenue is recognised for those products expected to be returned
or exchanged. At the same time, the Group has a right to recover
the product when customers exercise their right of exchange or
return so consequently recognises a right to returned goods asset
and a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. The Group uses
its accumulated historical experience to estimate the number of
exchanges and returns on a portfolio level using the expected
value method. It is considered highly probable that a significant
reversal in the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given
the consistent level of exchanges or returns over previous years.

Revenue from the sale of skin care, beauty and aroma-therapeutic
products, health supplements, make-up products and beauty
apparatus through retail outlet is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchases
the products at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the
products.

Revenue from skin treatment, beauty and spa services through
its self-owned spas and medical cosmetology services through
its self-owned medical beauty clinics is recognised over time as
the customers of the Group simultaneously receive and consume
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group
performs. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on an output method,
which recognises revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to date
relative to the remaining services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
the services.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI income (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net
of loss allowance) of the asset.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue and other income (Continued)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset.

(s)

(t)

(u)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as expenses in the
period in which it is incurred.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment schemes,
including both defined benefit and defined contribution
pension plans.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Obligation for contributions to the local government of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For the defined benefit retirement plans, the liability (asset)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation less the fair value of plan assets. When there is
a surplus in a defined benefit plan, the net defined benefit
asset is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined
benefit plan and the asset ceiling. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
pension obligation. If there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds denominated in that
currency are used.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) —
which include actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)), and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) — are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.
Service costs and net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

(u)

(v)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount
rate used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from
contributions or benefit payments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and others providing similar services. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the

effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation on rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Any specific borrowing
that remain outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intend use or sales included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment properties are depreciable and
are held within a business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties is measured based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and over the
lease terms due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

(2)

Taxation (Continued)

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the Group
considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be use by
individual group entities in their income tax filings. If it is probable,
the current and deferred taxes are determined consistently with
the tax treatment in the income tax filings. If it is not probable
that the relevant taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using
either the most likely amount or the expected value.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or that are
not yet available for use are reviewed for impairment annually
and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset/CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the goodwill
of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other assets of the
CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused by
changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the extent
that they reverse the impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FTESTBE®)
(aa) Impairment of financial assets (aa) ERMEERE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in which
the Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as consideration
of various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group's core operations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

i

) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of “investment grade”
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FTESTBE®)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the counterparty a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLHFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FTESTBE®)
(aa) ERMEERE(E)

(aa) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)
- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, including when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written-off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

SEREESREEE)
- BFHRRABEHEIET
HitpbP 5 EA - =k

- ZEeREERVBKREEMRK
ERET o

MEE R
BEEERIELEBABAREN
WEFLAEERA @MU A] (8
REBACEBTRICEARER
I - B S EKERRME
EERcERANBEBMFARE
ERERE)  AEEEMHESH
BE - CHENESREENARE
AEBENWEEFEBRATITE
FEERRTIEREZER - £
YRR B+ R -

BHEEEENTERER
BHEEBENAENKERED
BE  BOBRRR(AENRFNE
RIZE) FEXR R KE - FFE
BHOBRLENBRENIKE /R
b ATRE 1 B S B H) B B
ERENRR  REREBEEMS -
HRNEERHS AR REAES
iR o

HRERMEEMS - REAMEEERE
RESHDENAEENMAE S DR
ERERANEEBEFTWEHMAAR
ERERRERMERR) ZHH
ERMHE o

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF

153



154

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

g A

2 Ny =1

PR R AR PR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—RHLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL
at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the reporting
period are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements (apart
from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals and
another portion that is held for use in the production of goods.
If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out separately
under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property
is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production of goods. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment property. The
Group considers each property separately in making its judgement.

Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group's investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption that
investment properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale.
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(@]

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in accounting policy disclosed in note 4(aa), ECL
are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1
assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant
increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an
asset has significantly increased, the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information.

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date for
leases that include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken
and the importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease liability
because the Group could replace the assets without significant
cost or business disruption. See note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event
or significant change in circumstance that is within the Group's
control. During the current financial year, no lease term has been
reassessed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

During the year, approximately HK$13,195,000 (2020: HK$1,225,000)
of income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profits.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may affect
the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates,
including the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets (Continued)

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and discount
rate are subject to greater uncertainties in the current year due
to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group's operation.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2021 were approximately
HK$335,099,000 (2020: HK$309,540,000) and HK$81,701,000 (2020:
HK$57,037,000) respectively.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than the expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which results in downward
revision of future cash flows or upward revision of discount rate, a
material impairment loss or further impairment loss may arise.

Furthermore, the estimated cash flows and discount rate are
subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the current
year due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including
potential disruptions of the Group's operations.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the reporting
period was approximately HK$29,613,000 (2020: HK$28,818,000),
no impairment loss was recognised during the year (2020: Nil).
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d)

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
amortisation for the Group's intangible assets. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite,
based on the expected usage and technical obsolescence from
the changes in the market demands or services output from the
assets. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over
the expected useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for the intangible assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by
the management at least at the end of each reporting period.
The Group assesses whether any indication of impairment in
accordance with the accounting policy. The recoverable amounts
of intangible assets have been determined based on value in use
calculations of each CGU the intangible assets belonged which
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December 2021
was approximately HK$5,651,000 (2020: HK$14,054,000).
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5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. The directors have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the method of valuation and inputs used are
reflective of the current market conditions.

Whilst the Group considers valuations of the Group's investment
properties are the best estimates, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic
has resulted in greater market volatility depending on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, which have led
to high degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the
current year.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December
2021 was approximately HK$9,532,000 (2020: HK$8,817,000) after
recognition of the fair value gain of HK$533,000 (2020: HK$379,000)
in the profit or loss during the year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables based on the credit
risk of trade receivables. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than
expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables
is HK$S115,157,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$582,000) (2020: HK$113,712,000 (net of allowance for doubitful
debts of HK$9,011,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(9)

Allowance for inventories

The Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product basis at
the end of each reporting period, and recognised allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items that are no longer
suitable for use in production or trading. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based primarily
on the latest invoice prices, sales after year end and current market
conditions less all estimated costs and expenses necessary to
sell the products. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount
of inventories, net of allowance for inventory of HK$17,123,000,
was HK$120,961,000 (2020: net of allowance for inventory of
HK$18,364,000, was HK$103,280,000).

Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from the
assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial gains
and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method (“PUCM”), according to which the
Group has to make a reliable estimate of the amount of benefits
earned in return for services rendered in current and prior periods,
using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases where defined
benefit plans are funded, the Group has to estimate the fair value
of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM involves a number
of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions include demographic
assumptions such as mortality, turnover and retirement age and
financial assumptions such as discount rates, salary and benefit
levels. Such assumptions are subject to judgements and may
develop materially differently than expected and therefore may
result in significant impacts on defined benefit obligations.

The carrying amount of retirement benefit obligations as at 31
December 2021 was HK$302,000 (2020: HK$542,000).

BE

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
ZE—F+ZA=+—HIEFE

5. EEHERETEMRMTT@

At T RERR 2 EBRR @)

(9)

“T—FFR

FERE
AEERSREHELEEAREERE
FIERBENGTE T2t ®ER
BTEEGAEEESRSI ZRE
RABHEGFEEBELEE SEE
FERBRAOHERER  FH£%&
SHERBRIRITIR - BATE MK
AREEEMIMVERT 1&%@
LB A EREE - RN
F+-RA=+—8" Ti%ZﬁEE
EHNRFERME17,123,0008 L&
7,%120,961,000,%75(_2_2¢ :
17 & B 518,364,000/ TT1& A
103,280,000/ 7T) °

EREREARAKGTE 2 BERR

TERRENET 8 ABRAIBEERE - R
AEHEER %ifgjmlz/(f’ﬁﬁffrcﬁﬁﬁ
YEtE BERARERTEE R
R WEEZRBBE Wm,\lgﬁ
B THEMNBEHSUEREMNE
EXA(TEHEMEEELDFE @ &
It AEBFFERBERIGE IR
B B HA K% AiT B P 4R £ AR 7% i 7 15
E’J?ETU%%@FT?HE% 13

TEREMNFTEESESHNERLT -
REBWAMFFEEENRTF
B At - FREMREMEEES
REZEBERE - WEBRBIEA
AFeHRFR (LT X « EEEN
Lﬁ‘ﬁ’ﬁ ) K BT R R (RN BAER K -
FMEEFKE) - ZEBREZLR
FlE - AlREETEEIRIRERER
Eitt - AIL ¥ E SRR A E SR E
j(§7ét °

R_F-_—F+t=-A=+—8"

Wﬁﬂﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ%wmmﬁm
(ZE-FT4H : 542000/87T) °

BARAXEMNERRAT

161



162

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign

currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange translations and other financial
instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to
the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits and credit approvals. Before accepting any new customer,
the Group uses an internal credit system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 52% (2020: 57%) of
the total trade receivables were due from the Group'’s seven largest
customers as at 31 December 2021 and all of the customers are
located in the PRC and Taiwan (2020: the PRC and Taiwan).

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases. Customers with significant outstanding balances with gross
carrying amounts of HK$5,962,000 as at 31 December 2021 were
assessed individually (2020: HK$15,854,000).
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. HMKERERE®

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) SERE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 BRI (8)
The following table provides information about the Group's TRE‘RAEEAEEN T -_—F
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 TZA=T—HEHEZEKE
December 2021 excluding balances assessed individually: RZEERRNMBHEEEBECH
BIEERIFF AR 2 EHL
2021
—B-—F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RAEEXR IRE#AE BERE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET T
Current (not past due) BRER (R0 ER) 0.16% 76,221 122
1-180 days past due #EA1E180H 0.76% 30,900 235
181-360 days past due B HI181E360H 2.91% 1,721 50
More than 360 days past due %81 BB #8360 H 18.72% 935 175
Assessed individually & B FE 4 - 5,962 -
115,739 582
2020
322
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHIEIE X FREAE EiR RS
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Current (not past due) BIEA CREHA) 0.06% 96,283 58
1-180 days past due EHER1ZE180H 0.49% 6,370 31
181-360 days past due BHI181E360H 0.50% 3421 17
More than 360 days past due I EfiEBi8360H 5.03% 795 40
Assessed individually ERI R 55.92% 15,854 8,865
122,723 9,011

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past few year. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific customers is updated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MBEREE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERME®E)
Trade receivables (Continued) Z 5 EWRR(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade RNFEEE ZREBIRF 2 BEEER
receivables during the year is as follows: g
2021 2020
—E-——F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&xT T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 9,011 6,678
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses 2N 4F [E #E R R GR{E #E[@),
recognised for the year RIEBE (3,980) 2,053
Amounts written off during the year FRMH SRR (4,640) -
Exchange differences b H Z & 191 280
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 582 9,011

The following significant changes in the gross carrying amounts of
trade receivables contributed to the decrease in the loss allowance
during 2021:

- settlement of certain trade receivables that formerly
provided with loss allowance; and

- a write-off of trade receivables with aggregate gross carrying
amount of HK$4,640,000.

Financial assets at amortised cost

All of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk when they
have a low of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The directors
of the Company consider the ECL on these financial assets are
insignificant as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

R-ZE-—F  UTEFEWRER
FRERECEXNEEENEIERE
A

- REZARREBERENE
TEZRBER &

- ISH 48 BRE{E A4,640,00078 7T
HE S IEWBRER -

BRBHERAVRe SRERE

NEBEFTEIRBEKR AT R &5
BEZFERBHYERARE
HUR BRI RERR 2 SRR AR 71 21A
ATEHIEE - WEMTREHEXR
EMEITABBRENNEHAE
TAHBREZBRSREMT  AIEMD
TEAZEERREAREK - RZF
T ERZFTF+ A=+
H ARAEERAZICHEE
MIBHEEEEBITERK -

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R TR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

RE-F-—F+-A=t—ALEE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s bank borrowings
and other financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that
is if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other
financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment
dates.

6.

BMERRER®

(c)

AEEZBRAENERBAILE
HeRBHECHE © HMEERAE

B R R RE AR LR

TRINFAEBRITEREE MBS
BAEERREMEEE BERNARRM
RASRE(BREREAAGHN XX
(A EE MR ENBEHRREE
BRRTNRFENNEMNFR
ARBAEREBRLNRZ & A
HRIERE WEIHA -

BREME @ MMEREREEGRRK
(ATARRITEEBIBITE MRITHE
RME - DMBETRRBEERAER
MR RERECMEERATTRE
HA A 4 RS2 AV B & 3R T
ENRERE - HeRAENET
HADMTREBERAHIRE -

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

HMALH - RERAERL

Between  Between
On Within 1and 2to5 Over
demand 1year 2years years 5 years Total
REX —-FR —-Z@ME WEIF IFUL st
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET FAET FAT FTHET
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+=A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER - 109,777 - - - 109,777
Amount due to related parties  JEfT B R 5 708 - 544 - - - 544
Borrowings A 79,776 8,258 2,963 6,806 - 97,803
Lease liabilities HEBE - 8,182 6,147 10,879 9,808 35,016
At 31 December 2020 R-_Z-ZF
+-A=+—-H
Trade and other payables B o REMEMER = 123338 = = = 123,338
Amount due to related parties  FE (B8 B 5 2B = 329 = = = 329
Borrowings R 53,721 794 777 13,300 = 68,592
Lease liabilities MEEE = 5,532 1982 399 = 7913
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained above. Taking into account the Company's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

eI HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRE-F-Ft-A=tALEE

6. UIEEAKREE®

(c)

REE S @S (8)
TRBIFEREREEGFEROR
TRERBRIBER BRI Z HEE
FEMRIELZZMB DN - B
SHEEEERSONXAEZHE
MK Bt - WHFESERR L
FHIMBE WP IREL EHEE
IS8 o st RARBZHHE
AR EERR|ITTIAFRERTT
B ERAFERNEERE - EFMH
& AHERTEASEREBEERD
APTE  EEEREMMmMER

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

MBS -REFCERZRERERENRRSB ZBRITER
Between Between Total
Within 1and 2 2to5 undiscounted
1year years years cash outflows
RERRE
—£R —EWMF MERF WA
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THETT THET THET FHET
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=-—%
+=A=+—~H
Borrowings RN 29,823 9,261 47,935 87,019
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB_FF
+=A=+—H
Borrowings Bk 18,349 6,072 36,010 60,431
T FFHR BRELEUNBERLA

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZEZ-—F+-_A=+—RIEE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group has limited exposure to interest rate risk because the
Group has no interest-bearing financial assets/liabilities other
than bank balances and bank borrowings. The future variations in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the results of
the Group, as the Group's variable-rate bank balances are all short-
term in nature. Therefore, no interest rate sensitivity analysis is

presented.

Other than the bank balances as mentioned above, the Group's
fixed time deposits bear interest at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 December:

6.

BERRERE®

(d)

(e)

AR E
AEEAZZFERRER - THEA
AR B W BRI AE T R IRTT A
SMETEEREEBE - BHRA
SERFBNXRRITEFHERED
HE - BRRNFNREF K IEYH
AEBEETREAZE - Bt -
BEZ IR BRE DT ©

b EIMIRITRTESN « AREZ E
EREEENENE - HAREA
TEFRER -

R+-HA=+—Hz€®mIA
R -

2021 2020
=B —-F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Financial assets:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1ZBEHAX AN E 2 @RI EE 317,250 287,458

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHR AR 2 2B R 207,604 191,194

(f) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value

measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access

at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:

inputs other than quoted prices included within level

1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any

of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE

NP ERTE
RFEEMSLEEZHARNTER - &
BFRpTFHEEERKRRKEBREAR
R ETR - TXAFEFEZHE
BERERAEERTEMAGENEZ
BWABEBEERA=ERBRZAFEREX
R
FRBABE: AEERGFERH
AERZHEREE
KEBEEREEMS
MR (E CRIEHE) -
E_RBABE: K-RMMBRERE
MONVEEXABE
BEXERABREZ
BABUR

FRBABE: EEXABETAE
RZBARIE

AEEBRDER=(ERBRTEHES

BERFHNBENEHEBZ2EAR
B e

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B ERRME

2 Ny =1

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—Ft-_A=1t—HLHFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

7. AFEFTE®

(a) Disclosure of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (@ RT=-HA=+—HAFEEBNRX
December: EBZHEER
Fair value measurements using: Total
AFEFEEA : st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
E—& -~ ot 114 E=H Z—ZB=Z—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET FET FHET
Recurring fair value REMAFE
measurements: 5HE
Investment properties WEYZE
- Commercial units — Taiwan — & /&R BT
(note 20) (Bt3E20) - - 9,532 9,532
Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEFTERA st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
F— B E=K —T-TF
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHT THET
Recurring fair value REEAFLE
measurements: E
Investment properties WEYHE
- Commercial units — Taiwan — & /&R 387
(note 20) (PFF3E20) 5 - 8,817 8817
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

7. AVEFTE®

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based (b) BEBEFE=RERALEFEZE
on Level 3: EYER:
Investment
Description properties
it REWE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—H—H 8817
Total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss (#) RIBTEER 2 W sk ES 1B AR #) 533
Exchange difference ME =5 182
At 31 December 2021 RZZE_—F+-A=+—H 9,532
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held HEENRERREERMEEEZ
at end of reporting period Iz sk B8 533
1 January 2020 RZZE-ZFF—H—H 7,928
Total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss (#) RIBSER 2z Was sk B EBRE®W 379
Exchange difference b H ZRE 510
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF+-_A=+—H 8,817
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held WBEERREHEEERMBEEL
at end of reporting period W ok B 18 379

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss including those
assets and liabilities at end of reporting period are presented in the
other income and other gains of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2021:

The Group's chief financial officer ("CFO") is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial
reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The
CFO reports directly to the Board of Directors for these fair value
measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the Board of Directors at least twice a
year.

REDER 2 RSB EARE(E
BRENRERRAERCEER
R EFABRa A2 E RS
RO EMU SRS 25 o

(0 AEAXEEAEAGEEZFNU
RR=-ZB-_—-F+Z-A=1-—
BzAFEFEBHAERAMGES
ERBABEZREER
AEEzEFEWHE((BERYH
ENREMBHEMFEEERAR
ZRFERE  BRE=ZRATE
e ERMBEERAESEEE
WzENVEFE - BEREVBEE

i tiﬂ— >R AR S A2 Fr
‘Eﬁ\ﬁgamﬂ
T —FFH BARAXENPRERLEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (c)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2021: (Continued)

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will normally

engage external valuation experts with the recognised professional

qualifications and recent experience to perform the valuations.

Level 3 fair value measurements

ANEEFTE®

FRAEEFRRAGERF N
ER-ZF-Z—-+-RA=1-—
AZRAFPEFEMEAGETS
ERBABBZREESR

(&)

IFE=RRFEFEMS @ AKH
—REINEARATERERA A
HEELRHESFETHE-

BE=ZRAVEFE

Effect on
Unobservable fair value for
Description Valuation technique inputs Range increase of inputs Fair value
BAREEM
fidt hER% TUBEBAYE £E HATEZFE ATE
2021 2020
ZBZ-F CTOTF
HK$'000 HKS'000
TET THT
Investment properties Mix of direct comparison Yield 18%  Decrease 9,532 8817
method and income (2020:1.9%)
capitalisation method
RENZ ERELBEERA Yz & 18% P
EXMERa (ZZ-ZF
1.9%)
Monthly market rent HK$39,146~  Increase
HK$40,273 /ping
(2020: HK$36,173 =
HK$37,277/ping)
gATSHEE 9 46ETE BN
4027387,/ ¥
(ZF=%F:
36173BTLE
3721787/ 1F)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurement during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. REVENUE 8. WA
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products and service lines for the year is as follows:

D ONCEE
AEERIBERIRBEES D
KEEPAKQZWARHMAAT

2021 2020
—E-—F —F-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers R&E B KRG ERF1555EE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 ARBEEFEHZWA
Disaggregated by major products or B EEmIRGHEHE
service lines
Sales of goods HmifE 471,838 394,807
Service income AR U 2 15,972 15,866
487,810 410,673

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services
over time and at a point in time in the following major service lines

REBR T E2RGEHE MR
B8 By ] R b0 S MBS ) B B R B

and geographical regions: ARG EE YA -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT

Primary geographic markets FTEMETIS

The PRC LHEiN 75 279,805 212,480
Taiwan = 203,065 194,161
Others HAt 4,940 4,032
487,810 410,673

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. WAw
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (@) WABRAGE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-FTHF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tz FHET

Timing of revenue recognition WA Z 5 E
Products transferred at a point in time REERMESEEE R 471,838 394,807
Products and services transferred over time e B E 8872 & G & AR 75 15,972 15,866
487,810 410,673

PTEREHEHEFEHANGBRTEN
BBZRZER

R-ZT-_—F+-_A=+—H8 %
BEE TN CREER S E D REE
M)BAERF 2R 5B RERK

(b) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (b)
performance obligation for contracts with customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December
2021 and the expected timing of recognising revenue as follows:

ABTEETEFRIAT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —FT-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Within one year —FRX 13,552 11,830
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10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 9. Httzm=MAIF
2021 2020
—E-—F —F-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits SRITEFH B UWA 2,053 1,742
Fair value gain on investment properties "EYHE 2 N ENE 533 379
Rental income from investment properties wEME L HE W 241 213
Rental income from other properties and HAb % KR 2 e e
equipment 2,977 2,405
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRABEEE G - 93
Government grants (note) BB () 1,768 7,771
Others Hth 1,261 872
8,833 13,475
Note: The government grants mainly represent unconditional tax refunds MizE : BN EBRASERERREL
received from the local government in compensation for taxes incurred &I N BT R B Hb 5 U R R {5
and paid by the PRC operating subsidiaries of the Group, and COVID-19 HRBREAFHEERAERIHOFH
related subsidies to a Taiwan operating subsidiary by the local government. AR —REESENBEARESE
IR AT ) T 15 AR BR R B o
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 10. E{ERE (HIERED)
2021 2020
— —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss HTFEE ERCRERD),
recognised on: REEE
Trade receivables B 5 MR (3,980) 2,053

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e
i

BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

11.

TEC—F+ - A=t—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three (2020: three) reportable segments as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong and Malaysia)

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer
different products and services. They are managed separately because
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group’s other reportable segment includes certain inactive
operations. None of the segments meets any of the quantitative
thresholds for determining reportable segment. The information of the
other operating segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those
described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include central administration costs, directors’
salaries and interest income.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM") makes decisions
according to operating results of each segment. No analysis of segment
asset and segment liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly
review such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and segment
results are presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 7HER @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets ARETH 2B  EERARGEE
and liabilities: p
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
Bl K P =) Hit st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FaT FET
Year ended 31 December BE-_ZT—-—F
2021 +=-B=+—H
IHEE
Revenue from external customers 38 B 4MER% = 2 A 279,046 203,172 5,592 487,810
Segment (loss)/profit o EB(E5HR),m A (798) 65,490 (2,360) 62,332
Finance costs B & A 1,510 217 95 1,822
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #% - BB K&
and equipment e 18,793 5,560 174 24,527
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEERE
assets 6,843 1,583 614 9,040
Amortisation of intangible assets & 2 & &= 5 1,384 - - 1,384
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment w1 157 1 - 158
Loss/(gain) on disposals of right-  H&EFREEE 2
of-use assets &8/ (FE) 39 (2) - 37
(Reversal of allowance)/ BREFE
allowance for obsolete (B ER @), BE
inventories (4,188) 2,051 819 (1,318)
Inventories write-off FEMH 13,255 - - 13,255
(Reversal of allowance)/ B 5 AR
allowance for trade receivables (R @E),HE (3,980) - - (3,980)

—T - FFEH HREEVNHERAH 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. 2EER @
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets AfEsHPziER  EEREEE
and liabilities: (Continued) = IE )
The PRC Taiwan Others Total
eGP NS Ak Hitb st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET

Year ended 31 December BE-Z2_-ZHF

2020 +=B=+—8
IEFE

Revenue from external customers 2R B 4MNEFE 2 WA 206,469 194,646 9,558 410673
Segment (loss)/profit o EB(E5HR),m (8,307) 33,431 322 25,446
Finance costs BE KA 1,035 517 106 1,658
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #12% « BiE &

and equipment RBE 18419 7,088 84 25,591
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEERE

assets 4,581 4715 576 9,872
Amortisation of intangible assets & i & &= 5 1,797 = = 1,797
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK

plant and equipment HitZ BB 1,982 1,158 = 3,140
Gain on disposals of right-of-use  HHEFAEEEZ

assets A5 (89) - (4) (93)
(Reversal of allowance)/ REFE

allowance for obsolete (B R @), s

inventories (837) 2,143 181 1,487
Inventories write-off FEMH 11,059 = = 11,059
Allowance for trade receivables B 5 & Y BE R 2,052 1 = 2,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. 7 EHER @

Reconciliations of segment revenue, profit or loss and

DEHBA - BEREEYHEK :

assets:

2021 2020
B -F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments AIERE D S A 487,810 410673

Profit or loss Bi
Total profit of reportable segments A s D HREF 62,332 25,446
Unallocated corporate expenses KO ARZH (15,926) (18,205)
Unallocated income K OB U 2,053 1,742
Consolidated profit before tax F 5 A&7 A A 48,459 8,983

Geographical information:

The Group's information about its non-current assets by location of assets

are detailed below:

I E R

REBREEMEMEIDHNIERDEE

ZERFBE2IMT

2021 2020
—EB-—-F —TFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Non-current assets ERBEE
The PRC ey 173 382,973 359,225
Taiwan A/ 76,972 59,688
Others Eh 1,906 2,335
Consolidated total R AR 461,851 421248

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

GEX

T —FFR

FRDEETREREMSHEE -

BARAXEMNERRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 11. 7HER @
Revenue from major customers: REFEEFEFZKA :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Customer A BEFA 69,608 34,056
Customer B EFB 59,575 76,343
Each of the major customers represented a single external customer EXERXFEEIINIEP - HIHER
whose sale transaction is generated from the Group’s Taiwan segment. SEENAEBEREDEL -
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BAE KA
2021 2020
—EB—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest on borrowings EF B 3,885 1,789
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 21) HEEEN S HFTE21) 982 925
Total borrowing costs KRB KB 4,867 2714
Amount capitalised EXREH (3,045) (1,056)
1,822 1,658

1 80 Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021



13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLHFE

13. FTBHIAX

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as follows: EREBERERZFEHAT
2021 2020
—E=— —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax (“EIT") BNEARGIE - R BB FE PRI T
([EEFREHD
Provision for the year FREE 1,856 267
Under provision in prior years BAEFERETR 181 692
2,037 959
Current tax — Taiwan Corporate income tax BB IR - 2 EATSH
Provision for the year FREME 14,937 7,361
Under provision in prior years BEFERETRE 107 5
15,044 7,366
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax and others BNEARRIE - BAENIG B R E M
Provision for the year FRERE - -
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEREETIR
(HRER ) - )
- ()
Withholding tax a0 1,820 733
Deferred tax (note 33) EAEFRIE (M13E33) (5,706) (7,828)
13,195 1,225
PRC EIT has been provided at a rate of 25% (2020: 25%). The statutory REREMEHIELW( ZEFF :
withholding income tax rate for non-PRC resident is 10% (2020:109%). 25%) B ERGHREE - IR BEIEROEAE
BHBRAEHBEERI0N( T _ZF :
10%) °
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Taiwan, BB B K R & & &M BEER KRR -
dividend withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% (2020: 10%) and AR B KR K & VSB[ B N B BRERH P 15
21% (2020: 21%) on dividends that are declared in respect of profits a A BRI B IEARHE R ZEWE 2
earned by the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries respectively and that are BB BREFEMHESBA10%(ZE =
received by non-local resident entities. Withholding tax on dividends of TAE L 10%) F21% (=T =F4F : 21%) °
HK$752,000 (2020: Nil) and nil (2020: Nil) were recognised for the PRC and BHE-_T-_—F+-_A=+—HLHF

Taiwan respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021.

& - Bheh B oK B RER AR B T B 752,000
BL(ZE_ZF : B)RBEREE
RBETEMB(—T_FF : ) °

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF
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BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

13.

TEC—F+ - A=t—HItFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan has been provided at a rate of 20% (2020:
20%).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HKS2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25% (2020: 8.25%.), and profits above that amount will be subject to
the tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%.). The profits of the group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime will continue to be
taxed at a rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%.).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the
rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group's subsidiaries
operate, based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in
respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product of
profit before tax multiplied by the PRC EIT rate is as follows:

13. FIE8iIMAZ®

EECERBRIZ20%(ZTE-TF
20%) TR R TR B o

RIBMAFEHEE  EEBKRLHE
B 52 B F B2 Y B 2,000,000 7T % I #8
B8 25%(ZEEF ¢ 825%)%)%1%(%%

MmBAZESENRMEIEI65%(ZE=
TF - 16.5%) T EBH - MBFIEEL
ETHEEREEREREINBEER
16.5%(— T T F : 165%) T RKEF -

ANEEE B ph H Ath b %@ P EE A FE RR T b
RIBETHBRAREEMEREERZ
RAEMBED - RERIED - mERT
HREFTERIEL WL -

1% %ﬁffﬂié@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?&ﬂi%qﬂ Bdx

2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before tax B A5 B g A 48,459 8,983
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% (2020: 25%) R B PERSH T E25%
(ZZ=ZF : 25%)5HERE 12,115 2,246
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AR B 2 g2 6,468 4716
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BARBW S 2 B2 (1,849) (1,685)
Tax effect on deemed sale of gift item RIEHEE MmO BT E 180 127
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings ~ BREAFR B ARER G EH B AR 2
of the PRC and Taiwan subsidiaries RO IREH 2 ELEFIEE & (102) (2129
Tax effect of temporary difference and RERERZHE &*@JF@ A
unused tax losses not recognised iy - (116) 833
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses E A AR ER TR E 1B 2 B
not previously recognised a8 (1,908) (2,136)
Under provision in prior years BEFERBETR 218 692
Withholding tax on income earned by EEREBAMHMEUNARTEN
non-resident entities 1,820 733
Tax concession MIREE - (184)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BB AR TR E 2 R E (4,663) (1,736)
Others HAh, 1,032 (252)
Income tax expense FR1S BRI X 13,195 1,225
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14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BA RS R AR MY AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLHFE

=
)

14. XEE&F

AEBARFZHEMEMBRGEA) T

following: KIF :
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 1,384 1,797
Amortisation of contract costs X olpiN: i 450 369
Auditor's remuneration for audit services ZEENE B ERB S 2,544 7818
- Audit services - ZHIRT 2,344 7,818
- Non-audit services - IR EURTS 200 -
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment for Z SRR CRERE),RE
trade receivables (3,980) 2,053
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for obsolete MEFEEERD), BE
inventories (included in cost of sales) (FrASHERA) (1,318) 1,487
Inventories write-off (included in cost of sales) FEMsHE G ASEERA) 13,255 11,059
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense BEREAT 2 FERA 153,014 117,242
Direct operating expenses of properties and AIEAMES WS 2 WENEE
equipment that generate rental income HELERY 353 291
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BEREETE 24,527 25,591
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEENEGIAHE
(included in cost of sales, distribution and AR - D RHERS R
selling expenses and administrative expenses) THAR) 9,040 9,872
Fair value gain on investment properties wEME L N ERE (533) (379)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment &% ~ BE MR E 2 B8 158 3,140
Loss/(gain) on disposals of right-of-use assets HEFEREERE 2 ER(FIS) 37 (93)
Advertising and promotion expenses EERHEERSY 45,126 33,862
Research and development cost TR R AR 6,804 5,605
Net exchange loss b 5 & 18 55 560 1,694

Cost of inventories sold included staff cost, depreciation and operating
lease charges of approximately HK$43,028,000 (2020: HKS$63,156,000)

which are included in the amounts disclosed separately.

DEFERABIEE TR - TE LK
ETHE B 443,028,000 7T (=
F :63,156,000/87T) * WEHEBFFABKE

B

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF

= —<
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EIEAEAR
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEZTF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TET FAET
Employee benefits expense (including BETENER(BEZEEH:) :
directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o TE4L BoEBh 146,113 131,548
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERET B K
~ Defined contribution plans - ERRR G E 10,902 2,904
- Defined benefit plan - EREEHETE 19 32
157,034 134,484
Five highest paid individuals hERESHFMAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year ended AREBHEEZE T -_—F+-_A=+—8H
31 December 2021, one (2020: one) was the chief executive whose IHFEREAEEHFMA LI —R(ZZ
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a) to the —EF: —R)AEBETRAE - Hille
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the remaining BRERE I E MR T 16()FTH DTN
four (2020: four) individuals are set out below: RER - H#pMEZ(ZEZZTF - Q&) A
TzBemT
2021 2020
— ke 2
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHBxT FHETT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o e ERL 6,855 6,104
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERET B K 252 57
7,107 6,161
The emoluments fell within the following band: HMSARNT :

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020

g —EEF
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$ 1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000 7T -
HKS$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,0007 7T 3 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2 2,500,00078 7T 1 1
During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the RAFEE - $%@jﬁ,ﬁﬁ%ﬁ§iﬁ§ﬁ?j{
directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out below as an FrEEESENAERaTMALTZH
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for H - EARSIKREMBSRNINBERER
loss of office. Wr 2 228 - SERBERR 2 fE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments and chief executive

The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

16. EEEANRER
(a) EEMEREETHBAS
SEEREBITHABZHBEML

below: e
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries  Discretionary to aretirement
Fees and allowances bonus benefit scheme Total
EXHEREAN
re HeRER WERAL ST MR @t
2021 —EC-f HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT TET THT
Executive directors BTES
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson)  EEEE(LE) 1,097 - - - 1,097
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan BRNEE 250 - - - 250
1,347 - - - 1,347
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. CHEN Shou-Huang BRFIE R A& 1,013 - - - 1,013
Ms. LU Yu-Min EmRzt 1,044 - - - 1,044
Ms. LIN Shu-Hua WRE L+ 240 - 277 - 517
2,297 - 277 - 2,574
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long RmE S 4 240 - - - 240
Mr. LU Chi-Chant ERERE 240 - - - 240
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien GuE 240 - - - 240
720 - - - 720
Total directors’ emoluments  E&Hi 4485t 4,364 - 277 - 4,641
Chief executive officer THER
Ms.LIN Yen-Ling WHREZ L - 2,972 458 30 3,460
Total for 2021 —E-—E@ 4,364 2,972 735 30 8,101

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEfI L #EE ©»)

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a)
The remuneration of each director and chief executive is set out

EEMERETETHAE®RE)
BEEREBRITHAB ZHBE M

186

below: (Continued) m (48
Employer’s
contribution
Salariesand  Discretionary  to a retirement
Fees allowances bonus  benefit scheme Total
ExH
RIREF
we  FelkEM BIETEAL  RTEIRHER FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2020 —ECEF FHET FAET FHET THT FET
Executive directors BITEE
Dr. LEI Chien (Chairperson) E1EEL(EE) 917 = = = 917
Mr. PAN Yi-Fan ERLEE 833 = = = 833
1,750 - - - 1,750
Non-executive EHTES
directors
Mr.CHEN Shou-Huang BRSP4 1,000 = = = 1,000
Ms. LU Yu-Min EBmRZL 1,042 = = = 1,042
2,042 - - - 2,042
Independent non- BIFHITES
executive directors
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PRIk S 240 = = = 240
Mr. LU Chi-Chant EREERAE 240 = = = 240
Mr. YANG Shih-Chien Tt A 240 = = = 240
720 - - - 720
Total directors’ EEMS R
emoluments 4512 - - = 4512
Chief executive officer  1TEAA
Ms. LIN Yen-Ling MIB LT = 2,665 426 28 3,119
Total for 2020 —E-TF B 4512 2,665 426 28 7,631
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEARER @

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments and chief executive (Continued) (a) EEMERFETBAE®E)
Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived any FR - EBTHRABRME ﬂ%%
emoluments during the year (2020: Nil). MEREWREAMS(ZZE=F

F |

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (b) EERRE  r REHREYZE
arrangements or contracts Kz
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation RERKF NEE RN ETFEE
to the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and ABEARFEI I MARBEERE
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected MEATEENEEREE N ER
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, HEAEEEBBEHIERRZS
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. THEREH -

DIVIDENDS 17. B2

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
2020 Final of HK$0.003 (2020: 2019 Final Nil) BREBIR-Z_-F Eﬂiﬁﬂﬂx g
per ordinary share 0003/%75(_ T _TF
—NFEREREZETT) 6,006 =

18.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2021 of HK$0.003 per share has been
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the forthcoming general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$35,264,000 (2020: HK$7,758,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of approximately 2,002,100,932 (2020:
2,002,100,932) in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 is presented as the Company had no potential
ordinary shares outstanding.

18.

REpEHBERE  EFEZRTEHE
:g:—¢+:ﬂ5+—ﬁtﬁrtk
0.0038 L2 RARRL B+ MHEBFFRERIE
E%%k@tﬁt}&?ﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁa o

BREF

(a) BRELXEF
BREABINDRENARES
NG AN F s M) 4935,264,00078

TL(ZZ T4 : 7,758,000/ 70) &

FRAEBTZT AR Z MEFHH
#92,002,100,932f (Z T T F :
2,002,100,9320%) 5T &

BRE®ESREF
HEZZ - FR-F-_TF+=
B=+—HILtEE  BRARFL
\EITEIINZ BELRR - WL E
25 SREBERF

(b)

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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RE B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—Ft-_A=1t—HLHFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. Y% - MERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Motor  fixturesand ~ Construction
[and Buildings  improvements  Machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total
XA il A 48
ERLH BT NEEE - E byt k& ARIR it
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000
TEL Fin TAL Fin Tin Thn Tin Thn
Cost RE
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TE-F-H 17200 175790 778 41478 4191 90576 105850 507848
Additions R = 3081 9854 7 = 19322 37806 71042
Constuction expenditure capitalsed —— EAERFR - - - = = = 1056 10
Disposals i = = (25739) (4267) (80 (134%) = {#4300)
Transfer &y . = 1380 = = 36 (1616 =
xchange diffeence EHEE 1068 11108 3789 2368 il 504 8766 3064
At31 December 2000 and 1 January 2021 R=B=FE+ZA=1—-BR
Z3--%-f-H 18268 190,179 62007 4038 3610 100,584 151862 568908
Additons P = % 1995 53 = 9005 9253 4084
Construction expenditure captalied — BAVERER = = = = = = 30 304
Disposdls i - (26) (121) ) (%) (8464 (649) (21,059)
Transfer g1 = bi] 1531 21 = 5648 (7553) =
Eichange difference ERER 364 573 1635 105 7 3019 5348 17403
At31 December 2021 R-F--F+-A=1-A 18652 196067 55077 2018 338 111,79 181,307 609,141
Accumulated depreciation Zithe
At1 January 2020 W-Z-FF-F-R = 8730 %613 31577 2206 89511 = 39657
Charge for theyear ERT = 4850 5606 2486 43 1219 = B
Disposals i3 - - (10453 (8% i) (6459) = (21079)
Exchange diference Eizg . 5486 309 1862 150 4387 - 151%
At31 December 2020 and T Januay 2021 =5 -FF+-A=+-Rk
Z3--%-f-H . 94066 55039 I 258 7563 - 259368
Charge fortheyear FRZ - 51 4010 2 » 172 - U5
Disposals i = ) (11,00 (33%) B34) (5678 = (17589)
Exchange iference ExZE - 29% 1480 1006 57 266 - 73
At31 December 2021 RZSZ-F+ZA=1-A - 102,197 4930 3033 254 84946 = 7404
Carrying amount R
At31 December 2021 S ch e 1865 93870 6655 6985 784 21846 181,307 35099
At31 Decernber 2020 2 ey = 18288 %13 6988 8316 1025 1898 151862 30940
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19.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, freehold land and buildings amounting to
approximately HK$18,652,000 (2020: HK$18,288,000) and HK$77,025,000
(2020: HK$78,966,000) respectively were pledged as security for the
Group's bank loan (note 30).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out the investment properties under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to five years.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the
end of lease term.

19.

20.

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HL=FE

% - BERRE®
R_TE-_—F+_A=+—H kA%
ﬁéiiﬁzm%*“%u #918,652,00078 7t (—
T ¢ 18,288,000/ 7T) &% 77,025,000
BIL(ZZE T : 78,966,000/ 7T) B &
FEBAEERTER KR (T
30) ©

BREY=
AEERBEEHERERANE &
AT S - ERMERIEEH—
ERfF e

EHEZHT  BAXMEHEOUEHE
ERCHEYEERE  HAKEL
BAZINERR HESNATEBEE
BEERR /FEBARBETEREES
MR

2021 2020

—E=-—F —E-THF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1 January Rn—H—H 8,817 7,928
Fair value gain N ERE 533 379
Exchange difference b H Z&E 182 510
At 31 December W+-ZA=+—H 9,532 8817

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December 2021
and 2020 was valued on mix of direct comparison method and income
capitalisation method. The valuation was performed by Euro-Asia Real
Estate Appraisers Firm, an independent firm of chartered surveyors.

There was no change in the valuation approach for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties is within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

REEREVENR T -_—FRh_T—
TE+_A=T—"BN2FEINEE
HEORBERABERMMOEEEGE - BB
HERBFFAEMTERE TS ER
{ERDEE & FHATHETT ©

‘1'— ElJtiEZﬁTEH/fIﬁmEJJ N

SEREMEZATFEEAFERERS
—REEA -
—ToEFR BREEMHRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

21. FHAEESE

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
AE i HEWMSE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—H—H 47,636 29,136 76,772
Additions BN = 8,029 8,029
Disposals HE = (21,038) (21,038)
Depreciation e (1,167) (8,705) (9,872)
Exchange differences PEH Z% 2,902 244 3,146
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-FF
1 January 2021 +ZA=+—AK
—ET-—%—H—H 49,371 7,666 57,037
Additions IR = 31,375 31,375
Disposals HE - (474) 474)
Depreciation e (1,253) (7,787) (9,040)
Exchange differences FEHZ% 1,583 1,220 2,803
At 31 December 2021 R-ZEBE-—F
+=-A=+—H 49,701 32,000 81,701

Lease liabilities of HK$31,791,000 (2020: HK$7,494,000) are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$81,701,000 as at 31 December

R-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—H8 HEA

2021 (2020 HKS$57,037,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE

21. EFHEEE®

2021 2020
—E-—F —EToFF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 9,040 9,872
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESBENEX L GIARE
(included in finance costs) (note 12) BRA) (B 5E12) 982 925
Expenses relating to leases of low value assets ﬁfﬁfﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfm Eﬂi
(included in administrative expenses and GrATTERRAX RS
distribution and selling expenses) HERT) 2,224 1,910
Expenses relating to short-term lease BREEEEENAX GI AT
(included in administrative expenses and Ao EMEERY)
distribution and selling expenses) 3,856 6,604
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions received EETEZIEREARESER - 267

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 39(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted the Amendments to
HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 2021, and
applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions received
by the Group during the period.

For both years, the Group leases offices, factory plant and land for
its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of two
to ten years (2020: two to five years). Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns an office building located in the PRC. The
Group is the registered owner of this property interest, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the land interest. The leasehold land components of this owned
property is presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use
assets related to leasehold lands of HK$6,859,000 (2020: HK$6,930,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (note 30).

HE iﬁ%//luﬁf@ﬁgi| HNRE
RMIFE39()

B 75 4

SRR EE3AT AL - AR l%iﬁé%ﬁqﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%

WMEEBEIHRMNIER] : —TE_—F X
AR IE *BI%WH%%% C WAL ARE

EEAWERMWAESERESERER
Al1THEZR 5% o

RREFE  AEEEERRE BB

NMEMAETRE - I EESR
AR —_=2+F (2T _FF: -FH
F) - MEGRFIRE R EEETER - X
BE LR IEMGR LGS - REEME
HEFEIARESHE RER - A&
BEAAKNTER RETEA KA RHIBMT
FYEAR o

BEHN - AEEHEA —EA R B AER
BFE o K%lﬁjﬁt%¥%ﬁé(@%ﬁ%§
MELTH) ZEMAEBA - BIEH—RMKE
BN FARG LR - Jﬁtéﬁ%%z
HE L EK B D EERE R SE D BCATIE
HZ REEBZET -

RZEZ—F+=-HA=+—8 ' &%
EEREETtHNERAEEEREEB
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

22. GOODWILL 22, &
Sale of Medical
cosmetic aesthetics
products services
in the PRC in the PRC
(“CGU A”) (“CGU B”) Total
R B KR AR B K
HEXRER HEBEXR
REEE RE(HEE
EWAL EL£ENB]) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Cost KA
At 1 January 2020 N_E_EF—H—H 29,244 5,382 34,626
Exchange difference PEH Z% 1,551 336 1,887
At 31 December 2020 and R-ZEBE-FTF
1 January 2021 +—H*+ HxX
—E-—%—A—H 30,795 5718 36,513
Exchange difference EHER 859 186 1,045
31 December 2021 RZZE——F
+=—A=+—H 31,654 5,904 37,558
Accumulated impairment losses ?i*l‘?ﬁfﬁ@? B
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_ZFF—H—H 3,716 3,527 7,243
Exchange difference EHZER 232 220 452
At 31 December 2020 and BT AF
1 January 2021 + A=+—HBxXk
—2-—F—H—H 3,948 3,747 7,695
Exchange difference MEH =5 128 122 250
At 31 December 2021 N_E——
Jrfﬂ ET—E 4,076 3,869 7,945
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2021 RZE—_—F
TF=A=Er—E 27,578 2,035 29613
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FF
+=H=+—H 26,847 1,971 28,818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

In addition to goodwill, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and other intangible assets that generate cash flows together
with the related goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for the
purpose of impairment assessment.

CGUA

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses a discounted cash flow
method. Cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
the management covering a five-year period and cash flows over five
years using a growth rate of 2% (2020: 3%) and a discount rate of 16.9%
(2020: 17.7%). Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
revenue and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past
performance and the management’s expectations for the market
development. The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of this unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of this unit.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have been
reassessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into consideration higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year due to how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s sale of cosmetic
products operations in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
CGU.

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded
carrying value by HK$68,447,000. A decrease in gross margin of 3% or
a rise in discount rate to 20.4%, all changes taken in isolation, would
remove the remaining headroom.

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE

22, EHE®)

BLEENGERENME - REEN D
X BELSRE CRARBEERELR
TRENHEMETLEE  ERAMAE
Mt AEBRSELEN -

HEELXENA

WA Z Al Bl EIEFEREAETEE
E o ZiTERARRBEREREL - R
METRRTREERE L E 2 A F B
BHEEWAERAFRESRENFER2%ER
R(ZZ T 1 3%) M16.9%EEIR R (=
TZTF 1779 FREBRFE
FEZEMEBRFAGHRER /
R EB(REEERAREFE)
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%i%ﬁZ@&%ﬁ&%
BESMEBRRECAHET - EEEHR
2 EHZERRZTAEED]GEE
HIreEBEYWIRSELEMN CFRAE
BHReEESEM 2 AT EILSEE -

Bemngfl BRERBEFENZ
T+ _A=+—REHFNME ' E
PR RAFEGHNREIEELE - I
TTHRHERIENERMRZERE AN
TRMISHKE)(BREAAEERFEA
BEHEXTEREBEETE) -

BE-T_—F+-A=t—HBK=%
“EFF-A=T"BLEFE  AKH
EREEERSEEBAWRAME -

LEREEFEMNARESEBRER
T {B68,447,000/ 7T © EFZ ) L 3%k &b
WEEFE204%  IBEBYBREZEE
B 5B FIERREE o
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e
i

BB IRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE

TEC—F+ - A=t—HItFE

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

CGUB

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on
a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period and discount rate of 16.4% (2020: 16.7%). Unit B's cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2020: 3%)
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the relevant industry. Cash flow projections during the budget period for
Unit B is also based on the budgeted sales and expected gross margins
during the budget period. Expected cash inflows/outflows, which
include budgeted revenue, gross margin have been determined on
management's expectations for the market development and its business
plan as well as consideration of past performance of comparable clinics.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate have been
reassessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into consideration higher
degree of estimation uncertainties in the current year due to how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and volatility in financial
markets, including potential disruptions of the Group’s medical aesthetics
services in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
management of the Group determines that there is no impairment on
CGU.

The recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceed
carrying value by HK$7,991,000. A decrease in gross margin of 9% or a
rise in discount rate to 30.0%, all change taken in isolation, would remove
the remaining headroom.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 23. BEEE
Licenses
AR
HK$'000
FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2020 W-_ZE_ZTF—H—H 17,887
Exchange difference MEH =58 1,115
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZBE_ZE+_A=1+—BK
—E-—F—H—H 19,002
Disposals (note 39(a)) 1 & (BI5E39@) (10,827)
Exchange difference EHER 409
At 31 December 2021 RZZB_—F+-A=+—H 8,584
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss ?*ﬁiﬁ&ﬁﬁgﬂﬁ
1 January 2020 R-ZZE-ZTF—A—H 2,870
Charge for the year FREZH 1,797
Exchange difference EHZER 281
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZEZEF+-A=1+—HK
—E_—%—H—H 4,948
Disposals (note 39(a)) & (i aE39()) (3,518)
Charge for the year FAXZH 1,384
Exchange difference EHER 119
At 31 December 2021 R-E_—%+-A=+—H 2933
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 December 2021 R-E_—%+-A=+—H 5,651
At 31 December 2020 R-E_TF+_A=+—H 14,054

Licenses represented Practice License of Medical Institution and are

amortised on a straight-line basis over ten years.

ABEARREITHH -

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of major subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

24. RBRARIZRE
RZFZ—F+-A=FT—HAZEEM

BARHENT :
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREAR/
i/ R
WELARER B3/ tEEREN CRIER/ERES BEEER 2D TERH
Direct Indirect
B 4
HREAERENREERAT The PRC United States Dollars = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty ("USS") 29,980,000 beauty products
Bio-Technology Company Limited)*
EEBAXENHBERAT hEARE 29980000 7T ([%7T)) TERHERBERXAER
FRERE =B RmBRAT) The PRC RMBB,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanlian Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products
Company Limited)*
HERAR=BtERERAR) hEARE AFH80000007C HERERXREMIERER
FREREERmBRATe The PRC US$14,800000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli Cosmetics beauty products, aroma-
Company Limited)* therapeutic products, provision
of skin treatment, beauty and Spa
service
LEERFERILERERARE E AR 14800000% 7T EERBERRREREMR
BRERRRMEEE  FR3R
kER%
DERB A mBRAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Yongli Cosmetics Company Limited)* and aroma-therapeutic products
FERBltrmERAR" EIARE AR%100000007C HEEBRXREMIRHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

24. RIBRARI2RE @)

Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R
WELAER Bx/iREREN CRAER/AREX BRERER 2ILA) TEXH
Direct Indirect
=3 3
BRAZENHBERABRAR Taiwan NT$201,000000 = 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
(Natural Beauty Bio-Technology beauty products
Company Limited)*
AARENHERNERAF) RE #78%201,0000007C LERHECBLXAER
EERERNERAT Taiwan NT$126,086.450 = 100%  Investment holding
(Huei Yao Investment Company Limited)*
BRRARNBRAA B 318 %1260864507C REER
R BREARBEERNARAA Taiwan NT$50,000000 = 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
(Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Company Limited)* training
hABEXANREERNBRAF hE 31 5%500000007C REXDERARS R
BERERBRHBRAA Taiwan NT$100,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Ke Mei Yan Bio-Technology Company Limited)* (2020: Nil)
HERERRDBERAR = #12%1000000007 - 100% HESEREXRER
(C2-%%:
i)
Belern Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609,858 100% = Investment holding
(lass B shares
MYR10,000
(lass A shares
Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. BREZ 686098585 %8R (A RAER
1000055 %A IR

“T—FFR

BARAXEMNERRAT
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

24. RMTB AR Z2RE ®)

Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R
WELAER Bx/iREREN CRAER/AREX BRERER 2ILA) TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 3
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - 100%  Wholesale of skin care and beauty
products
Billion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. SRED 205% HEEEREDER
Great Glamour Company Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
('BVI')
Great Glamour Company Limited RBEMRES 50000%7T RERR
(RBERREE])
Next Success International Limited BVI US$100 100% = Investment holding
Next Success International Limited ERERRES 1005 7T RAER
Fortune Investment Global Limited BvI US$50,000 100% = Investment holding
Fortune Investment Global Limited EBEARES 50000% T RERR
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited provision of beauty treatments
BARENRR(ER)ERAR &BE 1000078 7T HEVHERRRHERER
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% = Investment holding
BAXTEARRERAT i 2000007 RERR
LERAZENREARAT The PRC 152,600,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med supplement
Company Limited)*
LEaRRENEEERAR EARE 26000005 T LERBERRER
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RE MR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-_—F+-A=t—HLHFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 24. RIBE AR 2RE®
Principal country of
operation/county
of incorporation/
establishment/ Issued capital/  Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest Principal activities
IEREREEAR/
i/ R
WEAEERE Bx/iREREN CRAER/AREX BRERER 2ILA) TEXH
Direct Indirect
B 3
FREAZER I mBRAF) The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products
(Shanghai Natural Beauty Haili Cosmetics and aroma-therapeutic products
Company Limited)*
LEERFERIIRERAR MmEARE ARE100000007T HEEB LI REMREHER
LBNEREXADFERAR) The PRC RIVIB4,000,000 = =~ Provision of medical beauty service
(Shanghai Lixin Medical Beauty Clinic (2020: 100%) and sale of skin care and beauty
Company Limited)* products
FENERBERDHARAR mEARE AREE40000007T RUBRXTRERHEEER
XBEm
IREREEXRYMER AR The PRC RVIB2,000,000 = 100%  Provision of medical beauty service
(Bejjing Jiayun Medical Beauty Clinic
Company Limited)*
IRERBEXRD AR mEARE AR 20000007 RUBEXART
* These subsidiaries are foreign investment enterprises with limited liability * ZEMBARRNPBEARERZAER
established in the PRC. BENEDRE -
" These subsidiaries are domestic limited liability enterprises in the PRC. " ZEMBRRRRPBEKRERIZHANE

BREMERE -

e The subsidiary is a Chinese-foreign joint venture established in the PRC. @ 2B A R A — R R R B R BERK S 89 R
SNEERE -

g Being English translated names. i BB R ERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-—F+-A=-+HLEFE

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

2021 2020
=B -F —E-TF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Raw material R #1# 70,830 59,758
Finished goods LUK 67,254 61,886
138,084 121,644
Less: Allowance o B (17,123) (18,364)
120,961 103,280

Reconciliation of allowance for inventories: FERELER
2021 2020
. SETEE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HA—AH 18,364 16,073
Write-off 8 (299) 371)
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for the year FRBERD),BiE (1,397) 1,858
Exchange differences b H Z&E 455 804
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—H 17,123 18,364
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26. B 5 Kk H Mt EUIRR
2021 2020
=B -F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Trade receivables 2 5 EUWERFK 115,739 122,723
Less: Allowance for credit loss W EEEERE (582) (9,011)
115,157 113,712
Prepayments TEfT IR 12,056 12,026
Deposits b 3,338 2,903
Other receivables H b B IR BR FR 1,273 1,810
Right-of-return assets REEEE 145 445
131,969 130,896
The Group allows general credit period range from 30 to 120 days to REBHKRTEFECEHEERZES
its trade customers who are qualified for credit sales. The credit period BE—RNF30E120HZEEH - 21
provided to customers can vary based on a number of factors including BEZEEHRAKREZERZ(BERF
the customer’s credit profile and sales promotion policy. ZAE AR RARHBUER) A TE -
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables, based on the invoice BEEEEH - XEEE S EBERR(EE
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: MBREME) < BRI DT AT -
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Within 180 days 180H A 104,751 102,343
Over 180 days Bi@180H 10,406 11,369
115,157 113,712

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 26. ES R EHMEWERERE
The carrying amounts of the Group's net trade receivables are $$@§%}3§HKE§M%%§ZE§E@MT
denominated in the following currencies: P EMEEHE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

HKS BT 465 74

Renminbi ("RMB") ARBITARD 51,596 52,153

New Taiwan dollar ("NT$") FaB(Ea)) 63,066 61,157

Ringgit Malaysia (“MYR") BRFAERE (B 30 334

115,157 113,712

27. CONTRACT COSTS 27. EHHEA

2021 2020

—E-—F ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T FAET

Incremental costs to obtain contracts IMEEHIE 2R AR 319 699
Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 relate to the RZEBZ—FRZZTTHFFT_HA="
incremental sales commissions paid to franchisees whose selling activities —B®ER(EE KK A E B 0 BR i &Y
resulted in customers entering into sale and purchase agreements for HEHERSAH  ZEMERENIHEE
the Group's services which are still not transferred at the reporting date. EEIE-ESESSNoVIN-S E’t\ﬁ?ﬁ% =EEEIDES
Contract costs are recognised as part of cost of sales in the consolidated HEHRBEI L BEERE o & HKAR
statement of profit or loss in the period in which revenue from the related 18 8 AR 75 35 & W A\ R R AR Fﬂ AHERE 18
services sales is recognised. The amount of capitalised costs recognised BERTPHEABEENEN —EH o F
in profit or loss during the year was approximately HK$450,000 (2020: NREZFERNERN KRN SELD
HK$369,000). There was no impairment in relation to the costs capitalised #3450,0008 7T (ZF ZFF : 369,000

during the year. 7o) o FABTEABE RN LK AARE
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 28. KT ERRETRESLE

CASH BALANCES 2

In 2015, the Group signed a guarantee agreement and placed bank RZZTE—HF AKERERIBRHHAF
deposits with China Merchants Bank of China (“CMBC"), in order for BEEmRT(HBERTDEZREH S
CMBC to issue guarantee letters to Fengxian government for the Group's M ARITHERIEAEBAERRIRITH
construction project. The pledged bank deposits will be released upon FZBRBNALRE - ERRITHERS
the expirations of the guarantee letters. TEAR B HR R 12 AEBR R o

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the pledged bank RZEBEZ—F+ZRA=+—8 EKFR
deposits was RMB3,054,000 (2020: RMB3,055,000) (equivalent to TFRMERME A A R3,0540007T (=
approximately HK$3,745,000 (2020: HK$3,628,000)), which will be release ToTF : AR¥3,0550007T) (FEERLY

in 2022 (2020: in 2021). 3,745,000/ 7L (ZF T4 : 3,628,000/8

70) BN T —FREERCE
“RE RR—F) -

2021 2020
—E-— —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Bank and cash balances RITRIBEET 184,466 152,037

Time deposits mature within three months =18 A A EI 82 7E BT K

(note (a) & (b)) (Ft3E@) K (b)) - 2,485
Time deposits with maturities of over —EARE—FUATHEHZ

three months but less than one year EBER 8,871 7456

193,337 161,978

Less: Time deposits with maturities of B ZEANR E—FATREZ

over three months but less than one year T BfF R (M 3E (@)&(0)

(note (a) & (c)) (8,871) (7,456)
Cash and cash equivalent ReE KB EEY 184,466 154,522
Notes: 5 -

@  The Group placed time deposits with banks with high credit-rating @ AEBEBTEHES T?EA%.V ,\EEF/?&
assigned by international credit-rating agencies in Taiwan, with fixed BETASEETR2AERT HE
maturities and fixed interest rate which expose the Group to fair value EE B B RIRE E F E5E E' 2 /3\215%
interest rate risk; while time deposits with fixed maturities and floating BEZ AT ERERR A EE 25
interest rate are exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. A RIZ e F Rt B Zmﬁﬁﬁ%’k -UES

AEBEAZBEREN KRR
The balance was denominated in NT$. ZAERRAFT B ’EEHE -

(b) The interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.58% per annum in (b) R-ZE-_TF  BHRITERZFEF X
2020. 730.58% °

(0 Short term time deposits were made for a maximum period of one year (© Lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂr ANREHARAE—F(ZZ
(2020: one year) with ranging from 0.58% to 0.76% per annum (2020: 0.76% ZTF  —F) FFENTF058%F
per annum). 076%(;7;7 F : FHERR076%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND 28. IS TEZRETRESLE

CASH BALANCES (Continued) 7@
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank deposits are denominated in REBRITHFERZREEN TIIEEE
the following currencies: 8 :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Tz FHET
HKS BT 2,127 2,862
RMB AR 130,340 108,816
uss ETT 5,333 4,689
NTS etk 45,513 35,661
MYR Bk 1,153 2,494
184,466 154,522

R-ZE-—F+-F=+—H AEH
PERAENB AT AT UARESEZ
RITRIR G 6517 49125,491,0008 L (=T
— T4 1 106,804,000/ 7T) © 15 A R,
R INEE T8 B 1 R B K B SN EE B 51 151
MEEE - SERTESTERT -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank and cash balances held by
the PRC subsidiaries denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$ 125,491,000 (2020: HK$106,804,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. ES R EMENIRR

204

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZT-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH&T FHET

Trade payables B F IR 15,151 26,147
Deposits from franchisees neEmEe 28,582 29,322
Other tax payables Hfth fE 7418 8,913 7,662
Accruals iANE=da 46,040 44,599
Other payables E b e ER R 10,710 14,428
Refund liabilities RRBE 381 1,180
109,777 123,338
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 29. ES R EHMENERE
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables, based on the date of RIFWE=ARBAE - ZF%@E%
receipt of goods or service consumed, is as follows: FERBERZBREBRDITINT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Within 90 days 90H 15,143 25,539
91 days to 365 days 91H Z365H 8 12
Over 365 days 3658 LA = - 596
15,151 26,147
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in AEBEESHERNERZEEENATIE
the following currencies: HEtE -
2021 2020
== ﬂE —%F _%EE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
RMB AR 4,881 4,893
NT$ ek 10,270 20,531
Uss e - 723
15,151 26,147
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

30. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 30. ERRIBITRE
The analysis of the Group’s bank loans is as follows: REBERITERDITAOT :
2021 2020
—E-— —E-FF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHET
Secured bank loans BIRIRITE R 97,283 67,527
2021 2020
—EC--F —T_FTF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FLR 34,484 16,534
More than two years, but not more than five years FIF A _ERFLAT 9,482 13,254
43,966 29,788
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment  —FZFHEEER SR ENR
after one year but contain a repayment on BRIERIRITERES D
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) (RREAEEYIR) 53,317 37,739
97,283 67,527
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 1218 A AR HARE (S 3k0E
12 months (shown under current liabilities) (RREBEYIR) (87,801) (54,273)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121E A 1& 2 BR FE < 3R T8 9,482 13,254
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30. BORROWINGS AND BANKING FACILITIES 30. &%

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans are denominated in the
following currencies:

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

AR BITRLE (@)

REBERTT
=

ERZEEENTIIEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

RMB AR 84,985 53,721
NTS b=k 12,298 13,806
97,283 67,527

The Group's bank loans are arranged at the following interest rates:

RERE 2 SRITEFIZ TR XS

2021 2020
=F=—F =EEEE

Bank loan at floating rate of HK$97,283,000

Borrowings of HK$97,283,000 (2020: HK$67,527,000) is arranged at
floating interest rate which was exposing the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s banking facilities and bank loans
totalling HK$97,283,000 (2020: HK$67,527,000) are secured by charge
over the Group's right-of-use assets related to leasehold lands and
buildings located in the PRC, freehold land and building located in
Taiwan (note 19 and 21), and also personal guarantee from a director of
certain subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has approximately HK$214,652,000
(2020: HK$239,034,000) of available undrawn banking facilities.

¥ BERTTE 97,283,000 7T
(2020: HK$67,527,000) (ZZE T4 : 67,527,000/57C)

0.96%-5.70% 1.07%-5.70%

fE 397,283,000 (=T T F :
67,527,000 D)1 F BRI KET B - S A%
EAXIRES RSN RER -

RZEBE-—F+-_A=+—0 " x5H
IRITEVE RIRTTE A $£/597,283,00078
T(ZZE-TF : 67,527,00087T) * THLA
AEBBEVATBEAENTHEE TibRIE
FEEMNFERREE R BERKA
HEREITHEREF(MFFI9R2DAEET
B AR ESBHEAERTER -

RZBE-_—F+_A=+—H " £5E
WA #)214,652,0008 T (Z T T F :
239,034,00078 70) B9 A B) A R $2 ERER 1T Rd
ﬁf °

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

31. BNERE

2021 2020

—EC--F —E-FHF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FERT FAT

Prepaid beauty treatment fees TN EAEEREA 4,477 5,059
Sales of products EmEE 9,075 6,771
13,552 11,830

The contract liability is the consideration received from the customers
which represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods and services to
customers that has not been completed. All the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year has been realised to revenue in the current year.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract liabilities
recognised are as follows:

Prepaid beauty treatment fees
The Group typically receives a 100% deposit before the services
commence.

Sales of products

The amounts of consideration received in advance as prepayments by
customers who are not qualified for credit sales are short term as the
respective revenue is expected to be recognised within a few days when
the goods are delivered to customers.
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e MR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. HEAE
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
RIEHEEMRK REHENREE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —T-FTF ZB--F —TTHF
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FER TAT FET TAET

Within one year —FK 8,182 5532 7,015 5213
More than one year, but not —F A BT BIBRE
exceeding two years 6,147 1,982 5,348 1,913
More than two year, but not M LA LB HBE A F
more than five years 10,879 399 9,890 368
More than five years AFENRE 9,808 = 9,538 =
35,016 7913 31,791 7,494
Less: Future finance charges o RIEMEER N/A N/A
(3,225) 419) TEA EH
Present value of lease obligations ~ A& & TR(E 31,791 7,494

Less: Amount due for settlement & : 1218 B N2 2 e~

within 12 months (shown BB
under current liabilities) aE7IR) (7,015) (5213)
Amount due for settlement 1218 A 1% 2| B pE 1 508
after 12 months 24,776 2,281
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities are denominated in AEBHEAGCREAENTIERK
the following currencies: FTHE -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —F-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
RMB AR 10,379 4,380
NTS e 20,477 1,870
MYR 5 935 1,244
31,791 7,494
The average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities HEBEBEMEANFEHEEERFEN
ranged from 1.2% to 10.6% (2020: from 1.2% to 10.6%). F12%E106%(—E-FF : NF12%9E

10.6%) °
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e IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-—F+-A=-+HLEFE

33. DEFERRED TAX

33. IEIERIE

Undistributed
Allowance Other earnings
forbadand Revaluation Defined  Unrealised ~ short-term of PRCand
doubtful  Inventory of benefit  profitson  temporary  Intangible Taiwan
debts  provision  properties liabilities inventories differences assets entities  Tax losses Total
HERER
REE TR AERE  RHEH RERHRY
B FERE  EMMRX  RABE KB EREE  BPEE AAWEN  BEER it
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000
Thr  TEr  TEx  TEr T TEr  TEr TR TR TEn
At 1 January 2020 NIZI3E
-A-H 1,668 3793 1140 130 2661 350 (3759) (6978) - 2181
Cedifichage)oprofitor — ERRERREA/
loss forthe year (note 13 (F82) (3t 13) 4 (173) (694) = %5 B70) 474 21 8976 7808
Charge to other EREf2E
comprehensive income eyl
forthe year - - - (30) - - - - - (30
Bichange difference ELZE 148 38 3 8 128 4 3 (433) 16 264
A3 December 200 and  RZE-FF
1 January 2021 TZA=T-BR
2k
—-A-A 2289 4002 48 108 314 16 (3514) (528 8992 10243
Credit/charge) oproftarloss — ERRBRFETA/
forthe year (note 13) (HnB) (B3) (21%9) 73) (108) = 73 %40 37 102 8020 5706
Chargetoother comprehensiee  FRAE 2T
income for the year Yamk = = = 13 = = = = = 1%
Disposalofasubsidiary HE-HHELR
(note 39) (e39(a) - - - - - - 187 S - 187
Exchange diference EiZE 6 153 9 (18) 188 3 (114 (i) 30 k)
At31 December 2021 KRB
+-A=1-A 162 345 379 60 2605 959 (1414) (5303) 17362 18262
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for consolidated
statement of financial position purpose:

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE

EERIE ()
DT BRSSP SRR BRTHRTOE
ERIBLESB DT

2021 2020

—E=—F —ZE_TF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET FETT

Deferred tax assets RIER IR B B 24,979 19,039
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEE (6,717) (8,796)
18,262 10,243

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$84,117,000 (2020: HK$58,006,000) available to offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$69,403,000 (2020: HK$35,980,000) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$14,714,000 (2020: HK$22,026,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$2,771,000 (2020: HK$5,578,000) that will expire after 5
years from the year of assessment they related to. Other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group's PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since
1 January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated
to be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been
provided for in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to such profits amounting to approximately HK$79,934,000 (2020:
HK$53,551,000).

REHEEER NEBBRBEAH
IEJ%%E%’ngt,W,ooo/%n(_?_ZE$ :
58,006,000/ 7T) A] FATEE SH AR A m Al o
LA B8 469,403,000 T (=& _g
F 1 35,980,000/ JU) BB HE E -
AR BBERRREHARETE - Fith W&
BERT 214,714,000 0 (ZE T F ¢
22,026,000 70) 2 BiIE B 1B FE R IE I A
HEE - AERREBEREFLNE
AT EERTAFRIENEERY
2,771,000 T (ZFE ZF4F : 5,578,000/
JL) o B A IR E R A AR B A

AEBEFRE T A B ARE KGN B A
FEZSENF—A—BERFEAZRK
DIREF  AEHE2BUREERBEE R
AAEERABEBAT MG R K
AEDIR - AEBEEMFEEBBEFZ
B 22 R AE IR AR TR #5549 79,934,000
BIL(ZZ =T : 53551,000/7T) °

“E-FFR BERAREYNEERDAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a)

Defined contribution plan

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement plans
which are available for eligible employees in Hong Kong, Taiwan
and the PRC.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the "HK MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for
all employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the Labour Standards
Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF Scheme”). The HK
MPF Scheme and the TW MPF Scheme are defined contribution
retirement plans administered by independent trustees. Under
the HK MPF Scheme and TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% and 6%, respectively, of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (with
effect from 1 June 2014) for the HK MPF Scheme while there is no
cap to monthly income under the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions
to the plans vest immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the PRC
government. As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, these
relevant subsidiaries participate in various defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates and the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its PRC employees. The Group has no other material
obligations for the payment of pension benefits associated with
these plans beyond the annual contributions described above.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$10,902,000 (2020:
HK$2,904,000) represents contributions paid or payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

(b)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The
Group has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds
in the scheme to pay the benefits earned by the employees. The
Group currently contributes at 2% of the total salaries monthly as
determined and approved by the relevant government authorities.
Under the scheme, the employees are entitled to retirement
benefits equal to two months’ salary for each year of service for
the first 15 years and one month’s salary for each year of service
following the 15 years, but not more than 45 months’ salary in
aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other post-retirement
benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the PUCM. An
actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was carried
out by an independent actuarial firm which is a member of The
Actuarial Institute of the Republic of China.

eI HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRE-F-Ft-A=tALEE

34. RREANNEFE®

(b)
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e VI IRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+=-A=+—RHLFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. BRBRAEE@®
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EEEEFETEIE)
The plan in Taiwan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as BENGESASEAZIEER
investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. @ Pl E R - FIXRER - &

Investment risk:

RERR

Interest rate risk:

ESIE

Longevity risk:

SRR

Salaries risk:

FaER

o

SRR M2 RER

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined
by reference to the weighted average rate of long-term government bond and long-term bank
deposit rate. Overall market condition is also taken into consideration. The change of discount rate
was noted mainly because of the stable level of bank interest rate. The management of the Group
considers that the general environment of Taiwan will not be changed materially over the coming
years over which the relevant present value will be discounted. Currently the plan has a relatively
balanced investment in various financial instruments and assets.

ERENE 28 ENREDNRALL2ERMBFES RRRITERF E NEFHH X
BRETHIREXGE - BEMSEATHAZE - BRXEFHFEXIET - RADR
RITMENREKRT - AEEEEERR  SEBRBRENAREFTETIS LR HEMA
REMBRNERES - BA - ZtEEEMEHEESREeRIAREENDERE -

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

BEHFMERDAGE N EIRE - A - bR BIR BRI E BRI IE 0 i 15780 8N o

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

e 2 aEnNRENK2EFA2BENERPBLREER 2T R RIEMETE
FTH o FHEI2RENTIOFHE MG EIEE -

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’s liability.

TREMNFEAENRAENKSLEAE2EENRRFLEAE - At - sHEI28EEN
FammSEmstaasE -
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34.
Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(b)

0]

(i)

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_T-—F+-A=-+—HLEE

EBAREFEE®
(b) FEEEIEFIE 8 ()
() EETEIEGEESRERY

actuarial valuations were as follows: FERZUWE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
Discount rate ALIR & 0.50% 0.30%
Expected return on plan assets STEIE ZE 2 TEE B ) 0.50% 0.30%
Expected rate of salary increases TERRE 2L hntE = 2.50% 2.50%

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value
of plan assets was approximately HK$6,678,000 (2020:
HK$7,487,000).

Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
defined benefit plans are as follows:

BEHEBRRTEEEZT
B#16,678,000/8 L (ZE =&
T : 7,487,000/ 7T) °

i ERNBRRTERZEHERE
Mt

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T FAT

Current service cost IR AR A AR 17 28
Interest on obligations BT S 24 53
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE TR B3R (22) (49)
19 32

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b)

(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income/

(expense) in respect of the defined benefit plans are as

34. ERBERET @
BRI E ()

i) BRHEMEZERZE(FAX)
ﬁ@u/u Z}E%EZEX—‘JH-I_EU E;ZD

follows: T
2021 2020
== ﬂE —% _%EE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Remeasurement on the net defined BHFTECREENAE
benefit liability: R
Actuarial loss arising from EFETEEACREERE
remeasurement (797) (162)
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 TEEIE H 124 313
(673) 151

(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group's obligations in

vy EBFFAREMBRRHmERZ
ERBMNASEE 2 ANEE

respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: BEBEREWOT :
2021 2020
- —T-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Present value of funded defined benefit BEHARTEEEMNESIRE
obligations 6,980 8,029
Fair value of plan assets FrEEEZ ATE (6,678) (7,487)
Net liability arising from defined benefit ERRBNEBEEZ
obligations FEE 302 542

Level of funding at the end of the reporting period are as

R HEAEER 2 HR

follows: BN
2021 2020
Level of funding HEFREL B 95.68% 93.25%
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mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. RARBENEE @
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (b) EFEEAGTEE)
(v)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit vy, AEFEEFBEIAGEEREZ

obligations in the current year were as follows: FET -
2021 2020
——f —F_FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
At 1 January R—H—H 8,029 8,744
Current service cost IR EF AR A AR 17 28
Interest on obligations BT S 24 53
Benefits paid EfE A (1,111) (1,435)
Company payment NCIENEN (913) =
Actuarial loss TEHEEE 797 162
Exchange difference b N =5 137 477
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 6,980 8,029

(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current Vi) ARFEFEEELAFEZE
year were as follows: Eyp Ol

2021 2020
- —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHEIT
At 1 January Rn—H— 7,487 8,092
Contributions from the employer BEHK 19 32
Expected return on plan assets FrEIEE 2 FEAIR W 22 49
Actuarial gain BE W 124 313
Benefits paid EfE A (1,111) (1,435)
Exchange difference MEH =% 137 436
At 31 December R+—A=+—8 6,678 7,487
Actual return on plan assets EEECERER 146 364

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based

EEERBEBFHEIIR

on historical return trends and analysts' predictions of the BRTEREZRSMEE

market for the assets in the next twelve months.

BEMSART _EAZE
BIHETT

I —FFR BEAREYNEERAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued) 34. ERBRET @

(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)
The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

(b)

EEE A 8 (5
M) AFERHEBEEATEZS

BT (8
AEIEEZEZBRANARR
REMEE RS HREEE
BERAHEZBALAT

2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi — 7 = E'E

% %

Deposits with financial institutions 1t & BB M TE K 18.87 1224
Short-term bills MHIEE 4.99 3.02
Stocks = 9.02 11.27
Bonds g 6.24 6.87
Others Efb 60.88 66.60
100.00 100.00

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$500,000/(increase by HK$564,000) (2020: decrease
by HK$551,000/(increase by HKS625,000)).

- If the expected salary growth increases/(decreases) by
1% (2020: 1%), the defined benefit obligation would
increase by HK$474,000 /(decrease by HK$431,000)
(2020: increase by HK$521,000/(decrease by
HKS$471,000)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis,
the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the PUCM at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

The average duration of the benefit obligation at 31
December 2021 is 8 years (2020: 7 years). The Group expects
to make a contribution of HK$19,000 (2020: HK$33,000) to
the defined benefit plan during the next financial year.

e MR R M
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e IR ME
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—Ft-_A=1t—HLHFE

35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. |4
The Company
AATE]
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
BROEE IR A5 E {8
HK$'000
FHAT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIE T L@
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZE_TF—H—H "
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 ZECEFE+ZA=+—H"
I e i = D4
B —F+-A=+—H 4,000,000,000 400,000
Number of Nominal value
shares of shares
ROEE R E &
HK$'000
FHET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARE :
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, RZZEZTF—H—A -
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 —ECRF+_A=1+—8H"
B —H—-A—-AK
B —F+ZA=+—H 2,002,100,932 200,210

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and

equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by considering the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of

new debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, share
premium, capital surplus, retained earnings and other reserves).

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-_—F+_-_A=+—HL=FE

35. fRA ()

AEEERNEHRHEABREA L RER
BN o UL EUEBFERACARE
A8 - EHFRAEBEBRRRE R
ReSBYAE  KRABREABE#ER
M 2 RBAEA R D (BN ~ B (& ~ B
B~ REBEHN M EAM ) o

2021 2020

—B--F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Debit (a) &%) 129,074 75,021
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RENREEEYD (184,466) (154,522)
Net debt B15%58 N/A N/A
TiE A 3¢ FA

Equity M 657,918 611,230
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FREECHBENRL X N/A N/A
il A A

(a) Debt is defined as borrowings and lease liabilities as detailed in note 30 and
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the Group to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group checks the substantial share interests showing the non-
public float through the Stock Exchange’s website and it demonstrates
continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the year. At 31
December 2021, 25% (2020: 25%) of shares were in public hands.

@ EBRAERERREERE  FBESH
BNt A M ISR 30 R M 32

E—IMNBERNERNBEREAEE R
FEBXM EmmBAERED25%8 D
HAREA °

REBB BB ABUMERNBLRIEAR
BREZFERMDEZR - BBTRASF
E—EHERFTRLWREBIRE - N
T —F+_A=+—8 " 255%(=F=
TF 5% RIVALRRIFE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. XA Tz BRARBEREFEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 2 E)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (@) ADRZHBARRIFR
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
M FHBxT TFHET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIZIEE 169,398 169,398
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments BZ& RIBRAFRIE 879 671
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH B A B FIR 83,038 78,993
Bank and cash balances RITEIREHETT 1,199 2,686
85,116 82,350
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FEfT B R R B FE T BRK 3,381 4,131
Amounts due to subsidiaries R ENGIER 40,313 30,809
43,694 34,940
Net current assets REBEEFE 41,422 47,410
NET ASSETS EEFE 210,820 216,808
Capital and reserves B A R 4
Share capital (%N 35 200,210 200,210
Reserves G 36(b) 10,610 16,598
TOTAL EQUITY R 210,820 216,808
Approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and are RZZE_—F=A-+-HEES
signed on its behalf by: gHE - WRATREEE
Dr. LEI Chien Mr. PAN Yi-Fan
EFEEL ERNEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. XA R 2B BRABEREE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY BB (@
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) ERATZHEEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
A 1E ES i st
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHL FHET FAT
(note 37(b)(i))
(B EE37(0)ii)
At 1 January 2020 \=ZE-ZTF—F—H 41,016 (21,829) 19,187
Total comprehensive REEEEWEEE
income for the year - (2,589) (2,589
At 31 December 2020 and RZE-EF
1 January 2021 +-A=+—
T —F— 41,016 (24418) 16,598
Total comprehensive REE2E R %'
income for the year - 18 18
Dividend paid (note 17) BRRE (FE17) (6,006) - (6,006)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+=-—A=+—H 35,010 (24,400) 10610
37. RESERVES 37. f#%
(@) The Group (@ FT&£EH
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein are AEBFECBIEZHNASE
presented in the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss EimeBnkEMmEmKERIU
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement of MigEEmBBRET -

changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the
consideration paid and the relevant share of the carrying
value of the subsidiaries’ net assets acquired upon the
reorganisation of the Group in year 2002.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC companies with foreign investment are required
to transfer a certain percentage of its profit after tax, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations (the
net profit under the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles (the “PRC GAAP")), to the general reserve fund and
enterprise expansion fund. Distribution of these reserves
shall be made in accordance with the Article of Association
and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of
their net profit under the PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan
companies shall set aside 10% of their statutory net income
each year for the legal reserve, until the reserve balance has
reached the paid-in share capital amount.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which they were created
and are not distributable as cash dividends.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv)  Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4(c)
to the consolidated financial statements.

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive and non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002. A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms
exactly the same as the Old Scheme with different exercisable periods
was approved at the Annual General Meeting ("“AGM") on 13 May 2011.
Upon the approval of the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme was
terminated at the AGM on 13 May 2011.

Options granted under the New Scheme may be exercised during such
period as would be determined by the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) and notified to each grantee upon grant of the option,
but in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
option. The subscription price for shares under the New Scheme may be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any event will
not be less than the higher of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (b) the average of the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

ARE B F R AR MY AT
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HItEE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. URGAERSRE

226

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders
or independent non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to
and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital in issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company may grant share options under the New Scheme to
specified participants over and above the scheme mandate limit or
the refreshed scheme mandate limit referred to above subject to
shareholders” approval in general meetings and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
New Scheme was nil.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Disposal of a subsidiary

On 30 June 2021, the Group and an independent third party
entered into a sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant to which,
the Group agreed to sell and the independent third party
agreed to purchase 100% of the issued shares of a subsidiary of
the Company, Shanghai Lixin Medical Beauty Clinic Company
Limited (“Lixin"). The total cash consideration for the disposal was

e MR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—RIEE

39. MERERERMETE

(a)

RMB4,500,000.

Lixin has been engaging in provision of medical beauty service

and sale of skin care and beauty products. The completion of the
disposal took place on 30 June 2021 in accordance with the terms

and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement.

HE—RBMHB AT
—E-—FXA=+H ~EEHE
—ZBUE=ZFFIVE S B e
Bt AEERELEMBLE=
FREBEARAR—MHMEARL
BHEBEER2HERAR(AH
E1)H100%E TR - REL
ERRIESRERAREA500000
=

NE—ERBRHBEBEITRBER
HERBELIDTER - REEEW
FOBRART - RAHEER =
E_—FRA=THTK °

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows: REE BN EEFENT -
HKS'000
TETT
Intangible assets (note 23) fm A E (MEE23) 7,309
Inventories FE 131
Bank and cash balances RITERESET 16
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A AR K (16)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 33) EERIE B E(PFFE33) (1,827)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary BB AR 2 EE (199)
Total consideration BRE 5414
Consideration satisfied by FRINTFIEENRE -
Cash Re 4,862
Deferred sales proceeds ERESHE P15 552
5414
Cash consideration received BUERER(E 4,862
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of EHERE KB EEEY (16)
4,846
“To—FFHR BAZXLEVYREERAT
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RE B ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_ZEZ-—F+-_A=+—RIEE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

39. MEBRERERMT W)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BEZBELEZESYHE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRETASERETDEEZE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash BEEHFBE(REReRIFReE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for ) BMBEETDELCBERES
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MEERIAKREREFREE
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from BEHReReREaRANEARES
financing activities. B cHEeRECAE -
Additions  Derecognition Interest
1January of new of lease expenses  Exchange  31December
2021 leases liabilities  Cash flows (note12) difference 2021
i 3 RIER MEXH It b 3
-A-A ENEE HEEE BERE (W) EXEE fT-A=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 K$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR ThR TEx TR ThR ThR
Borrowings (notes 30) B3R (P330) 67,527 - - 26,407 840 2,509 97,283
Lease labiftes (note 32) BEAR(E) 7,49 31375 (467) (7,916) 982 EPK] 31,791
75,021 31,375 (467) 18,491 1,822 2,832 129,074
Derecognition Interest
1January — Additions of of lease expenses Exchange 31 December
2020 new leases liabilities Cash flows (note 12) difference 2020
IE0%% RIHRER HEX M i St 33
-A-B RENEE MERE ReRE (W)  EXEE T-A=t-8
HK000 HKS000 HK5'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK5'000
T Fhx Th T T ThL Th
Borrowings (notes 30) A GRED) 24956 = = 3808 73 37% 67527
Lease liabiftes (note 32) REEEME) 27905 8005 (20087) (9851) 95 597 7494
52861 8,005 (20087) 2819 1658 439 7501
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_Z-——F+-A=t+—HLEFE

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. R RERE XK T @)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEZHRSRHLHEEE
Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases comprise REEFARERERCSHERE
the following: AR
2021 2020
— ﬂE —%F _%EE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within operating cash flows FFAKERERE 6,080 8,247
Within financing cash flows FFARERESRE 6,934 8,926
13,014 17173
These amounts relate to the following: ZECHRHENTSIEER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Lease rental paid BENEERS 13,014 17,173
(d) Non-cash transaction (d) FEERH
Additions to property, plant and equipment during 2021 of RZZBEZ—F  REVE  BER
HK$2,982,000 were transferred from deposits for purchase of 52,982,000 TE BEIEEWE -
property, plant and equipment. B KRB 2 IESE o
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. BEARHENE
Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period RBEHREEHEINERKRELEZ
but not yet incurred are as follows: BAEENT :
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B MR 53,708 56,057
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T-_—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 4. KEHEERH
The Group as lessee AEBEERAEBEA
The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for offices. As at 31 AEETHIBAZTIICEHEE -
December 2021, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio T F+ZA=+—80 " EHHEE
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in HEBEMEFVEECEHEESH 2
note 21. NHHEHAEMEE -
As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding lease commitments relating R-_E-_—F+_-_A=+—HBH £E#H
to leasing of office under short-term leases is approximately HK$995,000 EHHEBETZRAZTHEZREE
(2020: HK$2,901,000). HEAFEL 9950008 T (ZT_FF -
2,901,000/ 7T) °
The Group as lessor AEBEEREHBEA
Operating leases relate to investment properties and an office building REBABEEEEMERETERH
owned by the Group with lease terms of one to five years, with an option ZIBEHEMBAR—ZE0E - HrJ#EE
to renew the lease after the date at which time all terms are negotiated. REFER —YEHEEN - FTEL
All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the vent EHESGNHBRERBEANEERRT
that the lessee exercises its options to renew. The lessee does not have SEGIETCETERNIG - HEER
an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period. B AEALEEEMENEERE o
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: MEHERWAENKAT
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E_THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within the first year —FR 1,827 2243
In the second year E-fF 347 1,871
In the third year F= 328 1,608
In the fourth year FEIYF 324 322
In the fifth year FRF 50 313
After five years hFE - 49
Total @t 2,876 6,406
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss: TREBINNEBHREHRZ S5
2021 2020
g —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Lease income on operating leases KEHEE ZHERA 3,218 2618
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mEMBHRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—HILFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

42, EBALTRS
BRGATBRE M SHRRE

In addition to those related party transactions and balances (a)
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following transactions and balances
with its related parties during the year.

RSB A TR Z REHRIN  F
AAREEEFRATETZRS

K AEERIAT

Nature of
Name of related parties Relationship transactions 2021 2020
A EsE 7 B R RHME =B —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Eastern Media International Shareholder Sales of goods 884 -
Corporation (“EMIC")
RARBIRAR D B R A A e BEmiHE
(TREREIRR )
ET New Media Holding Co., Ltd. Subsidiary of EMIC Sales of goods 1 50
("ET New Media")
RARERBIERBRNOERLT RABEEZMEAR EniEE
([RARFTEERED
Advertising expenses 1,507 605
BEBRX
T —FFR BAZREYREERDAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
BHE-_T-—F+-A=-+HLEFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

42, EBALTRZ @

(b) Amounts due to related parties (b) FETEAEES FIE
Name of connected parties Relationship 2021 2020
By BR —EB-—F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
ET New Media Subsidiary of EMIC 544 329
RARHTIRES RS 2 B AT
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free FERTEAR F RIEAEER - 258K
and with normal credit term of 120 days upon receipt of invoice. R ERE - —RIEEBA120
g o
() The compensation to the Group's key management personnel, () AEBZEZEBTEABZHM(BEE

including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and certain
of the highest paid employees, is disclosed in note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

IR FARBEERE TS EHM
BEZHB)RESUBEHRENTE
163 5& ©

EERHMBETBEERABRFRZ
[ N

2021 2020

—EB-—F —ETHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Short-term benefits ySEEE R 8,071 7,603
Post-employment benefits & B BRI 12T 30 28
8,101 7,631
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